
ZONING ORDINANCE No. 26-99-0 
OF THE CITY OF CELINA, omo 

. . . An Ordinance to adopt :rnd enact zoning and reh1tcd provi~ions, and to repeal Onlhrnncc~ in ronnict therewith. 
I h1~ Onlinnnl'c consol~dntcs nll zoning anti rclntcd provisious for· the 11urposc of regulating, rc~tricfing an<.l limiling in 
tltt' mfcrc!'( of the puhlrc hr:i:Uh, ~nfcty , convcnit•11cc, comfort, prosperity and gcnCr:ll wclfore offhc C ity ofCclirrn. 
Ohio, the uses and lo ration of buillling,'i anti other .~tructurcs and the usrs of r>rcmiscs, 11rul divide the C ity in lo tli~trid~. 
This Onlina11cc :llso provides the mcHw«I of ruJ111inistratio11 and cuforccmcnt, :rnd prescribes the prnjtlfi~~ for the 
\·iol:lfion of lhc U1c."ic pro,·isions. 

WHERl':AS, lhe City of Celina drsires lo update its Zoning Code, :iml 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission of Celina, Ohio has recommended the following re~ul:ition• be 
adoplcd at their June 24, .1999 meeting, and 

WHEREAS, lhe Cily Council of Celina held a public hearing 011 August 9'', 1999 following the required 31) day 
no rice: . 

NOW THEREFORE [!E IT OllOAJNED IJY THE COUNCIL OF nm CITY or CRLINA, OHIO: 

SECTION ONE 

TllAT the following is hereby lhc Zoning Code oftl1c City of Celina along with lhc atlnchccl mop. 

1141.01 

1141.02 

1141.03 

1141.04 

1141.05 

1142.01 

PURPOSE 

CHAPTER 1141 
GEN EllAL PROVISIONS 

for the purpose ofpromoling the. public l1calth, safcty1 morals, comfoz1 and gcncrnl wclforc. conserving lhe 
values of property, facilitating the provision of water, sewerage, schools and other public rcquircmcn!s-aml 
lessening or avoiding congestion on public streets and highways, this Zoning Ortlimrncc i:;; c~tabli~hcd. 

TITLE 
Chapter 11 41 throt1gh 1199 and the Zoning District Map which accompanies this ordinance shall together be 
knowu and cited as the Zoning Ordinance. 

INTERPRETATION AND CONFLICT 
In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held lo be 111ini1m11n requirements. 
Wherever this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction than is imposed or required by other provisions oflmvor by 
other rules, rcgufalions or ordinances, the provisio11s oftl1is Ordinanc:c shall govern. 

COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS 
/\. No building or structure shall be locnted, erected, constructed, reconstructed, enlarged or slrnclurnlly altered 

except in conformity with the area, height ttnd yard regulations of tl1c ctistricl in whic.:h such huilding or 
slnicfure is located except as hercinaOer provided. 

fl . No building, srructure or lor shall be used for any purpose other than that which is permitted in the dislricr 
in whic h such building, !'ilructure or lot is located, except where such usage w<1s in existence and pennittcd 
prior to the passage of current zoning regulations. 

C. No yard or other open space existing adjacent to any building o r structure shall be reduced in area or 
dimension to less than the minimum required by the Zoning Ordinance. 

D. No lot at the time of the effective date of the Zoning Ordinance shall be reduced or subdivided in any mm111cr 
below the minimum area and yard provision as required by the Zoning Ordinance. 

E. Uses nol specifically listed or interpreted to be included categorically under I he Uses Sections ofrhc Disrricl 
Chapters shall not be permitted except by Amendment to the Ordinance. 

SEPARABILITY 
Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be u11co11s1i1111imrnl or inv:i lid. such 
decision shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part sn declared 
to be uncoustitutiona) or invalid. 

DEFINITIONS 

CHAPTER 1142 
DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance certain terms and words are defined as follows. E:<ccpt where specifically 
defined, all words used in the Zoning Ordinance shall carry their cuslonrnry meanings. 
I. 1'Agriculture'' means fanning,dnirying, pasturage, horticulture. viticulture. animal and poullry huslrnndry ;uul 

limited processing and sale of agricultural products from land under s:une ownership. 

27-22-O
Exhibit B



2. 

J. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

JO. 
II. 

12. 

IJ. 

14. 

I 5. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 
22. 

23. 

24. 
25. 

26. 
27. 

28 . 

29. 

JO. 

"Alley'' means a public or 1irivatc thoroughfare which affords only a secondary means of access to property 
nb1111i11g thereon. 

"Anim~I H<'.spital and Clinic" means a building used for the medical lrealmcnt, housing or boarding of 
durncst1c animals such as dogs, cats, rabbits, and birds by a vetcrinari;m. 
"Assisted Living Facil ity" 111ca11s a residential care facility, other than a licensed nursing homc. llwt provides 
personal care for persons with impairments in performance of activit ies or tlaily living <lml lms the cnpncity 
lo meet unscheduled needs for assistance. Typical to this faci lity is thnt ench residence is private occupancy. 
furni~hcd by ocr.upanr, wilh food service, Jaundry and gathering arens shared in !he facilily. 
"Automotive Filling Station" means any building or land nrca used or intended to be used for the retail 
dispensing or sales of vehicular fuels; and including as an accessoty use the sale and i11slallal io11 of'luhricantr.. 
tires, baltcrics, aml similar accessories. 
"Automotive Services" means the rcpnir. rebuilding or reconditioning of motor vchides or p<uls thcrC'or. 
including collision service, painting and slcmn cleaning of vehicles ancf crnnmcrciol canvashcs. 
''Automotive S:1lcs" means the display, sale or rental or new or usc<l n10tor i,:chid cs or trnilers in operable 
condition where no repair work is done. 
"Basemenl11 mc;:ins a story having part but 11ot more thnn one-half of its height ahovr grnde nnd usecl for 
storage. gornges for use or occupctnls of the building, or other active use for the rest of 1hc building. 
"Bed ;md 13rcakfost Establisluucnt" means anyownerocc.upiccl dwelling unit tJrnt contain~ no more limn four 
rooms where lodging. with or without meals, me provided for compensation. 
"noard" means the Doard of Zoning Appeals of Celina. Ohio. 
"Lluild ing" means any structure having a roof supported by columus or walls, 11sed or intended to he used 
for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or properly. 
"nuilding and Related Trades" means a building or premises nscd for the storage and retail sale of those 
materials and :"crviccs customary to the construction profession of which ollkcs of those prnfcssio1111ls 
associated with the construction profession may be an accessory use. 
"Building, Front Line of ' means the line of that face of the building nearest the fwnt line ,,f thc 101. This 
line docs not include uncovered steps or handicapped access ramps. 
" Building Lot" means miy platted lot, a le.gaily described parcel of land, or combination of adjacent plallcd 
lots or other described land that is idcnlilied on a deed as being owned hy the same owner. and is large 
enough for lhe construction of a residence. It may also be any comhinat1on of ndjnccnt lnn1l deeded 
scpnnitcly but shown on 1he county's tnx maps as owned by the same owner. 
"Building, Height or' means the vertic.11 distance from the average grnclc level along the front fluilding tine 
lo !he highest poin1 of the building or structure. 
"Building, Principal" means a building in which is conducted the nrnin or principal 11sc of the lot 011 which 
s11ch huilding is_ situated. 
"Cemetery" means land used or intended lo be used for the burial or the dead and dcdicnted for such 
purposes, including crematories, mausoleums and mortuaries, if operated in conncclion wi1h, and within !hr. 
boundaries of. such cemetery. 
uClinic" means a place used for the care. diagnosis and trcalment of sick. ai ling, infinn nncl injured persons 
and those who are in need of medical, dental or surgical allention, but who art' not provided wi th roon1 or 
hoartl nor kepi overnight on the premises. 
"Club" means a nonprofit association of persons who arc bona fide members paying regular dues. and <1re 
organized for some common purpose, but excluding religious plnces or worship or a group orgr111 izcd solely 
or primari ly to render" service customarily c3rried on as a comme-rcial enlcrpri.o:;e . 
"Commercial School" means a facility , operating for profit. providing a c111Ticull11n or<.:nnlinuing. acmlcrnic 
instruclion including vocational and lcchnical courses. 
''Commission" means the Celina Planning Commission. 
"Commercial Entertairu11ent Facilities'' means ru1y activity which is generc11ly related to the entertainment field. 
such as motion picture thcnters, night clubs. and similar entertainment ac(ivitics rmd cxcluc.li11g tiivern~. 

''Community Development Project" means any development of land for irnh1slrial, commercinl orrcsirlcnti;il 
purposes, or a combination of these uses, provided they are functionally integrated. lo attain mi impm\'Cd 
character of development that conforms lo the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance. 
"Council" means the City Council of Celina, Ohio. 
"Dny Care Facil ity'' means a building or slructure where daytime cnre, ptolcction and supervi.c;ion arc 
provided on a regular schedule, for a fcc,at least twice a week. This definition includes Child Care Facililic' 
which address and pertain to lhc care of children up to and throughout school ages. /\dull Care Facilities 
address and pertain to the care of adults. This definition docs not include resident in I cnre such n~ AssiSll·d 
Living Fncility nml Group Home. 
" Days" means ealemfar days unless staled otherwise. 
"Design Review District .. mcnns a portion of the territory of the City~ within \vhich special rc<1l1irc 111cnl ~ an<l 
rcguh:1tions established under the Design Review District provisions of I his Ordinance arc applied. l)esign 
Review Districts arc established by Council and idcn1i!ied on !he Zoning Map. 
"Design Review Commission!' means a comrnission established under the Design H.cvicw District provisions 
of this Ordinance. 
"District" means a portion of the territory of the City, within which certain uniform rcgulotions and 
requirements or various combinations thereof apply under lhe provisions of t hi~ Ordinance. 
"Drive-[n Commcrciril Uses., means any rclail commercial use serving primarily vehicular lmdc S.tH:h as 
drive-in rcslaura11ts, drive-in theaters, drive-in banks and drive thru convenience slorcs. 

2 



31. "l)ll'elling" lllcans any building or portion thereof which is dcsign;l!cd for or used li1r residential prnpnsc,. 

32. "Dwelling, Emcicncy Apartment" means a<lwclliug unit in a mulli-fo111ily buildinL\ wi thout a scparnlcdislincl 
room for sleeping. 

13. :·Dwelling, Multi-Fa111ily" means a building used or designed as a residence for three or mure families li l'ing 
1mlcpendently of cnch olhcr and doing their own cooking therein, includi11g npmtmcnl houses. garden 
apartments ;ind row houses. 

J~ . "Dwelling, Perma11cn1ly Siled Manufocturcd Home" 111eans a bnilding manufoclurcd in an off-site raci lit)' 
designated for or occupied exclusively by one family that meets all of the followin~ criteria: 
a. The slructure is affixed to 3 pemmnent foundation nnd is conncclcd to nppropriale utililit's; 
b. The structure, excluding any addition. has a minimum width of22 rcet, a minimnm length of'22 feet. 

and a minimum Ooor area of900 square feet; 
c. The structure has a minimum roof pitch of 3:12, conventional residential siding. mid a mi11i111t1111 6 

inch eave overhang, including appropriate guttering; 
d. The structure was manufactured afler Jannary I, 1995; 
c . The structure has a permanent label or tag certifying that il W{IS co11struc1cd in conlOnnnncc with illl 

applicable fed eral conslrnclion and safety standards. 
35 . "Dwelling, Single-Family'' means a buildingdcsigrmted for oroccupicd exclusively by one family, i11clnding 

Permanently Siled Manufactured Homes as defined herein. 
36. "Dwelling, Three Family'' means a building designated for or occupied exclusively hy three famil ies. 
37. "Dwelling, Two-Frunily11 means a building dcsignalcd for or occupied exclusively by two families. 
:l8. "Educational lnstitulion" means a facility that provides a curriculum of elcmcntnry or ~econdary 11c;uk111ic 

inslruclion. including kindergarten, elementary schools.junior high schools, high schools and technical nnd 
collegiate level courses. 

"l9. "Essential Services" 111ca11s the erection, co11stn1ction, altcratio11 or maintcnrmce: by puhlic uliliLics or 
municipal or other govcrnmenlal agencies, of facilities which arc necessary for furnislting adtquatc scrvic<.> 
by such public utilit ies or municipttl or olhcr govcrnmcrHnl agencies or for the puhlic hcnllh·or safr1y or 
general welfare, hut not including b11Hdi11gs. 

40. "Famil)"' means one or more persons occupying a dwell ing and living as a single housekeeping unit and doing 
their own cooking on lhe premises as distinguished from a group occupying n hotel. as herein denned. 

11. "Fimmcial lnslitution" means any buildi11g, property or aclivily of which !he principal use <1r purpose is 1hc 
provision of Jina11cic:1I services including but not limited to banks 1 facilities for aut.onrnlcd teller 111achi11cs 
(ATrvts). crc<lil unions. ~nvings and lonn institutions and murtg<lgc compnn i c~. 

42. "Food Processing" meaus lhc preparation or processing of food prudw.::ls excluding rcst:iurnnts, for whoksalc 
distribution. 

43. "Frontage" means all oflhc property between a sired and the front building line. The front boundary line 
of a lot is the line thnl abuts on n slreel, nnd includes its length. 

44. "Funeral Home" means any dwelling or other slruclure used and occupied by a profcssioirnl licensed 
mortician for burial preparation and funeral services. 

45. ..Grain Elevators and feed Mill" means a building, structure or premises used for the storngc and retail sales 
of grain and olhcr related agricultural supplies and products . .. 

46. "Group Horne" means any licensed residential focility designed lo allow no! more than eight (8) pe"on<. 
needing specialized care, counseling, on-going medical trcalment or supervision to live in the same buildi11g 
or complex of buildings and engage in ~omc congregate nctivily in a non-i11stit111ional e11\'iro11mcnt. 

'I 7. "Hon11:: 01,;1,;upation" 111t.:ei11s;my m:cupatiun, profcs:;iu11, acti vity or u:;;c ,.,.·hich is <\cce ~5ory lo lhc principal u:-c 

of 1hc premises nnd is conducted by n resident occ11par11 which does nol 11lter !he interior of the propl'rty N 
affect the rc$idcnlial character of the neighborhood. 

'18. "1 lospilal" meansnn institution providing health services primarily for huma11 in-patient medical or surgirnl 
cnre for the sick or iitjurcd mid including related facilities such ns labora1orics. out-pnticnt <lcpartmcnls. 
trai11 i11g facilities, central services facilities, nn<l staff offices that arc an integral pan of the facilities. 

4'). "Hotel/Motel" 111eans a building in which lodging or boarding and lodging are. provided and offered to the 
public for compensation and possibly providing as an accessory use additional facilities such ns rcstaurnnts. 
meeting rooms and recreational facilities. 

50. "Institution" means buildings or land occupied by a nonprofit corporation or a nonprori1 eslablishmcnl for 
public use. 

51 . "Interior Loi Linc" means any lot line shown by plat or deed of separalel)' desc1 ibcd parcels of'laml m"king 
up n building lot and located within its boundaries. 

52. "Junk Sloragc and/or Sales; Salvage Operation'' means any lot, l<tnd or structure or part thcrco r used 
primarily for the collection, storage and sale of waste paper, rngs. scrnp mctnl or discnrdc<l malcrinl. or for 
the collccling, dismanlling, storage and salvaging of nrnchincry or vehicles not in operating condition, or for 
the sole of pans !hereof 

53 . "Land Use Plan" means the long-range plan for the desirable use or land as adopted by the Planning 
Commission; the purpose of such plan being to serve as a guide in future development and zoning or the 
community. 

54. "Loading Space" means a space within the main building or on the same lo! therewith providing for the 
loading or unloading oflrucks. 

55. "Lock and Store (or Slorc and Lock) Warehousing" means a buil<ling or group of buildings in a conlrollcJ 
3cccss compound that contains equal or varying sizes of compartmcnlalizccl mnl con I rolled ncccs:;i slalls or 
lockers for lhc storage of customer goods or Wilrcs. 



56. 

57. 

58. 

59. 

60. 

6 1. 

62. 

6.1. 

64. 

65. 

66. 

67. 

68. 

69. 

70. 

7 1. 

72. 

7.1. 
74. 

75. 

76. 

77. 

78. 

79. 

RO. 

"Lnl" 111c;111sa parcel orlnnd occupied or intended for occupancy by a use pcnnillcd in the Zoning Ordinance. 
including one principal building together wilh accessory huildings, the open spaces and parking spaces 
re11uired by the Zoning Ordinance, and having its principal frontage upon ;1 slr<'Cl. 
"Loi Coverage" 111cans lhe ratio of enclosed ground noor area of all buildings lo the horiwnlally prnjcclcd 
nrcn of the lot, expressed as a pcrccutngc. 

"Lot uf Record" means any lot which, individually or as ~ part of a subdivision, has Uccn n:cordcll in the 
office of the County Recorder. 
"Lot, Minimum Aren or· menus the men of a lot computed exclusive of nny portion uf <he right or wny of 
nny public thoroughfare. 
"Lot Width" means the width of n lot al the building setback line measured al right angles lo ils dcplh. The 
lot wic.llh of lots 011 cur\'cd .!'trccts shall be the chord distance between points of intersection nf tile side lul 
lines with the curve describing the required depth of front yard. 
"Loi - Oullot" means a fol associ3lcd wilh larger development pl:rn where the prinwry p:irccl lh.·linc~ 1hc 
development. ·me development on outlols musl conform, in use type, to the pri111nry site devclop111en1. 
Outlots may be deeded scparnlely from 1hc primary parcel, but can be co1"idcrcd part of the '"'«all 
dcrclopmcnl. In sire plan reviews, these lots sh3ll be considered as pnrt of the O\'erall si te clcvclo1 1111cnt. In 
•shopping center, or in a IJ.J zone, ii is n lot thal is owned nmVor developed separntcly fro111 lhc shopping 
center nnd llils its own access drives, parking, and signage. 
"Manufacturing" means lhe mechunical, chemical, or biological 1rnnsfor111a1ion or assembly of mntcriols. 
Sl1hstnnccs, or component parts into new products or components, usually for distribll tion to whtllc~alc 
marke1s, or for intcrphmt twnsfcr to indus1rial users. 
"Mincrnl Extraction, Storagennd Processing" means any n1ining, qunrryingor proccs~i11g 01·1i111cslonc. ~lrnlc. 
clny, coal or other minerals. 
"Mixed Use· me.111s a combination of 1wo or more principally permitted or conditimrnlly pcrmincd U$CS 

within a district, as approved by the Planning Commission, in the same building or on the same premises. 
"Mobile Homes or Trailers" means nny vehicle or similar portable structure so dc!'igncd tlr constructc<l n!' 
to permit occupm1cy for dwelling or sleeping purposes. 
"Mobile Home Parks" means an area manifestly designed for rc11t or lease l'f mobile home lots in a s:1fo. 
sanitary and desirable manner as described in Chapter 1180. 
" Nursing Home" means a builtling, gru11p ufbuildings or licensed !ilcil ity, public <•r privotc. which provides 
full -lime personal care or nursh1g IQ the ill , physically inform or aged persons who are nol related hy l>l1111d 
or marriage lo the operator. 
"Office" means n building or portion of a building wherein services nrc performed involving predominately 
administrative. professional or clerical operations. 

"Off-Slreet Parking Space" means any parking space located wholly off any streel. alley or sidewnlk either 
in an enclosed building or on an open 101. 

"Overlay District" means the portion of the territory of the City. within which special requirements and 
regulations cstnhlished under the Overlay District provisions oflhis Ordinance are applied. Overlay Districts 
arc established by Council and identified on the Zoning Map. 
"Personal Services" means any enterprise conducted fo r gain which serves primarily personal needs of the 
general public such as shoe repair, watch repairing, barber shop, beauty p:irlors, <lllll si111ilar :icl ivilics. 
"Petroleum Refining nnd Storage" menns a facility designed to scpnrnlc nm.I rc111ovl' i111pmilics from tl il cir 
gns :md slore such fuels for distribution. 
"Planning Commission" means the Celina Planning Cornmission. 
1'PnbJic Service Fncili1ytl mcM~ the crcclion, construction, riltcrn.tiou. opcrnlion or mai 11te:.n~nr.e. nfhuilclines 
and other similar public service structures by a public ut ility, by a railroad, whether publicly or privately 
owned, or by a 111unicipal or other governmental agency, including tl1c rt1111isJ,ing of electrical. g01 ~. mil 
tmnsport, communication, public water and sewage dispo!;al service~. 
"Public uses" means public parks, schools and adminislrntive, cultural and service buildings, not including 
public land or buildings devoted solely lo the stornge and maintenance of equipment and material. 
"Putilic Recreation" means recreational facilities developed, used an<l/or maintained by public ngcnc i c~ for 
use hy the public. 
"Recreational fac ilities,eomrnercinl " means recreational facililicsopcn lo lhe public, established nnd opcrnlcd 
for n profit. such as commercial golf courses, golf driving ranges, swimming pools. ice skating rinl:s. rid i n~ 
stahlcs, boat docks. fishing piers, boat launching. race tracks, amusement parks. carnivals, roo<l concrs~ions 
ns an accessory use, and similar commercial enterprises. 
"Recreational facilities. noncommercial" means private and semipublic recreational facil ities which :ire not 
operated for commercial gain, including private country clubs, riding clubs. golf courses, and other pl'ivalc. 
noncommercial recreation arc.is and fnci litiesorrecreation centers, including priv:1lcconun11ni1y swimmin~ 
pools, boat docks, fishing piers, boat lnunching, and food concessions as ;.111 accessory use. 
"Rcligiuus places of worship'' means :m institution Hial n congregation of people regularly allcnd tv 
pnrticip11tc in or hold religious service~. meetings and other activit ic~. including buildings in whkh the 
religious services of any.denorninnl ions arc held. 
"Restaurant" means an estnblishment wi<h table services whose principal bu~incss is the ~rll i11 1:t of 
1111pnckagcd food and beverages to the customer in a ready to consumcslntc, in individual servings, or in 11011-
d isposablc conlainc.rs. 



RI. "Hcsl<1uranl, fo st food" means an cslablishmcnt whose principal husi11css is lhc sale of prcp;ucd or nopidly 
prepared food. in dispo~1blc containers and wilhoul lahlc service, dircclly to lhc cnslomcr in a rcady-ln
consume state. 

82. "Rel:til llusiness" means any business selling goods, warcs,ormerch:mdisc directly 10 the ultinintcconsunn:r 
for di rcCI consumption a11d not for rcs.ilc. 

SJ. "Rctoil neighborhood business" means small retail commercial establishments catering primarily tu ncarhy 
rcsidl'ntial :treas providingconvcnicnccgoodsand services, including bu1 not limited 10. ~mal l gmccry ~Ion"'!'. 
ph.rmacics. barber shops, beauty salo11s and coin-op Laundromats. 

84. "Scic11tilic research focil ity"' meonsa building or buildings in which scientific research. invcstigatiu11. tc;ti11g 
or cxpcrime11l:t1ion is conducted, but not including the manufacluring or ::mies of prod11c1s. c~ccpt a~ 
i11cidental tu the main purpose of the laboratory. 

85. "Semi-public buildings" means churches, Sunday schools, private and parochial schools. hospilals nnd olhcr 
institutions o f a charitable, educational or religious nature. 

86. "Shopping center" means a grouping of rctoil and service uses on a si11gk site that is dcvch•pe<t. owned ;11111 

managed as a unit with off-street parking and loading ns nn inlegral pnrt (lf that unil. 
87. "Story" means that port ion of"a building other llrnn a basement included between the surfhce of any ll<>iiraml 

the surface of the Ooor nextnbovc it, or if tilere i:; no floor above it, I hen the spncc hctwrL~n the noor a11d tl1c 

ceiling next :\bove it. A basement shall be counted as a story if it is used for living qunrtcrs, ur if une-ha\f pf 
its volun1e is nhove the averngc level of the adjacent ground. 

88. "Street Linc, Right-of-Way Linc" means a dividing line between a lot, trnct or parcel of land :md contiguous 
street. 

89. "Stmclurc'1 menus anything constructt:d or erected, the use of which requires pcrma11c11t locutio11 on 1hc 
ground. or ntt:.chcd to somclhing having a permanent location on the ground. 

90. "Structural Alterations" mci\ns any change which would tend lo prolong lhc lifo nf:i supflOrting mc111hcr of 
a strncture such as hcnri11g walls. columns, beams or girders. 

91. "Tavern" means an establishment serving alcoholic beverages in which the princi11al l111sincss is the 5alc 111" 

such bcvcrngcs nl retail for consumplion on the premises and where foo<l may be a\•ailablc forconsumplion 
on the prcmi~es. 

92. ..Transport Tnicking Terminal'' means ;my business. structures or premises which primarily receives or 
distributes guvds by tractor trailer or other similar vehicle. 

93. ..Use" means the purpo~ for which land, a building or stmcturc i ~ :irr:tngccl, dc~ig.ncd. or inlcndcrl, nr for 
which cilhcr land, a building or structure is. or may be, occupied or maintained. 

94. ..Use. Accessory" means a use, building or structure subordinate to the principal u5c of n building f'lr to the 
principal use ofland, which is located on the same Jot as the principal use, and which is ~crving a purpose 
customarily incidental to the use of the principal building or land use. 

95. "Use, conditionnl" means n use which is permitted in n district only if n zoning ccrl ificatc thcn:forc i<> 

expressly authorized by the Planning Commission. 
%. "Use, Non-C:onfonning" means any building, structure, or premises legally existing or used at the time of 

adoption of this Ordinance, or any amendment thereto, and which does not cm1form with Ilic use regulations 
of the district in which localed. Any such building, structure, or premises conforming in respect to use hot 
not in respect to height, area, yards, or distance requirements from more restricted dislricts or uses. slrnll not 
be considered a non·confonning use. · 

97. "Use, Principally Pcrmitte<l" means a use which is permitted outright inn di5trict for which n zo11i11g 
ccrtificnte shnll be issued by the Zoning Inspector provi<le<l !hat the applicant meets the <.1pplicaMc 
1cq11ircmcnls of the Ordirrnucc. 

9R. "Variance" 1ncnnsn relaxation of requirements where such variation will n0t be controry lo the public intcn."st 
and where, owing to conditions peculiarto the property and not the result of octions <>flhc applicant. a lil<ral 
enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance would prohibit the reasonable use of the lnml. 

99. "\Vnrchousing" rnenns a building or facility thnt stores eommodilies in l:irgc qunntilics f(--.r dish ihuli{ln lo 

retail, wholesale or manufacturing businesses. 
100. "Wholesale FllL<incss" means an establishment that is engaged in the sellin~ uf mcrchamlisc tu retai l 

establishments rather than to consumers. 
IOI. "Yard" means an open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot lines unoccupied arJ<I 

unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward, except as otherwise provided herein. 
In measuring a yard for the purpose of dctcnnining the width of a side yard. the dcplh of a fmnl Y"rd or the 
depth of a rear yard, the minimum horizontal distance between the lot line and the main builtlingshnll he med. 

I 02. ..Ynrd, Front .. mcnns o yard between the front building line and the right·of~w:ty line of the l"rontin):!. slrcct. 
In cnsc of n lot lhal fronts more than one street, the yard ahutting the strccl nmncd in Ille property address 
shall be considered the front yard. 

IOJ. ''Yard, Rcnr" mcnn~ a ynrd extending across the full widlh ofa lot and being the minimum hori1.~m1al d i~tnm:c 
between the rear lot line and the rearofrhc main building or any projection thereof, olhcr than the projections 
of uncovered steps or unenclosed porches. In the case of a lot that fron ts more than one street, lhc yard 
opposile the front ynrd s.hall be considered the rear yard. 

104. "Ynrd, Side" means a yard between the main building and the side line of the lot aml extend ing frn m the 
required front yard to the required rear yard and being the minimum horizontal distance between the side lot 
and the side of the main building or any projections thereto. 



1143.01 

1143.02 

114.1.03 

1143.04 

1143.05 

I 05. "/..omng Cc1tilicntc" means the document issued by the Zoning lnspccto1 auth111 i1.i11g the nse ul'thc la11<l ur 

building co11sis1cnt with thr terms or this Ordinance and for the purpose of carrying oul <tml cnforcin!!. ils 
provision~. 

106. "/..oning M'1p" means the Zoning District Map or Maps of the City, together with all ame11dmc11ts 
subsequently adopted. 

I 07. "Zoni11g lns~tor" means the Safcl)' Scn•icc Director of the City or his designcc. 
I 08. "Zoning Pcrmil" shall be synonymous wi1h Zoning Certificate, :md these two lcrm~ sh:tll he considered one 

and the some where listed wi1hin this Ordinance. 

l'URt'OSE 

CHAPTER 1143 
ADMI NISTRATION 

·1 his Ordinance sets both the powers mid duties of the Zoning Inspector. the Plan11i11g Co111111issio11. the lloard or 
Zoning Appeals, and lltc Design Hcvicw Commission with respect lo the adminislmtion ol'lhc p1ovisions ul'this 
Ordi1mncc. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TllF. 7..0NING INS PECTOR 
The Zoning Inspector shall ha,•e the following responsibilit ies and powers: 
A. Enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and inlcrprel the meaning and application or its provisions. 
ll. Receive. review nnd make determinations on npplications for zoning permils. 
C. Issue zoning ccrtificntcs nnd olhcr certificatcs ;md permits ns proviclect hy th\s Orclimmcc, and keep a record 

of sa111e with notntions of special cnndilions involved. 
D. Review and process plans pursumtl to lhe provisions of this Ordinance. 
E. Make dc1er111inations ns to whether ' 'iolalions of this Ordinance exis1. dclcrn1ine 1hc 11:i111rc oml extent 

thereof. a11d nolify the owner in writing, spccit)ring the exact nature of the violotion nnd 1l1c m:umcr in '"hich 
it shall be conectcd by the owner, pursuant to the procedures in this Ordinance. 

r. Conduct in.<pcctions or huildings and ll<CS of land lo determine co111plim1cc or ntlll·COlllplinncc wilh thi' 
Ordinance. 

G. Main1ain pcnnanentandcurrcnt records required by thisOrdinancc, including. but no1 li111itcd lo. the OJ'lieial 
Zoning Map. Zoning Certificates, inspection documenlS and records (lr all variances. amendments and 
cum.Jitional uses. These records shnll be inodc available for use of the City Council. Plmming Co111111ission, 
the Doard or Zoning Appeals nnd 10 the public. 

H. Revoke a certificate or approval issued contrary to this Ordinance or based on a false slatcmeut or 
misrcprcscnt:1tion in the application. 

I. The 7.oning Inspector shall be responsible for lhe collection and deposil of all recs for credit tu the Gcncrnl 
Revenue rund of the City. 

RE:SPONSlll lLITIES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Planning Commission shall have the following responsibilities and powers ns they rela1e to this Ordinance: 
A. htitiatc by recommendation to City Council, Oflicial Zoning Map changes, or changes in 1hc lext of lhc 

Ordinance where such changes will promolc the best interest oflhe public in gcncrnl. 
D. Review all proposed mncndmcnls lo the text of this Ordinance and li te Official Zoning Map and make 

recommendations to the City Council. • 
C. Review nil conditional uses ns ic.Jentifie<l in the respcctivc1.oning districts:tccording to provi ~i0ns nnd criteria 

slated in 1his Ordinance. 
U. Cnrry on n continuous review of the effectiveness and appropriateness ofthi!i: Or<linnncc nnd rcco111mcnd such 

changes or amendments ns it feels would be appropriate. 
F.. Review nnd act on site plans pursuant to the provisions and criteria stated in I his Ordinance. 
F. Review i'ml act upon reque~ts for substitution or enlargement of nonconforming u:;cs as~c l forth in Chapter 

1150. 
111c Planning Commission shall also have the responsibilities as sci forth in Chapter 145 oflhc Codified Ordinances 
or the Cily. 

1u :sl'ONSIBILITIES OF THE DOAHD OF ZONING APPEALS 
111e Doard o f Zoning Appeals shalt have the following responsibilities and _duties: 
A. Hear and decide nppcals where it is alleged there is an error in any order. reqnircment, deci•io11. 

inlc1 pretation or detenninalion made by the Zoning Inspector. 
B. Authori1.c such variances from the terms of this Ordinance as will not be conlrnry lo the puhlic intcrc•I. 

where, owing lo the ~pccial conditions. a literal enforcement of this Ordimmcc will prohihil rcnsonnhlc u~c 
of the property nnd so thal the spirit or lhis Ordinance shall be observed and snbstanlial jusli<e do11c. 
Procedure.~ for vt1rinncc5 ~h311 confonn to Section 11 53.04, Varir111ces. 

C. Hcnr and nile on appeals taken on the basis of a decision rcnc.Jerec.I by the Plnnning Com111issio11 or Dcsi~n 
Review Commi~sion. 

The Board of Zoning Appeals may call on the several city departments for assistance in ihc performance of its d111ic,. 
and ii shnll be the duly of such dcpartntenls lo render such assislancc to the Doanl of 7.onin!l Appeals a< mny 

. reasonably be required. 

HESPONSllllLITIES OF THF. DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION 
The Design Review Commission shall have the following responsibilities and duties. 

6 



1144.01 

1144.02 

1144.03 

1144.04 

A. 

B. 
c. 

I>. 

E. 

F. 

<1. 

Review at1d approve, or deny. all applicalio11s fur Ccrlific;i lcs of Design Approval. /\II applic:11inns :11c 10 

be adcd upon by !he Co111111issio11 within the lime period established in I 14R.04 of this Orcfo111ce. 
Work lo increase !he public awareness or the signi Ii ca nee of the District. 
Encourage property owners within the District to initiate changes. which will cnh;mcc the signilic:mccoflhe 
Dis1rict. 
Receive, semi, nm! account for an)' funds, which it may legally receive from ml)' source, for !he pu1p11sc uf 
cnrr)'ing oul the provisions of this Ordinance. 
Contrnct, as needed and os allowed by funding availability, technical experts to ful fi ll the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 
Keep minutes and records of all meetings and proceedings, including records of voting, atlcndancc. 
resolutions. find ings, detcnnin:ttion~ . and decisions, \\ith all pertinent matcri:t I bei11g :i 111nlter of p\1hlic rcccirtl. 
Perform any other functions necessary to carry out the duties required by lhi~ Ordinnncc. or hy l\tr1hcr 
rcsolul ion of Council. 

CHAPTER 1144 
ENFOHCEMENT 

ZONING INSPEC l"OR 
It shall be the duty of the Zoning Inspector to administer and enforce the Zoning Ordinance. 11 shall also 

he the duty of all officials and employees of the Municipality to assist the Zoning lnspcclor hy rcpMing tu him new 
construction, reco11sl111c1io11 or land nscs or apparent violations. 

Appeals from the decision of the Zoning Inspector may be made to the Board of'l.oninl! Appeal<. as pro\"idccl 
in Section 11 53. 

ZONING CERTIFICATF.S 
The following shall relate to Zoning Certificates: 
/\. II shall be unlowful for nn owner to use or lo initiate co1L<tructio11 or permit the use <>I" nny struchtrc. huihtinµ 

or land, or part thereof, hercafier created, erected, changed, converted or enlarged, wholly or partly. unti l 
a Zoning Certificate has been issued by the Zoning Inspector. It sl1nll be the duty of lhe 7.oning hL<pector 
lo issue a certificate, provided he is satisfied that the structure, building or premises and the prop<>scd use 
thereof conform to all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. No permit for excavation. co11'tructiun 
or reconstnaction sha11 be issued by the Zoning Inspector unless the plan!\1 spccificatinnsnnd the intended use 
co11form to lhc pmvision~of the Zoning Ordinance. All Zoning Ccrtificalcs shall expire 011c yenraftcr lhcir 
issuance unles~ coostruclion has reached fifty percent (50%} of completion. 

l3. Upon written request from lhc owner.or tcnanC. thc Zoning luspcctorslrnll issue a Zoning Cerlific;,lc IUr any 
building or premises existing ol the time of enactment of the Zoning Ordinance certif_ving. nfier inspection. 
lhc extent and kind of use made of the building or premises and wl1ethcr such use conforms to the provisions 
of the Zoning Ordin:mcc. No charge shall be made for issuing a Zoning Certificate in ;iccorclunce with this 
suh~cc ti on. 

C. The Zoning lns11ector must refer to the requirements of O.R.C. Section 5511.0 I before any zoning action 
is npproved near a proposed new state highway ora state highway for which changes arc proposed. i\ny land 
within 300 feet of such highway, or wi thin 500 feet of ait)' proposed state highway intersection work. is 
aITccted. Notice is to be sent to the Director of the Ohio Department ofTrnnsportation. 

CONDITIONS UNl>ER WHICH CF.RTIFICATES ARE REQUIRED 
A 7.oning t"ertificale shall be required for any of the following, except as herein provided: 
A. Con!iolruction. or strncturnl alteration increasing the square foot;ige of :u1y huilding. including nccrs.">tH')' 

buildings. 
B. Change in use of an existing building or accessory building to a use uf a dilfo1cnt classificat ion. 
C. Occupancy and use of vacant land. 
D. Change in the use ofland to a ttsc of a different classification. 
E. 1\ny change io the use of a nonconfonning use. 
f . /\ Z11ning Certificate may be required for all lawful nonconforming uses of land or buildings created by 

ad(>plion of the Zoning Ordinance or any amendments thereto. 

APPLICATION AND ISSUANCE OF ZONING CEHTIFICAn:s 
The following •hall npply to the issuance of Zoning Certificates: 
A. /\ c•unplctc written application shall be made for a Zoning Certificate for the constrnction of n new building 

or the nltcra tion of nn existing building. Such Certificate shall be issued within ten ( 10) business days afler 
n \\ritten request for the sruue has been made to the Zoning lnspcctor or his agent, providc<l the conslruclinn 
or olterntion is in conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Fl. Written application for a Zoning Certificate for the use ofvacnnt land, or for a chnngc in the use ofland or 
of a building, or fo r n change in a nonconforming u.~e, as herein provided, shall he made lo the Zoning 
Inspector. If the proposed use is in conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Orcli111111cc. the ccrtilicatc 
sholl be issued wi thin ten business days after the application for same has been mncle. 

C. Every application for a Zoning Certilicate shall be accompanied hy a plot plan , ond •uclt other plmts as nmy 
be necessary to show the location and type of buildings to be erected or altcrntio11s to he 111ado. Where 
crntt;lruction or physical improvement of the land is involved, the lot :md location of the huildings to he 

7 



Jl44.05 

1145.01 

1145.02 

creeled lhcrl'Oll shall be slaked out on the ground hcforc construction is slarlcd, and all di111c11si<111s shown 
0 11 llled plans shall be based on an actual survey. 
I . Each plan shall show: 

a. The street providing access to the lot and the exact localion of the lot in relation lo the 
nearest cross street. 

b. The nnme of the subdivision, if cmy, nml lite lol mnnbcrs of the subject property nnd nbuttin~ 
properties. 

c. The actual dimensions oflhe lot, the yard :ind other open space dimensions thereof. ancl the 
location and size of any existing structure thereon. 

d. The location and size of the proposed structures, and/or the proposed e11large111cnt of 1hc 
existing structure. 

e. Any other information which, in thcjudgmenl of the Zoning lnspeclor. nrny be ncccs~riry h1 
provide for lhe enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. The plan shall include stateme111s declaring tha1 no part of1he land involved in !he npplicalion has 
been previously used to provide required yard space or lot arcri for rmother struct11rc. 

J. \\'here complclc am! accurate infonnation is not readiJy nvailablc from cxisling rcconls, the i'.oning 
Inspector may require the nppticant to furnish a survey of the lot by a rcgislercd surveyor. 

4. Each application shall bear a statement acknowledging that all construction will he done in 
eompliancewith the Construction Standards of the City of Celina and any applicable building codes. 

5. Each prope1ty owner, or authorized agent, shall be required 10 attest 10 the correctness of 1hc 
statements nnd data furnished with the application. 

6. A file of such applications mid plans shall be kept in the office of' the Zoning Inspector. 
D. The Zoning Inspector shall no1 issue n Zoning Ceitificale for any application requiring any of the following: 

1. A Conditional Use Approval ns established in Chapter 1145; 
2. Si le plan review as required in Clrnpter 1146; 
J. An Overlay District Site Development Plan as required under Clrnpler 1147; 
4. A Certilicale of Approval as required under Chapter 1148, Design Review District. 
5. /\ pcrmil for the enlargement or suhstitution of a nonconforming use. 11!" required itl Clrnplcr 1150. 
Unless the application has been rctumed lo the Zoning (nspecior from lhc primary review bodies wilh 
instructions to issue. 
In cases where more than one of1he additional approvals listed above are required fo r a projcc1, thc order 
of submissions shall be: 

a) Design Review District Certificate of approval 
b) All Planning Commission action (Conditional Uses, Overlay Disltiel 

Site lJevcfopme11t l'la11 Review, Site Plan Review and Nonconforming Uses) 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals (Variances and Appeals). 

E. Fees: The City Council shall by Ordinance. establish a schedule of fees for zoning 
permits, amendments, appeals, variances, conditional use approvals. plan npproval.s. and other procedures 
and services pertaining lo the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance. after considering the 
rccommendatio11softhe Zoning lnspectorwilh respect to actual administrative costs, bolh direct nnd indirect. 
TI1e schedule of fees slrnll be posted in the office of the Zoning Inspector, nnd may be al1crcd or mncndcd 
only by the City Council. Until all such appropriate fees, charges, and expenses lwvc been paid in full, 110 
action shal1 be taken on any ;:ipplication, appeal, or administrative procedure. 

NONCOMPLIANCE 
Situations of noncompliance with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be remedied as outlined in Chapter 1199, 

"Violations, Remedies and Fccs11
• 

CONDITIONAL USES 

CHAPTER 11 45 
CONDITIONAL USES 

The Planning Commission may authorize, upon application, conditional uses as dclinealcd in this Chapter. Such 
conditional use requests shall confonn to the procedures and requirements of this Chapter. 

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
An Application forComli1ional Use Approval shall be filed with the Zoning Inspector by al least one owner. owner's 
ngcnt or lc~scc of proper1 ics for which such conclitiona1 use is proposed. The appl icalion shnl I be signed by the owner 
or applicant attesting lo the ftccuracy of all information supplied in the application. /\I a minimum, !he npplicntion 
shnll contoiin the following infonnation: 
A. Name, address and telephone m11nber of the owner of reconl and applicant; 
B. A boundary survey of1hc said propeity; 
C. Description of existing use; 
D. Present zoning district; 
E. Oescription of proposed conditional use; 

· F. A plan of1hc proposed site for the conditional use showing the location of all buildings. parking and loading. 
arcas1 trafiicacccss and traffic circulation, open spaccs, lnnrlscaping1 refuse and service arc11s1 utilities. signs. 
ymls and other such information as the Zoning Inspector may re.quire to determine if lhe propoc.cd 
conditional use meets the intent and requirements of this Ordinance~ 



11 45.0J 

1145.04 

1145.05 

1145.06 

1145.07 

1145.08 

1146.0 1 

ti. 

II. 
I. 

1\ slalrn1cnl mid suppo11i11g clocumenlalion describing how !he applicant believes the rc<111csl cunli•1111< 10 
lhc slnmbrds for co11dilio11al uses I isled in Section 1145.UJ; and 
An npplicnlion liling fee as established by Council; 
The Zoning Inspector nrny wnivc ccrtoin submission rcquiremcnls where it is dc(cr111i11cd that it is not 
apphcnblc. 

GENF.nAL STANOAno s FOR CONl)lTJONAL USES 
In addition lo specific rcquiremenls for conditionally permitted uses Umt may he s111.-cilied in the district use 
regulations. the Pln1111ing Commission shall review the particular facts a11d circumstances of e<1cl1 proJl(,Setl ' '~e in 
lcrms <•fthc followi ng slM1<lards and shall find oclequatc evidence showint: that "och use 111 thc proposed locntion: 
II. Shnll he in accordance wilh the general objectives of this Ordinm1cc: 
11. Shall be designed, eonslrucled, operaled and maintained so as to be hannonious :111d appn1p1 iatc in 

nppc:unncc with the exisling or intended charncter of the gencrnl vicinity: 
C. Shall not he hazardous or disturbing to neighboring uses; 
11. Shall be served ndequately by essential public fncilitics and services; 
lo. Shall not be dctrimenlal lo the economic welfare of lhe community; 
F. Shall not involve uses, nelivitic.•, processc.•, material, eqniprncnt •nlll/or conditions ol'(lpcration llrnl wi ll 

he delrimcntal lo cmy persons, property or the general welfare by reason of cxccs:- ivc pn11Juc1ion of 
trallic. noise. smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

li. When reviewing public service foci lilies, the adequacy and availability of existing services shall be 
consi<lcrcd. 

The Planning Commission shnll have the authorily to modify the requiremenls of a condi tional use. 

SU PPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS 
In granling any eondilional use, the Planning Commission may prescribe appropriate condili(lns nnd safeguards in 
conformity with 1his Ordinance. Violations of such con<litions and safeguards when m:ulc n parl of 1hc terms nuder 
which the enndilional usc is grnntcd shall be deemed a violation of this Ordinance. 

NOTICE TO PARTI ES OF INTEREST 
Wt iltrn no lice shall be mailed by the Planning Commission by first class mail at lr:ist seven days before 
the date or lhc lumring to lhe mcm1Jen of Planning Commi5sion and all property owuen wUhin 150 feel 
in any direction of the properly upon which on npplication for n conditionnl use nppro1·nl hns hecn tiled. 
The notice ~hall cont•in the !oration of the property, nature of lhe proposed condilionnl nse, and the time 
an cl place of the meeting. Tbe fa ilure to mnil or deliver notification '" providt·tl in !his pnrai:r:111h shall 
not invalidnte nny arrion of the Planning Commi~sion. 

ACTION RY TH E PLANNING COMMISSION 
\ :Vithin thirty (30) dnys afler their original consideraeion of a conJition~l ui;c npp1knlion, the Plnnning 
Commis5ion ~ hall e ither approve, apprO\'C wiCh supplementary con<.lifions us specified in S<'r lion 1145.04, 
or tlisappro\1c Che ap11Jic111io11 a5 present ct.I. If the application is apprm·cd or approved wil h 
supplrmcntary condilion~ 1 the Planning Commission shnJI direct lhc Zoning Ins pert or to i~suc a 7.cndng 
perm ii listing Che specific condilions s11ccHic<l by the Phmning Commission fo r ap11rontl. 

Al'PEALS 
Appeals from the Ph11111ing Commission forco11dilional usessJrnll be 111;1de to the Ho~rd of Zoning /\p1>cals pmsuanl 
lo Scctinn 1153. 

EXPIHATION OF CONDITIONAi, USE APPROVAL 
I\ condilio1ml use approval shall be deemed to aulhori1.e only one particularconditimrnl use nncl such approval shall 
autornaticallycxpire if, for any reason, the conditional use has ceased bydisco11tinua11ccorabandon111c11t f(1ra pcric1d 
of more that one year. 

C HAPTER 1146 
SITE PLAN GUIDELINES STANDARDS 

APPLICAnlLlTY 
In order to a<lminister the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance and to evaluate site plans in the interest oft he 
public health, safely and general welfare, this Chapter shall apply to new property development and any 
collective subsrantial expansion of existing structmes, except for individual single fomily dwellings and two 
family dwellings (duplexes) and parking. lots offil'e(S) spaces or smaller. Snbstnntial expnnsion of cxisring 
.•trnclmes shnll be defined based on the criteria established below: 

When Existing Structure is .... A Suh.•lnntinl F.xpnnsion is .... 

9 



1146.02 

l 14Ci.03 

1146.04 

---------·---------------·~---

0-1,000Sq. Fl. 
1.001 - 10,000 Sq. Fl. 
10.001 - 25.000 Sq. Fl. 
25,oo I - 50,000 Sq. FL 
50,001 So. Fl. and lar"'er 

50% or Circa1er 
40% or Grc:ller 
.l0%orUm'1cr 
20% or Grcr\tcr 
10%or(jre<llcr 

Furthcnnorc, no building shall be erected or structurally altered on any lot or parcel in cases where n site plnn review 
is required. except in accordance with the regulalions of this section rincl an approved site plan. Nu Zoning 
Ccnilicate shall be issued prior lo the approval of a site plan. 

CONTENTS OF SITE PLAN 
Before a permit is issued for construct ion, one copy of the site plan al a scale no smaller thm1 I inch 10 I 00 lcct sl1"11 
he filed with the Zoning Inspector setting forth, identi fying and locating the following: 
1\ . The total area in the development. 
fl . ll1e existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties. 
C. All public and private riglll-of-way and casement lines located on or acljncent to the properly. 
D. Existing topogrnphy with a maximum of five (5) foot contour intervals. 
E. The proposed finishc<l grade of the development shown by contours not lmgcr tha11 one (I) foot. 
I'. The locations of all existing and proposed buildings in the described parcels. the '"cs lo he contained thcrciH 

and the total number of buildings i11cluding <limcn:iions, heights, gross floor area anrl number or stories. 
G. Location and dimension of all curb culs, driving lanes, off-street parking and loading areas including the 

number of spaces, angles of stalls, grades, surf.icing materials, drainage plans. and ill11mi1rntion of fnc ili lics. 
I-I. All sidewalks and other open nreas. 
l. Location of nll walls, fences, and buffer ynrds. 
J. Location, size, height, C(llors, typeset, materials, lighting, and orientation or all :::;igns. 
K. Location of all existing streets, highways and alleys. 
L. All exist ing and proposed water nnd sanitary sewer lines Jndica!ing pipe sizes. types ;md grad~s . 

M. The schedule ofplrnsing of the project. 
Such other information as required by the Planning Commission to detcm1inc the cu11forma11cc wilh this Ordimmcc. 

SITE PLAN IU~vmw GUIDELINES 
The following principles shall guide the exercise of site planning review by the Plnnning. Commissiou: 
A. The natural topographic •nd landscape foatures of the site shall be incorporntcd into the plan amt the 

develop1\1cnt. 
ll. Buildings and open spaces shall be in proportion and in scale with existing structures and spaces in the area 

within three hundred (300) feet of the development site. 
C. /\ sile that has an appearance ofbcingcongeslcd, over built or cluucred can evolve into a blight in~ i11n11cncc 

and therefore such shall not be congested, over built or clullered. 
D. Open spaces shall be linked together. 
E. Natural separation shall be preserved or created on the sile by cnreful planning uf the streets and clustering 

of buildings using nalural fcalures and open spaces for separation. Existing vegetation removal :'\hall he kept 
ton miniinu111. · 

F. Screening of intensive uses shall be provided by utilizing landscaping, fence!; or walls to enclose internal 
areas. 

G. Duildingsshall be sited in an orderly, non-random fo:shion. Lung, unbroken \1uilding foc<1dcs sh.111 be cw oidcJ. 

H. Short loop streets, cul-do-sacs and residential streets shall be used for access lo low density resident ial lmul 
uses in order to provide a safer living envirorunent and a stronger sense of neighborhood identity. 

I. Pedestrian circulation in nonresidential areas shall be arranged so lhal off-street parking areas arc located 
within a convenient walking distance oflhe use being served. Handicapped parking shall be located os near 
as pussiblc to the cnlranec oflhc stmcturc. Pedestrian nncl vehicular circulation slrn11 he sepnratcd :'\S much 
as possible through crosswalks designated by pavement markings, s ignaL!e. or gr;idc sc1mmlion. 

J. Path ond sidewalk street crossings shall be located where there is a good sight distance along the road. 
prcl'crnbly away from sharp bends or sudden changes in grade. 

K. Parking Jots and garages shall be loca.tecl in such a way as to provid.c safe, convenient ingress :md cgrc~s. 
Whenever possible there shall be a sharing of curb cuts by more tha11 one facility. Pnrking. meas slrn ll be 
screened nnd l<imlscnped nnd tramc i:<ilandsshall be provided to protect circulating, vehicles mid to break up 
the monolony of continuously paved areas. 

L. Drive through establishments, such as restaurants and banks, sl~1ll be located to allow cnollgh Oll lomobilc 
waiting space for peak hour opcrntion without intcrlCrencc with other parking lot circul:itions. or over now 
onto streets. 

ACTION nv PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SITE PLAN HEV!EW 
Upon st1b111 ission of the complete application for site plan review to the Zoning Inspector. the applicat ion shall be 
trn11smit1ed to the Plnru11ng Commission for review pursuanl to Section 1146.03, 0 S itc Plan RcviC\\.' Guidelines". 
Notice of all public meetings shall~ given as required by State law, and the Planning Commission 111;1y hC\ ld a public 
heming on nny site plnn review application. 
The Planning Commission shall act upon •II site plans within thirty-five (35) dnys aficr the receipt of the complete 
application frolll the Zoning Inspector. The J'hmning Commission may approve~ disapprove or <lpprovc wil h 
modifications the site plnn as submitted. \Vithin the said thirty.five (JS) dny period, n nrnjnrity nf the members nr 

10 



1146.05 

l 147.0l 

1147.02 

1147.0~ 

I 147.ll4 

lhc l'ln1111i11g Com111issi(111 prcscnl nl n mccling lhcrcofmay vole lo ex lend the review period up l1> nn addilional sixty 
(60) days. 

Al' l' F,ALS 

Appeals of <lctcnninations by the l'la1111i11g Commission regarding silc plans shall be made lo the Board of Zoning 
Appeals. 

CIIAl'TE R 11 47 
OVEl{Li\ Y DISTRICTS 

l'll!U'OSE 
An Overlay District is intended to provi<le for nnd promote orderly gro\\1h in certain areas in lhc City dcsigrmlcd as 
having distinc1ivc, scenic. or unique characteristics and importance. \Vithiu these Districts, locnli1.ccl nctioll.'> .ire 
implemented !f.'r tl1c pn;itccti<J 11, preservation and enhancement of these unique nml muur(ll ris:c:cl~ to Ilic co11111111ni1y. 

Al'PLICA BILITY 
/\. /In Overlay District is established by Cily Counci l, superimposed in specific orcns over the exist i n~ Zan i n~ 

Mnp, where: 
l. Zoning distr icts indicate incompatibility of use; and 
2. Any plans adoplcd by the City for that area arc furlhercd by the use of this type ()fdislrict. 
In establishing lhese Oislricts, Council shall outline lhe various ways in which the gcnernl regulations of1hi.< 

Ordinance nre lo be supplcmenled and/or modified wilhin lhe described dislricl. 
B. /Ill rcgulnlions in the Code for lhe underlying district slrnll apply until rr sile dcvclopmcnl plan is approved. 
C. Upon approval of a site dcvclopmcnl plan. devclopmcnl and use oflhc property shall be in accordance with 

the plan. 

PERMITTED BUILDINGS, USES AND OTHER R EGULATIONS 
/\. Principally Permincd Buildings and Uses 

u. 

c. 

D. 

E. 

Those buildingsnnd uses principally pcrrniUed in thcunderlyingdi<tricl shall he pcrrniucd in accordance\\ i1h 
all applicable regulations oflhat underlying district, and subjccl lo the additional specific rcs1ric1i1111s on 
dcvclopmenl anci use lhc Overlay Dislricl imposes. 
Accessory Uuildings and Uses 
Accessory buildings and uses shall be pcnnilled if approved by the Planning Commission as lx:inl! con>islcnl 
with the purposes and provisions of this Chapter. 
Access Management 
As parcels within the Overlay Dislricts are purchased, consolidaled and redeveloped, access managcmcnl 
musl be implemented lo control the nnmberof curb cuts lo improve vehicular and pedestrian circulatio11 and 
safety. 
I. /\ II new nonresidcnlial development within an Overlay District shall require a Traffic lmpacl Study 

2. 

J. 

to determine any thorough fore improvements which may be required from the. impricl of lhe new 
development. _ 
Where deemed necessary by 1hc City Engineering Ocpart111cnt. fro1n the review oflhr. 'T'r::iffic l111pac1 
StmJy1 a froll1~gc rom.l may be required for certain <levelopmcntslrcdcvclC'pmcnl ~. 

When two or more pnrccls nre de,·clopcd or redeveloped under the same owner or ns part oflhc snmc 
development, all curb cuts slrn11 be consolidated into one ingress/egress ns indicnlc<l on the Sile pl<1n 
ond as opprovcd by lhe City Engineering Departme111. 

Building and Use Requirements 
The main and accessory buildings shall 1necl the regulations of any dislricl in which such buildings nor use.• 
would be permillcd. I flhcmain and accessory buildings arc 1101 pcnnillcd i111hc u111lcrlyi11g1lislric1.1hcy shall 
conform 10 the regula1ions of1he nearcsl dislrict lo lhcsitc within which lhey are11lluwcd. AJdilior'"lly they 
shall meet lhc following: 
I. /\ll lhc requirements established by the Planning Commission and Council pursunnl lo lhc pur poses 

and provisions of this Chnpl~r; 
2. ll1e conditions and demands of any adopted plan affecting the dislricl; and 
). The dcloils oflhe site developmenl plan. 
1,.,,1dscaping and Slrcelscaping 
Plans shall include landscaping and buffer ing as part of lire plan review procc5". 

ST /\NDARIJS FOR REVIEW /\ND APPROVAL 
/\. 111e use of property in lhc Overlay Dislricl, in accordance wilh a site plan (pursum11 10 the rcq11ircn1cnls nf 

Chapler 1146 oflhis Ordinance), shall be pcm1illcd only if the proposed site devclnp111c11l plan. hy ils natmc. 
or hy reason oflhe controls imposed by the Planning Commission and Council : 

I. Is not an adverse infl uence 011 ony abulling or surrounding propertic$; 
2. Provides for nn orderly transition and promotes compatibili ty hctwcc11 d i ~tr i cls~ 
3. ls in full compliance with the purposes of this Zoning Ordinance and thi$ Chnptcr; 
4. Pm1hers and conforms to lhc goals of l11c Celina Land Use Pion as a,Jopl«I hy the l'ily: and 
5. [~designed to maximize the public interest and private bcnclit in n h<t lnnccU 11Hu111cr. 

It is the rc!'ponsibility of the developer to tlcmo11stratc compliuncc wilh each of lhc nbovc s111tctl slmHlomls. 

II 



1147.0S 

IJ. 'I lie folluwi11g foctorsorchnractcrislics, along with olher rcquirc111c11ts i1111x1scd hy the l'l111111 i11g C<1111111issio11 
for such 11sc. consistcnl with the provisions of this Chapter shall be co11si<l~rcd in n•scs~ing a 11roposc•I silc 
<lcvelopn1c111 plan: 
I . !'ermined 1ypcs of use(s); 
2. lnlensily of use in terms of: 

a. Density. noor nrea or impervious surface ratio (l.S.R.); 
b. Traffic impacts; or 
e. Oiher environmenlal impacts such a< noise, light, pollulion, etc.; 

3. Fu11c1ional and aesthetic compatibility with existing or proposed dcvclopme11t; 
a. l.a11dscaping and buffering of the site; and 
b. Cornplim1ee with the development goals of an adopted 11lan for the Ci1y or I hat area uf !he 

Ci1y. 
C. To secure the Application of all relevant sla11dards lo the development of lhe Overlay Dislricl. 1he Pla11ning 

Commissio11 shall rcco111111end: 
I. Fron!, side and rear yard requiremenls,de11sity requirements, height :ind hulk ofhuilding m1uircmcnl< 

and inlensity of use; 
2. The use of 1natcrials or designs in the ereclion of structures which sl1nll 111ini1ni1.c tile ndvcl'!'\c i1111lttcl 

of lhe uses proposed by the development plnn on neighboring properlics; 
3. Penni ts or vnrianccs for docks, business signs, outdoor storage, parking spaces. loading docks und 

driveways; 
4. The screening or setting aside areas of land to serve as a buffer of lhe proposed use in the Ovcday 

District from adjacent properties by walls, fences, landscaping or open 5puccs: :1nd 
5. Such addilionol conditions and limitalions on use, building dimensions. open spaces and lhc like os 

may be deemed necessary to carry out the inle111 of this Chapler and this Zoning Ordinance. 
D. /\ll 1he powers exercised pursuant to 1147.01 ihrough1 147.05 shall serve lhe ohjcctivcs lo create orderly 

transitions between dislricts, lo minimize adverse impacts of one district upon lhc other, and lo prornole the 
development of property in 1he Overlay District. 

SUDMISSION AND REVI EW OF SITE DEVELOPM ENT PLANS 
/\. Sile OC\·eloprnent Plans Required 

Sile Development Plans shall be required for all new developmcrll wilhin lhe Overlay 1Ji51ricls and for 
substanlial rcdcvclopmcnl where 35% or more of the site is altered or rcconstmctccl. 

B. !:iitc Development Plan Rc,..icw Fees 
Fees and deposits slmll be pnid according to the provisions of Chnptcr 11 99, Violations, Remedic•. and Fees. 
The appropriate deposit shall be made at the lime of submission of plans. 

C. Submission of Sile Development Plans 
Sile plans shall be submitted lo the Planning Commission by the applicant nl least two (2) weeks prior 10 its 
meeling. Plans incomplele or filed late may not be accepted for review by the Commission al ils 111ce 1in ~ 

D. Site Dcveloprne111 Pinn Reviews 
U11on receipt of the development plans, copies shall be dis tribulc<l to lhe rollowing for their review: Il ic 
Zoning Inspector, 1he Lnw Director, the Engineering Dep¥tmcnl, nn<l any planner or consullanl 1hc 
Commission feels is necessary for technical inpul. 
The respective individuals or ngenls should report bock to lhe Commissio11 with 1hdr notations and 
recommendations within the two (2) wccks. The Plmming Commission mtty h<Jld the pl:.11 for thirty (30) dilys 
a Iler receipl of the plan, 10 receive any oflhe above reports. This period may be extemlcd by wrillen notice 
lo the appl icant by lhe Commission. 

E. Site Development Plan Evalualion by Planning Commission 
After the site development plan has been filed with lhe Commission, it shall be cvahraled in accordance wilh 
the slandards sel forth in this Chapter and lhc requirements oflhc Overlay District If the plan corrcspondi 
to the requirements set forth in lhis Chapler and !hose of the Overlay Oislrict. lhe C-ommission shall 
incorpomtc ii as part of the zoning permit and endorse the permit for approval. 

F. Plan Cha11gcs Following Approval 
Once approved, no changes are to be made to an approved plan withnnt lhc plan approval hci11g forfri1ctl 
unless the fo11owing procedure is followed: 
The holder of any approved plan may request an amendment lo !heir pla11s. and such 1'C<111est shall I>< 
sub111itted to the Planning Commission. l l1c Commission mny approve minor <k:p;:wtt1rcs to the pl:in thrul1gl 
written notice to the applicant. If the Commission believes the mncndmcnt represents a dcp:nturc fro111 1l1< 
intent of, or a mnjor dcpnrture from !he subslance of the sile development plan, 1he11 such a111c11dment •lrnl 
be subject lo the same conditions and procedures of approval as the originnl application. For lhe pmp<.>sc: 
of 1his Section, a "major departure from the subslance of a sile development pla11" shall include. hut 11111 I>< 
lirniled lo, lhc addilion of a use nol i11cludcd in the approved site dcvclop1nenl pl:in. 

G. Board of Zoning Appeals Review 
If the site developmenl plan is not approved, the 11pplicm1t shall have lhc righl to 11ppeal lhe dccisi"n lo tla 
Board of Zoning Appeals in the same 1111n111cr as rejeclion of nny zoning perrni l applicaiion. 

H. Following Final /\pprovnl 
Following 1he rinal approval o[ a site devcloprncnt plan, the Zo11ing lnspcclor shall be nolilicd. ~nd once nl 
fee paymcnls are satisfied a permit or permits shall be issued based on the pion :1nd m11c11dmcnls. 

CHAPTER 1148 

12 



1148.01 

11 411.02 

1148.03 

1148.04 

DESIGN REVIEW 

l'UIU'OSE 
Due to the unique, natural, architectural, and historical clmrnctcristics exhibi ted wi thin the City of Celina and the 
desire lo provide a sense of coh~sivcncss in ccrlain areas, a Design Review Dislricl m;iy he established to aid in lhis 
pursuit. The Design Review District will permit the City to provide additional standards and regulations. through 
review of <lc\'clopmcnt n11 c1 redevelopment project~ within thc.';C districts, to nccomplish the ;1 forc111c11tioncd 1 n 1 rpose~. 

l~STADl.ISllMENT or DISTRICT llOUNDARIES AND DESIGN HEVJEW COMM ISSION 
The establishment of district bound:1rics and the Design Review Commission shall he as follows: 
A. Council may establish dislricls as part of lhc ofricinl z.oniug mnp where design review is rcquiicU ns per 

Chapter 1148. The procedures established under Chapter 11 57 shall be followed ror the cstabli , hmcnt of 
these dist ricts. 

IJ . A Design Review Commission shall be established for each l>esign Review Distric t. It shall consist nffi vc 
(S) members, all residents of t he Municipali ty appointed by the Mnyor ancl " 'bjcct to npproval nfCounciL 
The terms shall be for four (4) years with two of the initial me111bers being :ippoinlcd to (W<• (2) )'l':l r ter111s. 
Members may be reappointed. One member shall be n property owner or resident of the design review :irca. 
All members shall have, to the highest extent possible, a recognized knowledge of, or known interest in. 
historic preservation, architectural, or design disciplines. At least one member shall have a pr<•fessio11al 
background in architectural. engineering, conlracting~ or olhcr similar co11structio11/<lcsign profession. r11c 
Commission shall adopt its own rules of procedure consistent with this Ordinance. 

C. The duties of the Design Review Commission arc to: 
I. Review and approve or deny all npplicatio11s for Certificates of Design Approval. All applicali•ll" 

arc to be acted upon by the Commission within the time period established in Section 1148.04 of1hi, 
Chapter. 

2. Work to increase the public awareness of the signifi cance of the district. 
3. Encournge property owners within the district to initiate changes which will enhance 1hc.sig11ilicm1cc 

of the district. 
4. Receive, send and account forony fu nds which it may legally receive from any source fo r the purpose 

of carrying out the provisions of this Ordinance. 
5. Contract, as needed nnd as allowed for by funding av:ii labilily, technical cxpcns to fulr.tl the 

provisions ofthis Ordinance. 
6. Keep minutes and records of nil meetings nnd proceedings, including records o r vo ti11g . ;~ll endrmcc 

resolutions, findings,dctennin11tions,and decisions, "vilh all pcrti11cnt material being a mntterofpublic 
record. 

7. Perfonn any other functions necessary to carry out the duties required by this Ordinance. or by fun hc1 
resolution of Council. 

CERTIF ICATE OF DESIGN HEQUIRED 
No new construction or exterior alteration shall he made to any property within the Design Review District until r 
Certificate of Design Approval has been issued by the Design Rcview_Ooard. No Zoning Certificate shall be issucc 
for nny si te improvement, signs, conslruction, reconstruction, altcra1ion or demolition of nny stru c:lUrc: now rn 
hereafter in a Ucsign Review District, unless n Certificate of Design Approval lms been issued. 

PROCEl>Utn; l 'Ull CF.RTlflCAT E OF DESIGN APPROVAL 
A. The application for a Certificate of Design Approval shall be made on such forms as prescribed by 1he Zoni n1 

Inspector not less than eleven ( I I) days prior to the meeting of the Design l(cvicw Commission and shal 
include the following data: 
I. Two (2) complete sets of drawings and supplemental specifications. imlicnting the building o 

structure exactly as it is proposed to be built. Additional sets may be requested. Such document: 
shall be accurately drawn to scale and dimensioned. 

2. A site plan, drawn lo scale, showing thc plot configuration and its perimeter dimensions. all structure: 
on the site with locating dimensions, the location of nll structures adjacent to the site within fi lly ( 50 
feet of the property line, and all vehicular drives, roads, related parking areas, main walks, walls 
fern:es and major existing landscaping including trees of 6" caliper as mcnsurccl 18" from top n 
ground in area affected by construct ion. In nddition.a vicinity map, a north arrow, the first floor lc\·c 
<lml cxi !; ting and finished grade elevations at each corner of new construction nnc..1 nt cnch comer o 
the site shall be indicated. 

3. four elevation drawings irn:luding front, rear and two side elevations together with addit ional view 
or cross sections, if necessary, to indicnte completely the exlcrior appcnrancc of lhc struct11rcs. /\ I 
elevations shall be drawn to the <ame scale, which slrn ll he not less than 011c-qunrtcr inch per fo ol 
&ch elevation shall show the accurate location of windows. doors, shullcr~. chimneys. porches nnc 
other architectural fentures, all materials and fi nishes, ond an accumtc finish grade line. 

4. Additional details to show unusual construction. 
5. Material and color samples of all major finish materials, which slmll be presented at the Dcsig 

Review Commission's meeting. 
6. Dra.\\.'ings or photographs of existing structures that arc lo remain on Ilic si1e where new slnrclurt· 

me to be constructed. \Vhere additions arc to be constructed to ex.isling sl ructurcs. clcv11tio 
drawings or phNographs showing the location of the alidition slrn ll b4! included. 

13 



1148.05 

I 148.06 

i 148.07 

1148.08 

ll. The Design Review Commission shall dclcr111i11c whether the proposed cha11gc will he ;ippr(•pri;ilc 10 1hc 
preservation oftllee11virn11mental, architeeturnl or historic chnmclcr of the Design Review District pursuant 
lo lhc general and specific criteria. In determining lhe appropriatc11css of' the chm1ge. the Design l(l'vicw 
Commission may conduct public hearings on the project or solicit input from City slllff or co 11sul 1;111l~ to tl1c 

Cily. The criteria contained in Section I 148.05 ;md the Design Review District Uuidcbot'k shnll he u:;;cd hv 
the Design Review Commission to guide their decision. . 

C. The Cit)' shal l nol issue a Zoning Ccrlificalc or Demolition perm ii unt il lhc Certificate of Dcsi~n Approval 
has been approved by lhe Design Review Commission. 

IJ. The Design Review Commission shall consider alt npplications that have been properly submillcd to it and 
npprovc, approve wilh conditions, ordisnpprovc the application within forty~fivc (i15)daysufsuch item's first 
nppcarance on !Is agenda unless a time extension is mutually agreed to by the npp1icrmt rmd the Ucsign 
Review Commission. 

E. Approvals by the Design Review Commission shall be valid for one year li"om the dale ofnnal ac1io11. The 
Zoning Certificnte must bcobtnincd nnd construction must begin prior to the cxpir<1tion of°<me ycm from !he 
date of linal riction. An approval may be extended once for one year. Applications for cxtc11sio11111us1 he 
made in writing to the Design Review Commission prior to the ex pi mt ion dntc or initial apprnvnl. 

F. The Design Review Commission, may at its discretion, designate an authorized representative 10 approve or 
disapprove npplicntions for Certificates of Appropriateness for minor site improvements, construction. 
reconstruction, cx<crior al lerations, or demolilion of slructurcs. 

GF-NERAL CRITERIA !'OR EVALUATION OF APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATES OF DESIGN 
APPROVAL 
In determining whether the plan ~ualifics fora Certilicate of Design Approval, the Design Review Commission shall 
consider those factors listed below which are relevant to the work. Jn applying the factors listed below. the Design 
Review Commission shall be guided by the Design Review District Guidelines, as adopted ot amended by City 
Council. The Design Review Commission shall issue a Ce11ificate of Design Approval i r the pmrm.ml plan is in 
compliance with these Design Review Llislrict Guidelines. The plan shall be approved subject lo conditions"' 
necessary to assure the work is in compliance with the Design Review Dis1ric( Guidelines. 
A. Consistency and compatibility with any plnns for the Design Review District which have been adopted by Cit; 

Council. 
B. Compatibility with the building and slrueturnl patterns in the surrounding Design Review District. 
C. The quality of design and site planning being promoted by the proposed improvements. 
D. ·1 he avoidance of visual clutter crea ted by unnecessarily large amounts nnd sizes of signagc. and the 

encouragement of signagc that rcOecls the scale and materi:i.fs of l'I dcvclopmcnl 's struc<ure. 
E. Any :td\•erse effect on the ricccss to the property by fire, police, or other public service~; access to light ant 

air from. and for, adjoining properties; traffic conditions; or the development, u•cfolness, or value ot 
neighboring land and buildings. 

I'. The elimination or avoidance of blight. 

DEMOLITION 
A. In cases where an applicant applies for a Certificate ofDesig11,Approval to demolish a structure within th< 

Design Review District, the Design Review Commission shall grant the demolition and issue a Ccrtiflcale o 
Design Approval to demolish when al least one of the following conditions prevail: 
1. The structurecontnins no features ofarchitccturn1 and historic significilm;c which add to the ch;imctc 

of the Design Review lJistrict. 
2. There is nu rcasm1ahle economic use for the stmclurc as it exists or as it might be restored, and tlrn 

there is no feasible and prudent alternative to demolition. 
3. Deterioration has progressed to the point where it is not eco1mmic:i.!ly fcasihlc to reslore th1 

strnclure. 
13. If the Design Review Commission disapproves an application fo r Certificate of Design Approval i11vol\'in1 

:i demolition or removal of an historicHlly nnd architecturally significant structure within the fJislrict. th 1 

Design Review Commission shall have the power to impose a wniting period 1101 to cxc.ccd six nHmlhs 
During such period, the npplicanl shall make every reasonable effort to find a demol ition altcrn;itivc for tha 
structure. During the waiting period the owner of such structure shall 11rnin1ai11 nnd preserve lhc ~tructun 
to prevent further deterioration. If the Design Review Commission a.ml the applicant do nnl :igrcc on : 
means of preserving the structure within the specified waiting period. rind if evidence is prmJucc1 
docnmcnting the existence of nt least one of the conditions set forth nbove in sub1'ection (A). lhc Cc11ilicnt• 
of Design Approval to demolish shall be issued as" rnallcr of law upon expiration of the wniling period. 

MAINTENANCE 
Nothing in this Chapter sli.11 be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair of any property wilhill 
Design Review District, provided such work involves no change in mntcrial. design. texture. color ur ex lcrin 
appcarnnec; nor shall anything in this Chapter be construed to prevent any repair of structural dcficic11cy which i 
required for the public safety because or an unsofc, insecure or dangerous condition. 

APPEALS 
Any applicant aggrieved by any decision of the Design Review Commission may appeal the decision to the Boar 
of Zoning Appeals. Such appeal shall be taken in accordance with the procedures sci forth in Chnplcr 1 t 5). Th 
l3oardof7.oning Appeals shall affirm Che decision of the Design Review Commission unless ii 1iJ1ds th;1l lhcdccisi11 

14 



11 50.01 

11 50.02 

1150.03 

1150.04 

1150.05 

1150.06 

11 50.07 

1150.08 

is conlrnry lo law. In lhe cvenl ll1a1 Ilic lloard of Zoning Appeals clocs 1101 nlnnn lhc decision nf"lhc l>e<ign Rcvil'w 

Commission. ii 1113)' reverse, renmnd or modify such decision of the Design Review C1>111111ission anJ shall stale the 
reasons therefore in lhe minulcs of ils meeting and shall forward a copy nf such 111in111cs 111 ihc Design Review 
Commission. 

C HAl'TF.R 1150 
NONCONFORMING USES 

CONTINUATION OF EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES 
Except a~ hercinaOer spccilicd, the lawful use of a building or premises ex isling al the lime oflhc cffct.:li\·c dnlc or 
lhis Ordinance which is 26-99-0 which would render 1hc use nonconforming. nrny be conlinuccl all hough such use. 
building, or s1mcturc docs not conform wi th the provisions uflhis Chapler fur lhe dislricl in which ii is localed. It 
is 1101 the inlcnsion herein to classify ns nonconforming, a use or building nllowcd inn district as n co11clifion:il usc 
under lhc regulolions of 1hc Zoning Ordinance. 

ENLAIHmM F:NT OR SUOSTlTUTION OF NONCONFORMING USES 
Nu ex isling building or premises devoted to a use nol penniltcd by this Cha pier in the distr ict in which such building 
or premises is located, except when required to do so by law or order, sh•ll be enlarged, cxlcndc<I, rcconslruclcd, 
substituted, or structurally altered lo increase its nonconformity unless the use thereof is changed lo a use pcrmilled 
in lhe district in which such building or premises is located, and except •s fo llows: 
A. E111nrgeme11t or Substitution; When authotized by the Plmming Co111111issio11, in ;1ccClr<lm1cc wi1l1 Sccli1111 

11 50.02 thru 1150.05," nonconfonning use, that has not been discontinued as specified in Section 1150.(16. 
may be enlarged nnd/or replaced by another nonconforming use. 

B. Enlargement: \\~1cn authorized by the Planning Commission, nonconforming buildings may be enlarged as 
long as the building meets all minimal yard requirements in the district in which ii is located. 
/\ddilionnlly, all snch extensions shall not exceed 100% of the floor area oft he slruct11re existing at the time 
it became nonconforming. All such extensions on stmctures nonconforming bcrnuse of use shnll he made 
within five (5) ycarsofbccomingnonconforming. Extensions may be made on a lol adjoining. provided lhat 
snch lot wn.~ under the same ownership as the lot in question on 1hc dale s11eh building hcrn111c 
nonconfonning. 

ltEl'LACING UAMAGEU NONCONFORMING USES 
A nonconfonning 11sc, which has been damaged to the exlcnt of sixly perccn1(60'Yo) or more of the C:o11111y Audilors 
value as listed in lhc Mercer County Auditor's records at lhc time of clamngc, shnll not be rcslorcd except in 
conformity wiU1 the regulations of the district in which il is located. \Vhcn danrn.g.ed less than sixty percent (60%) 
of its County Auditors value. n nonconforming use may be repaired or reconstructed within the dimensions prior lo 

lhe damage, and used as before the time of damage. Such repairs or rcconstrnclion arc lo be eornplclc within one 
year of the cfotc of such damage. 

NONCONFORMING TRAILERS AND MOBILE HOMES 
Non-conforming trnilcrs or mobile homes localed on a lot in nny dis trict olher than in nn npprovccl Mobile I lorne 
Park in an "ll-3" Dislricl, once removed $hall not be relocated on such lol. 

REPAIRS ANU ALTERATIONS 
Such repair~, alterations and maintenance work as required to keep said nonconl'ormi11g use i11 svuml cumlition 111ny 

be made ton nonconfom1ing building or structure. 

UISCONTI NlJANCE OF USE 
No building, structure or premises where a nonconfonning use has discontinued, for a period of 12 continuous 
months or ntorc. shall again be put to a nonconfonning use. Discontinued shnll mean thal the slruclure has remained 
vacant, unoccupied, unused or has ccasctl the daily activities or operations which Imel occurred. 

ZONING CERTIFIC ATES FOH NONCONFORMING USES 
A Zoning Certificate shall be required for all lowful nonconforming uses ofland and buildings crcaled by adoplion 
of lhe Zoning Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of Section 1144.02 0 . 

Al'PLICATION FOR A P ERMIT FOR ENLARGEMENT OR SUBSTITUTION OF A 
NONCONFOnMING USF, 
/\n 11pplication shall be filed with the Zoning lnspeclor by al least one owner, owner's ngcnl or lessee of propcrlics 
for which such cnlorgcmcnt or substitution i' proposed. The application shall be signed hy 1hc applicanl. /\ta 
mini111um, thc applicntionslrnll cpntnin the fo llowing information, proviclctl however. thal tl1c Zo11i11g lnspcclor may 
wnive certain submission requirements where it is determined that il is not orplicablc: 

. A. Name, add re~~ :rnd telephone mun her of the owner of rccor<l nnd npplicunt. 
B. A boundary survey of said properly. 
C. Descriplion of cxi<1ing use. 
D. Present wning district. 
E. Dcscrip1io11 of proposed enlargement or subs1it11lion. 

l5 



1150.09 

1150.JO 

l 150.11 

t 150.12 

1150.1 3 

1150.14 

1150.15 

1150.16 

F. A plan or1hcsitc showing the location of all existing buildi ngs, pm king and l u;ulin~ arras, trnflicaccc:;.<.111d 

tmr!ic circulatiou. open spaces. landscaping. refuse and service meas. utilities. sit!ns. yar<ls ;ind miy 
enlargement thereof propo~cd. 

li. A complete wrillcn description of the new use in the case of a proposed subslitulion. an<l l(,r om cnlitrgcmrnl 
the rcnsons for cul:irging rather than relocation in an approprialc 1.onc. 

11. A ~latc.·1m·nt and supporting documentation describing how the nppliccmt hclic,·c~ the rcquc~t conforms lu 
the standards listed in Section 11 50. 09; and 

I. Any other such information as the Zoning Inspector may require. 
J. An application filing fee as established by Council. 

GF.NF.RAL STANOAROS FO lt F.NLARGEMENTORSUIJSTITUTION OF A NONCONFOll~llNG USF. 
The Plnnning Commission shall review the particular facts and circumstances uf cnch proposed use orc:<pan~ioi 1 in 
terms or lhc following standards. and shall find adequate evidence showing 1hnl such use or c.pansion al 1l1c 
proposed location: 
A. Is better suited for the site than would be a permitted or co11ditio1ml use. 
B. Shi11l not crci1te n significant financial or structural hindrance to eventual conversion lo a permillcd ur 

conditional use. 
C. Shall uot be ha1.irdons or dislurbing to neighboring uses. 
D. Shall be served adequately by esscutial public faci lities and services. 
E. Shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 
F. Sli:tll not invol~·e uses, aclivities, processes, material, equipment and/or co11ditim1s of opc1:1tio11 tlmt will he 

dclrimenlal to any persons, property or the general welfare hy reason of excessive production of lmflic. noise. 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

The Planning Commission shall have lhe authority to place additional require111e11ts and/or concli1iuns. 

S UPPLEMENTARY CONPITIONS ANO SAFEGUARDS 
In granting any enlnrgentent or substitution of a nonconforming use, the Plnnning C<11nmission .5haJI prcscrihc 
appropriate conditions and safeguards in confonnity with this Ordinance. Violations or such conditions and 
safeguards when made a part of the terms urKlcr which the conditional use is granted shall he deemed a violatinn <•f 
this Ordinance. 

l'UIJLIC llEAIUNG BY TllE PLANNING COMMISSION 
A public hearing on any enlargement or substitulion ofa nonconforming use requc<t shnll be held by lhc Ptmmin~ 
Commission wilhin forty -five (45) dayo of Ifie acceplance ofthc npplicalion by the Zoning Inspector as co111plc1c. 

NOTICf: O F PUBLIC HEARI NG IN NEWSPAPER 
Defore holding lhc puhlie hearing required in Section l l 50.1 1, notice of such hearing shall be given hy publicaliun 
in a newspaperof general circulation in lhe City at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing. The notice shall ,cl forth 
lhe time and place oft he public hearing and the nature of the proposed use. 

NOTI CE TO PARTIES OF INTEREST 
ncfore holding the public hcnring required in Section It 50.11, \VTillen notice of such hearing shall be mailed hy lite 
Planning Commission by first class mail at least seven (7) days before lhe date of lhe he:1ring to lhc Planning 
Commission, and all property owners wi1hin 150 feel in nny direction of the property upon which an application lllr 
an enlargement or substihllion of a nonconforming use permit has been filctl . T he foilurc lo mnil or deliver 
notifici11ion as provided in 1his paragraph !\hall not invalidate any actiou of the Planning Commission. ·1 he nulicesh~ll 
contain the same inlormation as required of notices published in newspapers as specified in Section 11 50.12. 

ACTION nv TllE Pl.ANNING COMMISSION 
Within thirty (30) days after the public hearing required in Section 1150.11, lhe l'lnnning Commission sh;ill cilhcr 
approve, approve with supplementary conditions as specified in Section 1150. 10, or disapprove the npplicalion n• 
presented. If the application is appro1•eJ or approved with supplementary conditions. the Planning Commission , hall 
direct the Zoning lnspectorto issue n permit listing the specific conditions spceified by the l'lnnning Commis.<ion for 
npproval. 

APPEALS 
Appeals of the decisions the Planning Commission shall be made to the Domd of7.oning /\ppcnls pursunnl lo Chapt<r 
115.l. 

r,x rmATION 0(1 A PEHMIT FOR THESUHSTITUTION OF A NONCONFORMING USF. 
A permit for the substitulion of a nonconforming use shall be deemed to aulhori7.c only one pnrticular use. arnl ~11d 1 
permit sh~1l au10111aticrilly expire if, fornny reason> the use has cc;iscd byd i ~co11t imm11ccornb.ind (111mcnt for n period 

. of more thnn six (6) months. 

CHAPTER I 153 
IJOARO O F ZONING APPEALS 

16 



115.J.llJ 

1153.02 

1153.03 

ESTABLl~ll l\IENT AND l'HOClWUHE 
The eslnhlishmcnl and procedures of lhe Board of Zoning Appeals shall be as fol lows: 
/\. /\l'POINTMliNT 

/\ Doard of Zoning Appeals is hereby eslnblishcd, which shall consist oflivc mcmlicr.:. ·111r li\'e mcmlicr< shall 
be appointed by the Mayor and approved by Council and shall serve for overlupping terms of' four years; 
provided. however, 1lml those first appointed shall serve for terms ns follows: ouc for one yc:u, 0 11e for two 
years. one for three years, :ind two for four years. Subsequent nppoinlmenls shall be for a foll lenn of four 
}'CMS. Vneoncie5'hnll be lilied by appointment for the unexpired 1er111oflhe1ne111her affected. No one shall 
be appointed lo the Board of Zoning /\ppcals who holds any elcclive or nppoinlivc ollice or position with 
lhc Cily. All Board members shall be residents of lhc City of Celina. 

B. PROCEEDINGS 
I . 111e IJoord orzoning Appeals shall adopt rules necessary lo the condticl or ils affairs and in kccpin~ 

with lhe provisions oflhc Zoning Ordinance. Meetings slrnll be held al the call ol'thc Chaimrnn 01111 

OI such other limes as the Bomd may de1cm1ine. Three members slrnll c11nsli l11lc n q11orn111: howe1•cr. 
al least lhree aflirmalive voles shall be requiml on any ofncinl action. 

2. In nny mailer hroughl before the Hoard or Zoning Appeals that affects. directly or indirectly, the 
pcrsonnl affairs or a member or the Uonrd, or any busiuess or profession with which lie may be 
associ11ted, such member slrnll ahscnt himself front the meeting as long :1$ such 11\f'llcr is bcfo1c lhc 
13oard. 

C. MINUTES /\ND RECORDS 
The IJoard of Zoning /\ppeals shall keep 111inulc'S ofits proceedings, sho wing the vole of each member upon 
each question, or if obsenl or failing lo vote indicating such fact; and shall keep records or its examinations, 
and other ollicial actions, all of which shall be a public record. 

D. Al'PE/\LS, HEARINGS 
/\ll meelings oflhe Doard of Zoning Appeals shall be open lo tho public. /\ppeals lo the lloard concerning 
inlcrprclalion or ndministrnlion of the Zoning Ordinance may be taken hy any person ag[!ricvcd, or hy any 
ofliccr or bureau or the govcming body oflhe City affeclcd by any decision oflhc 7..oning lnspcchu. Such 
appeals shall be taken within thirty days. by filing with the Uoard of Zoning. Appeals a notice ofnppcal 
specifying the grounds thereo[ The Zoning lnspcelor shall forthwith transmit lo the lloard all f"lpcrs 
consisting oflhe record upon which the action appealed from was taken. /\ rec as cstablishc1I by City Council 
shall be paid lo the Zoning Inspector al the time notice or appeal is filed. 

E. NOTICE OF MEETING 
TI1e Duard of Zoning Appeals shall fix a reasonable lime for the heuringorall appeals und give notice uf such 
hearing in a newspaper of general circulation at least seven days in ;ldvancc. The same wrillr11 uolicc shall 
be sent lo owners or property within l 50 feel o rall propcrlics in question asshown on the County Audilur's 
tax list, an<l lo the pnrties ofinleresl. Al the hearing, any party may appear in person or by agent or allome)'. 

F. DEl'/\R'I MENT /\SSISTANCE 
The Uoard or Zoning Appeals may call upon the various deparlmcnls of the Cily for assistance in the 
performance of its duties, and it shall be the duty of such departments lo render such assistance lo the Oonrcl 
as may reasonably be required. 

l'OWEHS AND DUTms OF THE UOARD OF ZONING APPEAL S 
The Board of Zoning /\ppenls shall have the following powers and duties: 
A. Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, requirement.decision. inlcrprctnlion 

or determination made by the Zoning Inspector. 
IJ. Authorize such varinnccs from the terms of this Ordinance as \\•ill not be contrary lo the public intcrc."1· 

where. owing to the special conditions, a literal enforcement of this Ordinance will result in unnccessarr 
hardship, and so that the spirit of this Ordinance shall be observed nnd subslnntinl justice done. Procedures 
for variances shall conform lo Section I I SJ.04, Variances. 

C. Permit the temporary use of a structure or premises in any district for a purpose nr U!\C th:it docs not confonn 
lo the regulations prescribed elsewhere in the Zoning Ordinance for the district in which it is localed, 
provided however that the use is of a (cmporary nature and does not involve lhc crcciion nf n s11h..:;t:m1i;l1 
slmclurc. /\Zoning Cerlilicale for such use shall be granted in the form ofa lemp!l1wy and revocable permit. 
but not for a period of more than twelve ( 12) months and subject lo sucb conditions ns will sal<gnard the 
Jlllblic health, safety, convenience and general welfare. 

D. Appeals taken on the basis of a decision rendered by the !'Janning Conuni'-<ion as specified in Section 
1145.09, "Conditional Uses", and Section I 1~6.05, "Sile Plan Rc,•icw". 

E. /\ppeals taken on the basis of a decision rendered by the City Council as specified in Section I 147.051 I. 
"Overloy l)islricls". 

F. Appeals taken on the basis ofadccision rendered by the Design Review Commission a• specified in Sccli1111 
1148.08. 

DECISIONS OF TllE DOA RD 
. A. Tl1c Board of Zoning Appeals shall decide all applications and appeals within thirty days nncr the fin a 

hearing thereon. 
H. A copy orthc Boarrl's decision, certiticd by the Chairman and Secretory, shall be 1rnns111it1cd In all portie' 

in interest. Such decision shall be binding upon the Zoning Inspector and observed by him: and he slrnll 

17 



1153.04 

1153.0S 

1153.06 

1153.07 

l ISJ .08 

incorporalc such terms and co11di1ions in the permit to lhc npplica111 whenever a permit is authllri7.Cll hy the 
Board. 

C'. The lloanl may reverse, afr.nn or modify any order, requirement, decision ordctennination heard on appeal. 
Every nppeal granted or denied must Ix: accompanied by a wrillen rinding of fncl based on tcstinwnv am! 
evidence ""d specifying the rcas011 for such decision on the appeal. ~ 

D. There shall be no furthcrnppcals lo a City body lo the decisions oflhe Board ofZonin~ Appeals. 1\ny party 
ndverscly a1Tcc1ed by a decision of 1he Board may appeal lo the Courl of Common Pica• of Mercer County 
011 the grounds that the dec ision w:1s unreasonable or unlawful. 

V/\IUANCES 
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the power lo hear and decide appeals and authoriw such varian«cs from 
the pn•vi!iiion;c;or rcquircmcnls of the Zoning Ordinance as will 1101 be contrary to the puhlic int('r('Sl. In ilUlhotii'.ing. 
a \'tui:mcc, the Board may altnch conditions and require such guarantee or bond as it may dcc111 11cc.cssary lo ;is,.:;un..· 
COlllf)linncc with theobjcctivc.s of the Zoning Ordin:mcc. On appeal the Oonrct may grant n vm iancc in the npplkntion 
of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance only if all of the following findings arc made. 
A. ·111nt 1l1erc nre unique physicnl circumsla11cc.o; or conditior1s, including irrcgulnrity. na1Towncss. or~hnlfc,,vi1cs~ 

or lot size or slmpc. or exceptional topogmphic:i:I. or other physici'll comlitio11s present on the subjtc1 
properly: 

13. That because of such physical cireumsrnnecs or conditions, the properly cannot be reasonably he developed 
in strict C(lnformity wilh the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, and that the authori 1..:1tion of n vnriancc is 
therefore necessary to enable the rcasonaMc use of the properly; 

C. Thal the cireumslanccs and condi tions have not been created by the appellant; 
IJ. That lhe variance, if authorized, will nol altcr the essential clrnraclerof the ncighbNhoml N district in which 

the properly is located, nor substantially or permanently impair the appropriate use or development uf 
adjacent propc11y. nor be detrimental to the public welfare; 

E. That the v~ri:mcc, if authorized, wi ll represent lhc minimum variance tlint will afforcl relief and will represent 
the least modi ncation possible of the regulation in issue. 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 
A rnriance from the tcm1s of this Ordinance shall not be granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals unless and unril 
a wrillcn application for a variance is submitted 10 the Zoning Inspector. The application shall be signed hy the 
owner or applicant attesting lo the 1n1th and exactness of all information supplied on the application. At a minimum. 
the ;1pplication shall contain the following infonnalion: 
/\. Name. address :tnd telephone number ofupplicant~ 

O. A sur\'ey hy a person licensed in the Slnle of Ohio lo perform land surveys (If <lccmcd appropriate. this 
requirement may be waived by the Zoning Inspector); 

C. Description of the nature of the variance requested; 
D. A slatemcut tlemonstrnting that the requested variance conforms to the stnndrmls: set forth in Section 

1153.04(A·E); ond 
E. A fee as e•lablished by Council. 

SUPPLEM ENTARY CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS 
In granting any appeal or variance the Board of Zoning Appeals may prescribe appropriate conditions :iml 
safeguards in confonnily with this Ordinance. Violation of ~uch condilions m1d safeguards when mndc a patl of 
rite terms under which the appeal <>r variance is granted shall be deemed a violation of this Ordimmcc and 
punishable under Section 1199. Under no circumstances shall the Board of Zoning Appeal• grant an nppc"I or 
variance to allow a use not permissible under the terms of lhis Ordinance in the district involvl"d. or anr use 
prohibited by the tcnns of this Ordinance in such district. 

l~NVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following rc.~ponsibilities with Environmental Perfo11na11cc 
Standards: 
A. The Uoard of Zoning Appeals shall have the power to authorize issuance of a Zoning Certificate for uses 

that arc subject to Environmental Perfomiance Standards ns set forlll'in Section 1180.14. 
B. The application for a Zoning Ccrtilicale for a use subject lo Enviromncnlal Performance Standards shall 

he accompanied by a plan of the proposed conslmction or <leveloprnenl; a description o f the propo•ed 
machinery. processes and products; and specincations for the mcchauisms and techniques to he used in 
meeting the Environmental Performance Standards. 

C. The Board may refer the npplicntion lo one or more expert consullauls qua lilied to advise as to whether a 
proposed u•e will conform to the Envirom11cnlal Pcrl'onnanee Slandnrds. The costs of' such services shall 
be borne by the applicant. and a copy of any reports shall be furn ished the applicant. 

D. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear complaints, not resolved by the Zoning h1'1icclor. nn '"c" ,.,. 
faci liiies that meet the rtquircmcnls of Section 1180.14 of this Ordinance. 

,INTERPRETATION 01.' DISTRICT MAP 
On an appeal from the decision of the Zoning Inspector where the street or lot layout as constructed, or as recorded, 
differs from lhc.<trcet and lot lines as shown on the Zoning Map, the Board of Zoning Appeals, aft er notice lo the 
O\\·ncrs of the property and ancr public hearing, shnll inlerpret the Map in sucl1 a way as to cilrry out lhc intt::nl aml 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

18 



1157.01 

1157.02 

1157.03 

l 157.04 

1157.05 

1157.06 

In the c<1 sc of any appeal or questions as to the location or any bo1111d<1r)' line between 7oning districts rcgmdin~ a 
decision by the Zoning Inspector. n request for inteqiretation of the Zoning Map may be on:ule to the Bo:ml. mid a 
determination shall be made hy the Board. 

CHAPTER 1157 
DISTRICT CHANGES ANU nEGULATION AMENDM J.o:NTS 

AlllENOl\JENTS OR DJSTRIC.T CHANGES 
The Ordinam;c text or map may be amended by utilizing the procedures speci liccl in this Chapter. 

CHANGES I.IV COUNCIL 
Whenever the public necessity, or general welfare require, Council may, by Ordinance (only upon receipt of a 
reco111111e11dalion from the Planning Commission and subject to procedures provided below). umcnd. supplement, 
change or repeal the reg11Jn1ions, rc.<lrictions ancl boundaries or clnssilicalions of property. 

INITIATI ON OF 7.0NJNG AMENDMENTS 
Amendments may be initiated in one of the fo llowing ways: 
A. By adoption of a rnolion by the Planning Commission; 
13. IJy adoption of a motion by Council for the Planning Commission to develop<• rcconnncnda!ion: 
C. ny application by a property om1er or record to the Secretary or the Pla1111ing Commission. 

CONTENTS or APPL ICATIONS FOR ZONI NG MAP AMF.NOMENTS 
The application shall be signed by the applicant or the applicant's agent attesting to the truth nnd cxac111css or all 
infonnalion suppliccl in the application. provided that an individual signing as the applicant's agent slmll furnish proof 
of his authority 10 act for the applicant. Al a minimum the application shnll contain the fo llowing i11fonnatio11: 
/\ . Name, address and phone number of applicunt; 
B. /\ survey and legal description of the property proposed to he rezoned; 
C. Present use ~ 

D. Present zn11ing district; 
E. Proposed use including any plans that the applicant has developed: 
F. Proposed zoning district; 
G. A vicinity map at a scale of not less than I "= JOO' showing property lines, streets, existing and proposed 

zoning, existing use of all buildings and the principal use of all properties within 300 feel of such land and 
such other items as the Zoning Inspector may require anrl; 

H. /\ fee as established by Council. 

TRANSMITTAL TO PLANNING COMMISSION 
Following the request for considcrntion of a 1,0ni11g ordinance text or map amendment by Council. or followin~ lhc 
lil ing of a 1.011ing map amendment application by at least one owner of property, such motion or npplicatinn shall he 
transmitted to the Plnnning Commission for their recommendation. 

STANOARDS FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS 
All recommendations by lhe Plnnning Commission for 7..oning M:ip amendments shall be consistent wi th the City"s 
adopted plans, gonls, policies and intent of this Ordinance. 
/\. Prior to nmking a recommendation on n proposc:<l rcwning, the Pl.,nning. Commi~!'lio11 5hall nrnkc n fouling 

lo determine if the following conditions exist. No rezoning of land shall be approved prior to srcci!ic 
documcntntio11 fi nding at least one ( I) of the following: 
I. There has been a change in demand for land which alters the information upo n which the Zoning Map 

is based. 
2. /\ study indicates that there has been an increase in the demMd for land in the requested zoni11g 

district, and as a result, the supply of hmd wi1hin said zoning district is i 11a<lcqu;.1lc lo meet the 
demands: for such development. 

J. Proposed uses cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lol'k of 
transportation or utilities or other development constraints, or the mnrkct to be served hy the 
proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location oflhe e'isting wni11g district. 

4. There is nn error in the Zoning Map ns enacted. 

13. No residentially zoned land of less than five (5) acres in size shall be rezoued to a non-residential district 
unless it is contiguous to land in the proposed w ning district classifico1io11. 

C. 111 addition to the fi ndings required to be made by subsections(/\) and (ll). fi ntlings sh;i ll he made hy lhe 
l' la11ni11g Commission on each of the fo llowing matters based on the evidence presented. 
1. The cxlcnt 10 which the proposed amendment and proposed use i\re in compliance wilh :l11tl 1lc,·i:1tc 

frl'rn adopted plans, goals and policies. 
2. The suitability of lhe property in question fo r the uses permitted under the 1iroposcd wnin~. 
3. The adequacy of public facili ties such as transportation, util ities, and olhcr required public services 

to serve the proposed use. 
4. The effect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses. 
5. The effect or the proposed rezoning on the economic viability of existing developed and vncm1l la11d 

within the City. 

19 



1157.07 

I 1 ~7.08 

11 57.09 

1157.10 

1157.1 1 

11 57. 12 

1161 .0 I 

1161.02 

1161.03 

116 1.04 

1161.05 

I he l'la1mi11g Co111111issio11 shall nol rcco111111e11d lhc adoplion of a prorx•scd mne11d111cnl unless ii lirnls rhal lire 
adoption or such an amendment is in 1hc public interest nnd 1101 solely in the interest or the applicant. 

IUo:COMMENOATION DY TllE PLANNING COMMISSION 
The Plrmning Commi~!'iiion shall rcc:ommcm.I to Council, within thirly·rivc (JS) dny!'ii of receipt of lhc complc1c-
1pplicalio11, 011c oflhc following: 
A. Thal lhc anrcndmcnl be granled as requested; 
U. Thal lhc arncndnrcnl be granlcd wilh modificalion; or 
C. Thal 1hc nrncndmcnl be denied. 
ff the Planning Commission docs nol do one of 1he above wi1hin 1hc allollcil lime period. lhcn lhe a111e11dmcnl 
propos31 shall be considered dc:nicct. The Planning Commission shall transmit its rccom111cndalio11 lo ('oum:il. 

l' UllLI C llJ>AIUNG UY COUNCIL 
Upon receipt of the rcco111mcndation from the Pl:mning Commission, Council shall sc11ec.Julc n puh!ic hcnri11g. The 
hearing shall occur wilhin for1y-five (45) days of the Council's receipt or the Pl:11111i11g C:o111111i«io11"< 
reco1n1ncmlation. 

NUTJCE OF PUBLIC HEARING IN NEWSPAPER 
Notice of tire public hearing required in Section 1157.0R shall be given hy puhlicntion nf n nolice in a newspaper of 
genernl circulation in the City. Such nolice shall be published at least thirty (JO) days befo re the date ofl he public 
hearing. The published notice shall set forth the time and place of the public hearing and a sumnr:rry r,Cthe proposed 
an1cndrne11t. 

NOTICR TO PROPERTY OWNERS BY COUNCIL 
Written nolicc of lhe hearing shall be mailed by the Clerk o f Council by first class mail or hand delivery al least 
lwenty (20) days before the day of the hearing to all owners of properly wilhin such area proposed lo be rewncd 
or rcdislricte<I and to the owners or property localed contiguous to and directly across lhe slrccl from lire nrca to 
he rcwned. Such notice shall be sent to the addresses of such owners appearing on lire County Auditor"s current 
lax lisl. The failure to mail or deliver the notification as provided in this Ordinance shall not invalidalc any such 
amendmcnl. The notice shall contain the same information as required of notices published in newspapers as 
c.pecified in Section 1157.09. 

l'UBLlC EXAMINATION OF OUCUMENT S 
Prior to the public hearing. all documenls relat ing to the proposed amendment shall be on lile, ror public exmnination. 
in the office o f the Secretary of the Planning Commission. 

ACTION DY COUNCIL 
Counci l may approve the recommendation of the Plam1ing Commission l>y a simple majority. Council nrny 
modify or disnpprove the recommendation of the Planning Commission by a vote ofnot l cs~ than three-quarters 
t Y.) majority of the full membership of Council. Finni action on lhe amendment must be lnken within forly-fivc 
M5) days of the close or Council"s public hearing; failure to take action wilhin <nch for1y-Gve (45) clay pcrio<I 
:;hall cons1i1utc disapproval of the amendment. 

C HAPTER 1161 
S-1 S PECIAL IJISTRICT 

l'UIU'OSE 
The purpose oflhc S-1 , Special, Dislricl is 10 protect large public and semi-public land holdings for various municipnl 
uses. 

l' RINC IP ALLY PERMITTED USF.S 
Principally permitted uses an: a.~ follows: 
A. Agriculture 
ll. Public ltccrcation: Recreational facilities developed, used, and/or maintained by 1iublie agencies for use by the 

public. 

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USF.5 
Any use or struclure cuslomarily accessory to any S-1 District permitted use. 

C ONDITIONALLY PERM11TED USES 
Conditionally perrniucd uses are as follows: 
A. Airports 
B. Cemeteries 
C. Non-Commercial Recreation 
D. Public Service Facilities 
E. Commercial Recreation 
F. Educa1io1rnl lns1it111ions 
G. Religious Places of Worship 

M I NIMUM LOT AREA ANO Wn>TH 
The minimum lot area and width for properties in the S-1 District shall not be less than 125,000 sqt'"rc feet and a widlh 
0 r not less than 300 feel. 

20 



I 161.06 ~ llNIMUM l'RONT Y1\IW SETU1\C:K 

The mini111111n front yard setback for properties in the S-1 District slmll be 60 feet. 

1161.07 MINll\IUM SJ()E YARD SETBACK 
The minimu111 side yard setback for properties in the S-1 District shall be 50 feet. 

t 161.08 ~l l N l l\llJM REAR YAIU) SETBACK 
·11,c 111ini111111n rear ynrd sclback for propc11ies in the S-1 District shall be 60 feel. 

1161.09 ~IAXIMUM ll EIGHT REGULATION 
l he maximum height fur structures in the S-1 District shall be as follows: 
i\. No principal structure shall exceed 45 feet in height. 
ll . No ncccssory s1ructurc shall exceed 15 reel in height. 

I 161.IU Off-STREF.T PAHKING ANI> LOADING 
O:T-slrcct parking nnd loading shall be as specified iu Chapter 1181, OH~Strcct Parking and I ,(1.1d ing. 

1161.f I LAND USE INTENSITY 

I 162.01 

In the S-1, Spccinl, Dis1rict 1hc maximum lot coverage shall be 20%. 

CHAPTER 1162 
R-1 LOW DENSITY RF.SIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

l'UIH'OSE 
The purpose of the R-1 , Low Densi ty Residential, Dislrict is lo provide for rcl~ li vcly low density residential 
d<'velopntent. 

1162.02 l'IUNCIPALLY l'ERMHTED USES 
l'rincipally permitted uses ore ns follows: 
Single Fnmily Dwellings 

1162.03 PERMITTED ACCESSORY USF.S 
Pcnnilted accessory uses arc as follows: 
/\ny use or s1ructurc cuslomarily accessory to any R-1 District permilted use. 

1162.04 CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USl'.S 
Condiiionally pcnnittcd uses are os follows: 
/\. Public Rccrealion 
n. Public Service Facilities 
C. Non-Commercial Recreation 
D. Educational Institutions 
E. Religious Ploces of Worship 
I'. Bed and Drcakfast Establishmcnls 
G. Day Care Facilities 
ll Home Occupations 

1162.05 MI NIMUM LOT AREA ANI) W(l)TJI 

I 162.06 

The minimum lot nreu and width for properties in the R-1 Dislrict is as follow~: 
/\. Single fami ly dwellings shall have a minimum lo! nrea ofnot less than 12,000 squnrc feel and n width or no! less 

than I 00 foe!. 
B. Otherusesshall hn,·c o minimum lot area of 1101 lcss lhan 85,000 square feet and a witlth of no! less limn 200 feel. 

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK 
The minimum fronl yard setback fo r properties in the R-1 Districl is as follows: 
/\. Single fomily dwellings shall have a minimum front yard setback of30 feel. 
IJ. O!her uses shall have a minimum front yard sci back of 50 feet. 
C. No accessory buildings shall be located in the front yard area. 

1162.07 MINIMUM SIDE Y /\RD SETBACK 
The minimum side yard setback for properties in the R· I District is as follows: 
A. Single family dwellings shall have a minimum side yard setback or In feet. 
B. Other uses shnll haven minimum side yard setback of 25 feet. 
C. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than five (5) feet to any side y:ud properly line. They arc nlso 

rcs1ric1cd from plnttcd casement areas. 

1162.08 MINIMUM IU; AR YAR[) SETBACK 
fhc minimum rear yard setback fo r properties in the R-1 District is as follow.~: 
A. Single fami ly dwellings shull haven minimum rear yard setback of JO fee l. 
IJ. Olhcr uses shall have a minimum rear yard setback or 50 feel. 
C. Accessory buildings shall be locuted no clos.r lhan fivc(5) feet to the rear property line. They are also restriclcd 

for plnttcd casement nrens. 

21 



1162.09 

1162.10 

1162. ll 

11 63.111 

1163.02 

1163.03 

1163.04 

1163.05 

1163.06 

1163.07 

11 63.08 

l\IAXIMUM ll EIGllT REGULATION 
·111c maximum height for slrncturcs i11 the R- 1 District is as follows: 
A. No principal structure shall execccl 35 lcel i11 height. 
IJ. No ncccssory slruclure shall exceed 15 feet in height. 

CWF-STHEET l'AR l<INC ANI> LOADING 
Off-slrecl pa1ki11g and loading shall be as specified i11 Chapter 1181, OIT-Strecl l'arki11µ "°"I Loading. 

LAN I> USE I NTENS ITY 
111 the R- 1, Low Density Rcsidcnlial, District the 111aximum lot coverage shall he 25%. 

CHAPTER 11 63 
lt -2 MEDIUM l>ENSITY RESIDENTIAL l>ISTRlC T 

P URl'OSE 

The purpose of the R-2, Medium Density Rcsi<lenlinl, District is lo provide for medium density residential devclop111 c11ls. 

PRINC IPALLY PERMITTEll US ES 
1'1i11cipally permilled uses arc ns follows: 
/\. Single f'nmily Dwellings 
ll . Two f'amily Dwellings 

l'lmMITTED ACCESS ORY USES 
Prrmillcd acces:i::ory uses arc as follows: 
Any use or slructurc customnrily accessory to any R·2 Oislrict pcnnittcd use. 

CONlllTIONALLY PERMllTJW USES 
Conditionally pcrrnillcd uses arc as follows: 
A Public Recreation 
B. Public Service f acilities 
C. Non-Commercial Recreation 
D. Educational Institutions 
E. Religious Places of Worship 
f'. Ued and Dreakfost Establishments 
U. Three fa mily Dwellings 
I-!. Day Care fnci lilies 
I. Group llomcs 
.I. Nursing Homes 
K. Retail Neighborhood 13usi11ess 
L. Assisted Living f'acilily 
M. Home Occupations 

MINIMUM LOT AIU;A AND WIDTH 
The minimum lut area and width fo r properties in the R·2 District ls as follows: 
/\. Single family d\\'cll ingsshall have a minimum lol area ofnol lesslhan 8,000 square feel and n width of not Jess than 

80 feet. 
U. Two fa111 ily dwellings shall have n minimum lol erea ofnol less than 5,000 square feet per unit and a width of nol 

less than I 00 feel. 
C. Three fn mily dwellings shall have a minimum lot area ofnot less thnn 4,000 square feel pcrunit and a width of nol 

less than I 00 fee t. 
D. Ollter uses shall have a rninimurn lol nrca of not lcs.• than 45,000 square feet m1<I a width <•fnol less than 150 feet. 

M I NIMUM FRONT YAIUl SET BAC K 
The minimum front yard setback for properties in the R-2 District is as follows: 
/\. Residential uses shall have a minimum l'ronl yard setback of 25 feet. 
ll. Other uses shnll h.-·e a minimum front yard setback of 40 feet. 
C. No accessory ~uildi ngs shall be localed in the front yard orca . 

M I NIMUM S ll>E YARD SETBACK 
The minimum side ynr<l selbuck for properties in the R-2 District is'" fo llows: 
/\. Residential uses shall have a minimu111 side y<1r<I setback of8 feet. 
n. Other uses shall have a 111inimu111 side yard setback of 15 feet. 
C. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than live (5) feet lo any side yard property line. They arc also 

restricted from plallcd casement areas. 

MINIM UM REAR YARD SETBACK 
The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the R-2 District is as follows: 
A Reside11lial uses shall have a minimum rear yard setback of25 feel. 

22 



1163.09 

11 63.l I 

1164.01 

1164.02 

lf 64.03 

1164.04 

1164.0S 

1164.06 

11 64.07 

13. \ llhcr UHcs sh,111 have a minimum rear yard setback or 40 kc!. 
C. Accmory huii<lings shall be h1calcd 110 closer than five(5) feel lo the rear properly line. They arc also 1csl1 i1:kd 

rrom plallcd ca.<cmc111 nrcR<. 

~ IAXl i\IUM m : IGllT ltEGULATION 
The 1uaximu111 heigh! for slruclurcs in lhc R-2 Dislrict is as follows: 
A No principal .imclure shall exceed JS feel in height 
II. No accessory slruclure shall exceed 15 !Ccl in height 

Of'f-STUF.ET PARKING AND LOADING 
on:s1rce1 parking and loading shall be ns specified in Chapler 1181, OIT-Slrccl Parking :md Loadini;. 

LAN L> USE INTENSITY 
In lhc R-2, Medium Densily Residcnlial, Dislricl lhe maximum lol coverage shall be 30%. 

CHAPTER 1164 
R-3 HI GH L> ENSlTY RESll1F.NTfAL DISTRICT 

l'Ulll'OS1': 
ll1e purpose of lhe R-3, lligh Density Residenlial, Dislricl is to provide for relalively high dcnsily residcn1ial 
d<:vclopmcnls. 

PRINCIPALLY l'EHMl1TED USES 
Principally permillcd uses are ns follows: 
A. Single Family Dwellings 
13. Two Family Dwellings 
C. Mu Iii-Family l>wcllings (Up lo six uniL•) 
D. Emeieney Apartmen1 Dwelling 

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES 
PcnniHed accessory uses ore ns follows: 
Any use or strncture customarily accc:;sory to any R·J District pcnnitted use. 

CONDITIONALLY PERJ'vllTTF.D USF.S 
Condilionally pennilted uses ore as follows: 
A. Public Recrealion 
B. Public Service Facilities 
C. Non-Commercial Recrealion 
D. Educnlional lns1i1u1io11s 
E. Religious Places of Worship 
F. Bed and Brcakfosl Esiablishrnenls 
c;, Day Care Facilities 
11. Nursing Homes 
I Mobile llorne Parks 
J. Relail Neighborhood Business 
K. Group Homes 
L. Assislcd Living Facilily 
~I. Mulli-Family (7 unils or larger) 
N. Home Oceupalions 

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTll 
1 he minimum lol area and widlh for properties in !he R-3 Dislricl is"-' follows: 
A. Single family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of no! less lhan 6,000square feel and a widlh ofnol less ihan 

60 feel. 
B. Two family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 4,000 ~qunrc feel per unil a11<l n width of nol 

less lhan 80 feet. 
C. Mul1i-fnmily rlwcl lings shall have a minimum lot area ofnot less than 2,50-0 s4uarc feel per unit and n widlh ofnol 

lcs. 1hn11 I 00 feel. 
D. Other uses shall haven minimum lol area of no! less lhan 20,000 square feel and n widlh of no! less 1\mn I 00 fcrl. 

M INIMUM FRONT YAltD SETBACK 
The minimum fronl yard sclback for properties in the R-3 Dislrict is as follows: 
A. Resident in I uses shall hnvc a minimum front yard setback of 25 feel. 
B. Olher uses shall haven 111i11i1uum fronl yard sclbnck of 30 feel. 
C No accessor)' buildings sl1all be located in lhc front yard area. 

MlNIM \JM SIDE YARD SETBACK 
The minimum side yard setback for propcrlies in 1hc R-3 Dislricl is as follows: 

23 



11 64.0ll 

1164.Q'} 

1164.1 0 

1164.11 

1165.01 

1165.02 

11 65.0J 

1\ . Singlc-fot111ily residcnlial uses shall havca111i11i111um side yard seiback of6 feel and Twu-fi11 11ily 1csi1lc11lial uses shall 

have a 111i11i11111111 side ynrd set hack of 8 feel. 
ll. Olhcr uses shall have a mi11imu111 side yard setback of I 0 feel. 
('. /\cccssory buildings slmll be localed no closer than five (5) feet to ony side ynnl propc1 ty line. They n1e also 

rest ricted from platted casement areas. 

~ l l NIMUM RgAR YAIWSETOACK 
·1 he minimum rear yord setback for properties i11 lhe R-J District is ns follows: 
/\. Residential uses shall have a minimum rear yard setback of 25 feel. 
II. Other uses shall have a minimum rear yard setback ofJO feel. 
C • Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than (ivc(5) feet to the rear property line. They me :ilso restricted 

fro111 platted casement areas. 

MAXIMUM lrnlGllT REGULATION 
The maximum height for structures in the R-3 District is as follows: 
/\. No principal strncture shall exceed 45 feet i11 height. 
B. No accessory st111clurc shall exceed 15 feet in height. 

Off-STREET PAl~KI NG ANU LUAUING 
Off-meet parking and loading shnll be ns specified in Chapter 1181, OfT-Slrect Pmking and Loading. 

LANU USE INTENSITY 
In the R-3, I tigh Density Residential, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 35%. 

CHAPTER 1165 
R-0 RESIDENCE OFFICE DISTRICT 

PURPOSF. 
The purposeofthc R·U. Residence Office, District is to accommodate low intensity olficc. residential and othcrsi111ilar 
uses. 

PRINC IPALLY PERMffrED USF-S 
Principally permitted uses arc as follows: 
A. Multi-Fnmily Dwellings 
B. Efficiency Apartment Dwellings 
C. Personal Services 
0. Offices 

rrnMllTEI> ACCl':SSORY USES 
Permitted accessory uses are as follows: 
/\ny use or structure customarily accessory to any R-0 District permitted use. 

CONDITIONALLY l'lmMITTED USES 
Conditionally pcrmined uses arc as follows: 
A. Public Recreation 
13. Public Service Facilities 
C. Non-Commercial Recreation 
I). Commercial Recreation 
E. Educational Institutions 
r. Religious Places of Worship 
G. Ocd and Oreakfast Estnblishments 
H. Single Family Dwellings 
I. Two l'nmily Dwellings 
J. Dny Care Facilities 
K. Nursing Homes 
L. Retail Dusiness 
!'vi. Commercial Schools 
N. Financial Institutions 
0. Rcstaurnnls 
I'. Clubs 
Q. Drive-in Commercial Uses 

Animal Hospitals and Clini c.~ 

Clinics 
R. 
$. 
T. 
\), 

Scientific Research Facilities 
Laboratories 

V. Group llomes 
W. Mixed Uses 
X. Assisted Living Facilities 
Y. Home Occupations 

24 



1165.05 

I 165.06 

1165.07 

I 165.118 

1165.o9 

11 65.10 

1165.11 

11 66.0 1 

l 166.02 

1166.03 

11 66.04 

~llN l ~ I UM LOT An EA AND WllJTll 
The minimum lol :1rca and wid1h for properties in the R·O Dislricl is as follows: 
A. Residences shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 12,000 square lccl and a widlh of nol lcss lhnn JOO feel. 
ll. Other uses shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 16,000 square feel ni1tl a wichh of 1101 less lhan I 00 feel. 

MINIMU~I FRONT YARO SETBACK 
J\. The minimum front ynrd sctbnck for properties in lhe ll-0 District shrill be 1IO fr.cl. 
IJ. No accessory buildings shall be locoted in lhc fronl yard area. 

MIN IMUM Sll>E YARD SETBACK 
A. The minimum side yard selbnck for properties in the R-0 Dislricl shall be 15 feel. 
13. Accc<sory building.< slmll be localed no closer than ten (10) feel lo any sick yard properly line. ·1 hey arc also 

restricted from platted easement areas. 

MINIMUM REAn YARD SETllACK 
A. The minimum renr yard selbaek fo r properlics in lhe R·O Dislricl shall be 30 feel. 
ll . Accessory buildillgs shall be localed 110 closer lhan tcn ( I 0) feel lo lhe rear properly line. They arc also rcslrictcd 

from platted casement nrcas. 

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION 
The maximum height for slructures in lhe R-0 Districl is as follows: 
A. No principal slruclure shall exceed 45 feel in heigh!, except as noted in Scclion 11 80.0J. 
C. No ncecssory slmclure shall exceed 15 feel in heighl, excepl as noted in Scclion 1180.03. 

OFF-STREET PAHl<ING AND LOADING 
Off-slreel parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapler 1181, Off-Street Parking and Loading. 

LAND USE INTENSITY 
In the R-0, ncsidcnce omce, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 35%. 

CIIA PTF.R 1166 
U-1 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRJCT 

l'llllPOSE 
The purpose of the 0-1. General Business, District is lo provide forcom'enicnce and other shopping, and perso1ml and 
profcs~ional ~crviccs. 

PRJNCIPALLY l' ERMITTEn USF.S 
Principally permitlctl uses are as follows: 
/\. Personnl Services 
13. Relail Business 
c. o mces 
lJ. Financial lnstilulions 
E. Rcstauranls 
F. Fasl Food Rcslauranls 
G. Taverns 
H. Holcls/Molels 
I. Clubs 
J. Aulomolive Ser"iccs 
K. Aulomolivc Filling Slalions 
L. Drive-In Commercial Uses 
M. Funeral Homes 

PlmM ITTED AC.:CF.SSORY USES 
Pennittc<l accessory uses are ns follows: 
Any use or slruclUre cuslomarily accessory to any B· I District permitlcd use. 

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES 
Ci>nditionally pcm1i11cd uses 11rc ns follows: 
A. Public Service facililies 
U. Non-Commercial Recrealion 
C. Commercial Rccrcalion 
D. Etlncalional h1'1itulions 
E. Religious Plnces of Worship " 
F. Bed and Dreakf:isl Eslablishments 
Q, Single Family Dwell ings 
H. Two Fnmily Dwellings 
I. Multi-camily Dwell ings 
J. Pubic Rccrenlion 
K. Nursing I lomcs 

25 



1166,05 

ll 66,06 

1166.07 

1166.08 

1166,09 

1166,10 

1166.11 

1167.0J 

11 67.02 

1167.0J 

1167.04 

L, Commercial Sd1ools 
M. Aulomolirc Sales 
N, Commercial E11tcrtninmcnt 
0. Animal I lospitals and Clinics 
P. Clinics 
(J, Day Care Facilities 
R. Wholesale Business 
S. Building and Related Trades 
T Lock and Store Warehousing 
U. Fnm1 and I lcavy Equipment Sales and Service 
V. Hospilals 
W. Mixed Uses 
X, Assis ted Livi11 ~ Facilities 
Y. Horne Occupations 

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH 
The minimum lot nrcn and width for properties in the B-1 District shnll nol be less thn11 20.000 si1uurc feet :iml :i width 
of 1101 less than I 00 foci. 

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK 
A The minimum front yard setback for properties in the 0-1 District shall he 40 ree l. 
13. No accessory buildings shall be localed in the front yard nrcn. 

l\IJNIMUM Sll>E YAIU> SETBACK 
A The minimum side yard setback for properties in the B-1 District shall be 15 feet. 
ll. Accessory buildings shall be localed 110 closer lha11 !en (I 0) feel to !he side yard properly line. 1'11cy arc nls!l 

restriclcd from plCltted ease111e11t areas. 

MINIMUM REAlt VARI> SETBACK 
A The minimum rcnr ynrd setback for propcrlics in the 0-1 Dislrict shall be 20 feet. 
ll . Accessory buildings shall be locnlcd no closer than ten (IO) feet to the rear propcrt r line. They are also rcslrictcd 

fro m platled cnscment areas. 

l\1AXIMUlll ll EIGllT REGULATION 
The maximum height for s1ruc1Urcs in the 0-1 District is as follows: 
No principal or accessory structure shnll exceed 45 feet in heigh!. 

OFF-STREET PARKING ANU LOADING 
Off-street pnrking and loading shall be as specified in Chapler 1181, Off-Street Park ing and Loading. 

LANll lJSE INTENSITY 
111 the 13- 1, General Business, Oislricl !he maximum lot coverage shnll be 40%, 

CHAPTER 11 67 
B-2 CICNTRAL llUSI NESS DISTRICT 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of the f3-2,Ccntml ausincss, District is to encourage the functional groupiug of thusc commercial. 
residential and acccssori· establishments supporting the preservation of the historic charaelcr or this district. 

PRINCIPALLY PERMlrfEO USES 
Principally pcnnined uses nrc os follows: 
I\. Personal Services 
B. Retail Business 
C Commercial Schools 
D. Offices 
E. Finnncial lnslitutions 
F. Restaurants 
G. Taverns 
I!. Hotels/Molels 
L Clubs 
J, Mixed Uses 

PF.RMITTEI> ACCF.SSOHY USES 
l'crmincd accessory uses nrc as follows: 
Any use or structure cuslomnrily ncccssory to ally B-2 District permitled use. 

CONDITIONALLY l'ERllfflTEO USES 
Conditionally pcrmilted uses are as follows: 
A. Puhlic Recreation 
B. Public Service Facilities 

26 



11 67.05 

1167.06 

1167.07 

1167.08 

1167.09 

11(.7.10 

1167.l l 

1168.01 

1168.02 

l'. Non-Co111111ercial Rcc1calio11 
D. Commercial Rccrealion 
E. Educational l11slitulions 
F. l(eligious Places of Worship 
G. !Jed and Breakfast Estnblishmc11ts 
H. Single Family Dwellings 
I. Two Family Dwellings 
J. Multi-Family Dwclli11gs 
K. Emcicncy Apartment Dwellings 
L. Day Care Facilities 
M. Nursing 1 lomrs 
N. Fast l'ootl Res1aurants 
0. Automotive Services 
I'. Automotive Filling Stations 
Q. Automotive Sales 
R. Drive-In Commercial Uses 
s. 
T. 
u. 

Commcrcinl Entcrlairunent 
Funeral Homes 
Animal Hospitals and Clinics 

V. Clinics 
W. Group Homes 
X. Hospitals 
Y. Assisted Living Facililics 
Z. llomc Occupations 

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH 
There shall be no minimum lot area or width for properties in the 0-2 Dislrict. 

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK 
A. There shall be no minimum front yard setback for properties in the B-2 District. 
n. No accessory buildings shall be hx:atcd in the front yard area. 

MINIMUM SlOF: YARD SETBACK 
There shall be no minimum side yard ~ctb<Jck for properties in the B-2 District. This includes ilCC~s~ory huildingc;. 

lll lNIMUM Hl!:AH YA){O SETllACK 
A. There shall be no minimum rear yard setback for properties in the B-2 District unless a hutting a residential dislrict: 

then the minimum rcnr yard setback shall be 20 feet. 
IJ. Accessory buildings have a zero (0) foot minimum rear yard setback. 

MAX IMUM m ;IG llT REGULATION 
The maximum height for slmclures in lhe B-2 District is as fo llows: 
A. No principal st1 uc1urc shall exceed 72 feel in heigh!. 
13. No occcssory structure sl1oll exceed 25 feel in height. 

OFF·STRl(E'f' l'AHKING ANIJ LOADING 
Off-street parking and loading shall be as speciried in Chapter 1181, Off-Street l'arkill(\ '"d Loa<llng. 

LAN O USE INTENSITY 
In the B-2, Cenlral Business, Oistrict the maximum lot coverage may be 100%. Excc1>tion, if site is mljacrut to 
residential dislrict, sec Section 1167.08 

CllAl'TER 1168 
IJ.J COMMUNITY SHOPPING DISTRICl' 

l'UHl'OSF: ,. 
The purpose of the 13-J, Community Shopping, J)istrict is to provide for shopping centers and related oullots o r an 
inlcgralcd design which provide for adequate parking and servicing areas. 

PRINCIPALLY PEHMITTF.ll USES 
Principally peni1illed uses arc as follows: 
A. Persunal Services 
B Retail Husincss 
C. Offiec. 
1J. Finnncial Institutions 
E. Restauranls 
F. Taverns 
G. Automotive Services 
II. Automotive Filling Stations 
I. Drive-In Commercial Uses 
J. Commercial Entertrunmcnt 
K. Shopping Centers 

27 



1168.UJ l'~:HMITTW /\C'Cl':SSOHY USES 
/\ny use or slructm c customarily accessory to any [3.J Dislrict permitted use. 

1168.04 CON DITIONALLY l'EHMITTEU USES 
Conditionally pcnnillcd uses are as follows: 
A. Public Recreation 
U. Public Sm•icc Facilities 
C. Non-Commcl'<'ial Recreation 
D. Commercial Recreation 
E. Edncutional Institutions 
f Religious Plnccs of Worship 
C. Dny Care facilities 
H. Commercial Schools 
I. Fast Food Restaurants 
J. I lotcls I Motel.• 
K. Clubs 
L. Automotive Sales 
M. funeral Homes 
N. Animal Hospitals and Clinics 
0. Clinics 
I'. Mixed Uses 

l 168.115 MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH 
The minimum lot area and width for properties in the B-3 District is as follows: 
A. The primary <kvclopmcnt shall haven minimum lot area of not less than 200.000 square feet and a width of not 

less thnu 400 feet. 
B. Outlots shall hnvc minimum lot area of not less than 20.000 squ"<c feet and a width of not Jess lii:111 150 feel. 

1168.06 J\llNIJ\IUM FllONT YARO SETBACK 
A. The minimum fron t yard setback for properties in the B-3 District shall be 60 feet. 
U. No accessory buildings shall be located in the front yard area. 

I 168.07 MINIM UM SIDE\' ARD SETBACK 
A. TI1e minimum side yard setback for properties in the B-3 District shall be 30 feet. 
U. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than twenty (20) feel to any side yard property line. They are also 

restric1cd from 1>lattc<l casc1nent ilrcas. 

I I 68.08 MINIM UM REAR YARD SETBACK 
A. The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the B-3 District shall be 40 feel. 
Il. Acccssor)' buildings shall be located no closer than twenty (20) feet to the rear property line. They arc :1lso 

restricted from plnttcd cnsemcnt meas. 

1168.09 MAXIMUM llEHil-l'f REGULATION 
The 111nximu111 height for structures in the B-3 District is as follows: 
No principal or acccs~ory structure shall exceed 35 feet in height. 

I t68.IO OFF-STREET PAltKING ANJ> LOADING 
Off-street parking nnd loading shall be as specified in Chapter I I 8 l, Off-Street Parking and Loading. 

l 168.11 LANO USE INTENSITY 
In the B-3. Community Shopping, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 30%. 

CHAPTER I 169 
M MANUFACfURING DISTRICT 

1169.01 PURPOSE 
The purpose of the M. M:u1ufacturing, District is to accommodate industrial. manufacturing. warehousing. oflicc. 
research and development, and related uses. 

t 169.02 PltlNCIPALLY l'ERMITTED USES 
Principally permitlccl uses are as follows: 

t 169.0J 

A. Scientific Research Facilities 
13. Wholesale JJusincsses 
C. Manufncturing 
D. Laboratories 
E. Warehousing 
f. food Processing 
G. Mixed Uses 

PF.RMITTEO ACCESSORY USES 
Permitted accessory uses ore as follows: 
Any use or structure customMily accessory to any M Dislrict pcm1ittcd U5C. 

28 



1169.04 CONl)J'flONALL V l'ERMl'ITEI> USES 
Conditionally pcrmillcd uses arc as follows: 
A. Public Rcncation 
B. Public Service Facilities 
C. Grain Elevators and Feed Mills 
D. Offices 
E. Day Care Facilities 
F. Building and Related Trades 
U. Petroleum Refining and S1omge 
11. Oil and Gas Wells 
I. Junk Storage and Sales 
J. Transport Trucking Terminals 
K. f arm and llea\'y Equipment Sales and Service 
L. Stockyards 
M. Mining 
N. I lome Occupations 

1169.05 MINIMUM LOT AREA ANI> WIDTH 
The rnininuun lot area ancl width for properties in the M Dislrict shall not be less tl1an 45,000 square feet nml a wicl1h 
of 1101 le" than 200 feet. 

11 69.06 MINIMUM FRONT YARDSETDACK 

1169.07 

1169.0S 

1169.09 

11 69.10 

11 69.11 

t 180.01 

1180.02 

A. The minimum front yard setback for properties i11 the M District shall he 50 feel. 
IJ. No accessory buildings shall be located in the.front yard area. 

MINIMUM S llJE YARD SETJJACK 
A. The minimum side yard setback for properties in the M District shall be 30 feet. 
D. Accessory huildings shall be located no closer than ten ( l 0) feet lo any side yard property line. They arc al'<• 

restricted from plaited casement areas. 

~llNIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK 
A. The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the M District shall he 40 feet. 
B. /\ccessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten ( 10) feel to the rear property line. They arc also rcs lriclcd 

from plntccd casement nrcas. 

~ lAXIM UM llEIGllT REGULATION 
The maximum height for sln1cturcs in the M District is as follows: 
No principal or accessory structure shall exceed 45 feet in height. 

OFF-STREET PARKING ANU LOADING 
Off-street parking nnd loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181 , Off-Street Parking and l.onding. 

LAND USE INTENSITY 
In the M, Manufocluring. District lhe maximum lot coverage shall be 50%. 

CHAPTER 1180 
SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS 

FLOOR ARRA REQUIREMENTS FOR DWELLINGS 
·111e floor nrca per fami ly in dwellings erected on any lot shall not be less lhan lhal established by the following 
table. In dctennining floor nrea, only area used for living quarters shnll he cuunlctl. Commun areas such as 
utility rooms, laundry areas, mechanical rooms. halls, and stairways are lo be excluded. Alsn exclude<! nrc 
garages, carports, porches, and basements. 

MINIMUM FLOOR AREA PER EACH FAMILY UNIT . 
(faprcsscd in square feet) 

~i.111:.1£ .... 1\!!l!J.Jm 
f!uu.ily Uwcllina 

AuArtment or Multiple Dwellings 
~ l llcdroom Unit ~ 

1!£.~LO.J!.'l'.~ 

"R· I " 1100 NII\ NII\ NII\ 
"R·2" 900 NII\ 575 820 
"l(.J" 750 285 575 750 
"R-0" NIA 285 575 750 
In other districts where n:sidc11ccs are allowed as conditional uses, R·J staudards npply. 

S llJE ANIJ REAR YARJ) REQUIREMENTS l'OH NONRESIDENTIAL IJSl':S AllllTTINC; "fl" 
IJI STR!CTS 
A. Minimum Ynrd Hequircrncnfs. Nonresidential buildings or uses shall rrol he localed nor <"omluctc<l 

closer 10 any lot line of "R· I", "R·2" or "R-3" District than the distance specified irr the folluwing 
schedule, cxccpl a• pro,·idcd in subsection (0) hereof. 

~linimum Side or Rear Ynrd Modilication 

29 



1180.03 

1180.04 

11811.05 

Alrnttiu~ :i11y " R" District (ft.) 

25 

so 

60 

100 

500 

Use 

OIT-strccl parking and loatlin1: sp:iccs mid access drives for 
nonresidential uses. 

Churches, schools and public or semipublic buildings. 

Recreation facilities, cntcrlainmcnt focililics. motels. trnilcrs nnd 
mobile home parks, all commercial uses aml billboards. 

Onlside sale or slorage of building material or co11struclio11 
cquipmenl, all industrial uses, except those I isled herein. 

Auto and mctnl snlvage operations: 111incrnl c:oc trnc tion or 
processing. 

11. Landscaping or Screening ProYisions. Fornonrcsidcntial uscsabulling "R" Districts the minimum yards 
may be reduced to fifty percent (50%) oflhc requirements staled in subsection (13) hereof if landscaping 
or screening, approved by the Zoning Inspector, is provided. 

HEIGllT REG ULATIONS FOR INSTITUTIONAL, OFFICE, INDUSTRJAL AND Al'AlffMF.NT 
UUILDINGS AND STRUCl'URES 
/\ . 

A. 

lnslitutional, industrial and apartment buildi11gs with a height in excess of the m:-iximum height spccHicd 
in the respective districl for such buildings shall be permitted provided the required fr('l11t, side and rem 
yards arc increased by one foot for each fool of ndditional building height nbove 1hc nrnximum speci fi ed 
in the respective district. 
The hcighl regulations prescribed herein shall not npply to television and radio lowers. church spires. 
belfries. monuments, tanks, water and fire towers. stage towers or scenery Ions. cooling. towers. 
ornamental towers and spires, chimneys, silos ::md similar structures, elev::. tor b11lkhei1<ls, snwke~tach, 

con\'cyors and flagpoles. except where the height of such :"lruclures wil l constilulc a ha1 .... 1rd to u safe 
landing and tnke-off of aircraft at an established airport. 

C. No building shall exceed n ma., imum hcighl of 100 feet witho11t prior npproval of the Planning 
Co1111nissiu11. 

EXISTING LOTS OF RECORD 
T he following applies lo all ,ots of record at the effective date of this Zoning Ordinance. 

/\. Any existing lot of record forty feel or wider in districts allowing single family rcsidc11<es as 
permilled uses may be used for lhe erection ofa single-family dwelling even though its area mid 
width arc less than the mini11111m requirements set forth herein. 

0. On lots of record setbacks for new, altered or expanded residences and their accessory stmclmcs 
shall be determined according to lite following: 
I. The minimum side yard setback shall be detcnnined by the p1opnrti o11al 1cduction or lhe 

requirements specified in the district up ton maximum of 50% of the minimum sctb:it:k 
stated in the district. 

2. ·n1c front and rc:tr setbacks sl1all be established by tl1c ct111cspondintt prcvniling sct b~1cks 
for the front nnd rear yards on the same side of the block on which lhc struclurc is loc;:11cd 
up Lo a maximum of 50% of the minimum setback slated in the district. 

13. Oncxi~ting singlc·fomilystructurcs and their accessory stnictures, nn cxi~ting wnll nrnr hccxtc11dctJ 
parallel to lhe side yard property line if the following conditions arc met: 
I. No buildings on the adjacent lot arc within 10 feel of the w"ll extc11sion. 
2. Extension is no longer than 50% of the length of the wall al the lime of the adoplim1 <•ft he 

Ordinance. 
3. Limited to a minimum setback of three (3) feet in all cases. 

ARClllTECTURAL PROJECrIONS 
Certain nrchiteclurnl fca lures may project into rc~uired minimum yard setbacks as follow" 
A. Front. s ide and rear yards. The following architectural features may project into lhc minimu111 yard 

setback of any front, rear or side yard adjoining a side strcel: 
I. Cornices, cnnopies, caves, or other architcclural features may project a dislnncc not exceeding two 

feet. six inches. 
2. Fire c~capcs may project a distance not exceeding four feet. six inchc~. 
3. An uncovered stai r, including landings, may project a distance nol loexcccd six (6) feet. Such slair 

and landing shall n"t exlend above the entrance Ooor with the cxccpti l>11 or hmt<hail ings. 
1 lamlrailings may extend an additional three (3) feet above the Ooor level. 

4. Bay windows, balconies, uncovered porches or decks. and chimneys mny projcc.I a distance 11111 to 
exceed ihrcc (3) feet. These !Caturcs shall not occupy more than one-third('/,) Ilic width or the 
building Iowa.rd the yard in question. 

ll. lnteriorsidc yards. The stmctures or fcaluresas listed in (A) above, moy project into an inlcrior sidc yard 
(those side yards not facing a side street) n distance np to onc-fifih (115) the required setback dislmtcc. 

30 



1180.06 

1180.07 

1180.08 

1180.09 

1180.10 

11 80.11 

I lowevcr, such projccliun shall nol exceed lhrcc (3) feel. S1ruc1urcs or li:almcs whid1 cxlcml into llll1rc 
than one minimum side yard setback arc subjecl lo all combined limilnlions. 

SPECIAL YA IW HEQUIREMENTS 
t\. Lois having frolllagc on more lhan one slrect shall pro .. ide 1he required froul yard on lhc princiral slrccl 

and the mininnnu side yard required in that district, but not less thnn linccn foci on 1hc "idc street. 
B. In lhe case of lo1s having frontage on more than one slrcct, accessory stnrctures in 1h:i1 ~idc yaul !->lmll 

meet lhe prevail ing front yard sclbnck on the street on which it is localed. 
C. Where a huilding lot is comprised of more than one lot of record, building sc1b.1cks fornll inlcrinr ln1 lines 

shall be as for any property line. However, a building may overlap an inlcrior lo! line. 

TRAFFIC VISllllLITY ACROSS CORNER LOTS 
In m1y district, except in the U-2 dislrict, 011 any comer lot. no fence, structure'" planling <hall he croclcd or 
maintained within n tl'ianglc 20 feet from the interscctionoflhe right-of-way lines which nrny interfere wilh trnflic 
visibility across the corner. 

CONVERS ION OF !>WELLINGS 
111 "R-2" and "lt-3" Districts, an ex isling residence may be converted lo nccommodatc "" incrcnsc<l 1111mhrr of 
dwell ing unils provided: 
A. The ymd dimensions meel the ynrd dimensions requirer! by the zoning regulal ions fo r new slructurcs in 

thal dislricl. 
11. The lot arcn per family is equal lo the lot area requirements for new multi-fam ily slmclurcs in that tlisi ricl. 
C. The number of square feet of living nrca per fam ily unit is not less than lhal which is required for new 

constmclion in that districl. 

MOBILE llO~IE PArtKS 
All mobile home parks shall confonn lo and be pursuant lo lhe conditional use prnvisions sci for1h in Chnpler 
1145. Furthermore, all site, utility and conslruction plans are to be approved by 1hc Ohio Dcpnolmcnl of I lcallh 
and the City prior lo the pcrmilling of a mobile home park. 
Mobile home parks slmll be subject lo the fo llowing conditions in addilion to vnrious dislricl regulations: 
A. No mobile ho1ncshall be pcrmilled to locate in the Municipality except in a mobile home park in lhc "R-3" 

I liglt Dcm;ity Residence: Distric1. 
B. The mobile home park shall conform lo the following requirements: 

I. II shall contain al least live acres. 
2. II shall provide a clearly defined minimum area ofJ,000 square feel including n minimum width 

of forty feel fo r each mobile home or trailer. 
3. ll shall have a minimum of 800 square feet of floor area per fomily i11 each mobile home. 
4. ll shall provide a minimum of twenty-fool clearance belween individual mobile homes or lrnilers 

and a 1hirty·fool setback from any property line bounding the 111obile home 1~irk. 
5. All 111obilc home spnccsslrnll abut upon a concrctcorasphalt<lrivcway ofnol lcss thou twc111y feet 

in width. which shall hnvc unobstructed ft cccss to a private or public ~trccl. 
6. The developer slrnll provide a recreational area equal to a minimum of I 0% of the ~ross la11 <1 area 

of the mobile home pnrk development. In lieu of providing this rccrcnlionnl nrca the devclopcrcnn 
pny ll fee to the city of comparable value for utilizalion at the ncarcsl public recreational nrca. 

7. II •hall conform to all City, Ct•unly and Slate Health Depanmcnl rcquiremc111s. 

HESIDENTIAL PARKING RU:STRICTIONS 
The following restrictions shall apply to residential districts: 
A. Parking mobile home units in any area outside of mobile home parks or sales areas for more than forly· 

eight (48) hours is prohibited. 
0 . Parking of commcrcinl vehicles, motor homes and nll trnilers, including utilily, hoat, recreational i1ncl 

commercial, on residential slrccts or in lhe front yard of any residential lots for more than fml)'-cighl (4~) 
hour< is prohibited. 

C. Unoccupied motor homes and camping trailers, boats and noncommercial utility trailers may he 1>arked 
in re•r and side yards. 

SWIMM ING POOLS 
Swimming pools shall be subject lo the following conditions: 
A. Private Swimming Pool: No swimming pool, exclusive of portable swimming pools wilh a dimnelcr lc.c:~ 

than lwclvc feel or wilh an area of less than 100 square feet, shall be allowed in any dis1ric1. except os an 
accessory use and unless ii complies with the following conditions and requirements. 
I. The pool is intended and is to be used solely for the enjoyment of the occupants of the princip11I 

u>c of the property on which it is located. 
2. II shall not be located, including any walks or pnved areas oraccessory structures adjacent thcrc ll>. 

closer than ten feel lo any property line of the properly on which ii. is localed. 
J. The swimming pool shall be walled or fenced to prevent uncontrolled access by children r,.,1111hc 

street or from adjacent properties. The fence or wall shall be constructed nol less than rive reel 
in heigh I and maintained in good condition, with a gale and lock. 

13. Community or ClubSwinuning Pools: Community and club swimming rools arc permiucd in nll districl>, 
but shall comply wilh the following condi tions and requirements: 
I. The pool is intended solely for lhe c1tjoyment of the members and fami lies and guests of 111c111hcrs 

of the association or club under whose ownership or jurisdiction the pool i.~ opcrntc<l. 

31 



1180.12 

1180.13 

1180.14 

2. The pool nnd accessory structures, including the nrca used by bnlhcrs. shall no! he closer llmn lhc 
distances lisle<l as lhc principal huildi11gsclbncks for t he zoningclas.<iricalio11 within which the pool 
is located. 

3. The swimmi11g pool a11d nil of the arcn used by the bathers shall be walled or lc ncc<l to prevent 
uncontrolled access by children from the street orndjaccnt properties. The rc11cc or wnll shall not 
be le.ss than six feel in height and mnintained it1 good condition. 

COMMUNITY lll!'.VELOl'MENT PRO.me-rs 
/\. 

B. 

/\n authorized agency of the Municipality. Slate or Federal government or lhc owners of any tract <>llan<l 
in an "R" District comprising an arra of not Jess tha11 ten acres may submit to Council a pion for the use 
and tlcvclopment of all of the tract of land for residential and associated 11on-rcsidcntial p11rposcs. The 
develupmenl pla11 shall be referred to the Plmu1ing Commission for study a11u report an<l liir public 
he::irings. Notice and publicntion of such public hcnrings shall conform lo Ilic pr(Jcc-durcs prescribed in 
Chaplcr 11 57 for hcaring~on changes and amendments. I fthc Commission approves the plans. 1hesc ~lrnll 
be s11hmit1c:d to Council for consideration ;md action. The approvtil and rccommendntions of Ille 
Commission shall be :H.:t:ompanicd by a report stating the reos(lns for appro\'HI of the npplicath.111 :iml 
spcdfic l'vi<lc11cc sh<lwing that the proposed cornrnunily dcvclopn1e11t project mceis with the followin!J. 
conditions: 
I. The property adjacent lo the area included in the plan will not be adversely affected. 
2. The plan is consistent with the intents and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance to promolc public 

health, safety, mornls and general welfare. 
3. 
4. 

The use of the land shall be similar to the uses permitted in the district in which the plan is located. 
That the average lot area per family contained in the site exclusive of the nrca occupied by streets. 
wi ll not be less than the lot area per family required in the district in which the develnp111e111 is lo 
be located. 

If the PJa11ning Commissio11 and Council approve the plans, a Zouing Certificate shall be issued. even 
tho\l~h the use of the land, the location and height of buildings lo be erected in the area, nnd the yard• anti 
open space contemplated by the plans do not conform in all respects 10 1hc. district reg.ult1tions or the 
district in which the project is located. 

RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY BUILDINGS /\ND H:NCES 
A. /\ccc"ory Buildings: 

I. Single family residences Me limited to one (I) accessory building except for properties with 
detached garages, which may also have a small storage build ing not exceeding l 50 square feet in 
area. Properlies wilh more than one dwelling unit mny have 011e 3cccssory huilding for ench 
dwelling unit. 

2. The ground floor area of all accessory buildings shall not exceed the ground floor area of the 
dwelling. 

13. fences and planting screens shall be subject to the following regulations: 
I. Fences. plant material, and similar scrccningdcviccs up to three (J) feet high are pcrmilled in the 

front yard areas. Fences up lo six (6) feel in height nre permitted in lhc remaining yr1rd <1rem;. 
2. Injurious matcrinls such ns barbed wire, electrically charged fences: or spike fences nrc not 

pem1ittcd in any case. 
J. No fencing, or other similar structures. are permitted in ecisemcnt arcns. 
4. No fence or plnnting screen shall violate the visibility requirements of Section 1180.07. 

~:NVIRONMENT/\L PERFORMANCE STANDARJJS 
Environmenlnl performance standards arc regulations \Vhich are intended to promolc <l pcnccful and q11ic1 
environmcnL Restrictions or limits itrc established on uses or fncili ties whose cnvironnw11tal foctors may crctlle 
a nuisance or cause a noxious, objectionable or other undesirable eOCct on persons or properties outside of the 
subject property. These restrictions apply to a uses' co11struction as well as its opcrotion. Materials <llldl<•r 
products of n use shall he maintained in a method so that the health, safety and wclforc of persons occupying the 
sul:iiccl property or adjacent properties are not jeopardized. 
A. /\pplicability and Compliance 

The Environmental Performonce Standards are applicable to all laud uses in all zoning districts in the City. 
and both initial and continued compliance is required. /\ny condition or lan<l use falling under the 
jurisdiclion of the standards of this code cit the time of its adoption and not in con!Ormanec with these 
standards shall be brought in full compliance immediately upondiscontinuancc of I he existing usc ofl:md. 
structure or building. Any change in the principal use of land, strncture or builcli11g shnll constitute a 
discontinuance and be fully subject to these standards and provisions. 

B. Noise 
No activity 0 11 private property shall emit noise in excess of sound levels indicated in the table below. 
Sound levels shall be determined by the use of a sound level meter designed 10 give measurements 
designated as dUA or dU(A). Measurements may be taken, at the discretion of the Zoning ln.<pcctN, al 
the properly lincornnywhcrc beyond the property line of the source property. ·1·tie 111nximum noi~c levels 
will be established by lhe receiving property or 7.oni11g district regcirdless of the proximity of the source 
proprrty to it. The source pmpcrty need not be r:.ontiguous to the rct:civing property. 

MAXIMUM l'ERMrtTED SOUND LEVELS 

I o tmcE PROl'~-;;.;:y- ttr.cr.1v1NG rRorrnn 

I NOISE SO\JllCE TIME RESIDENJ 11\L COMMERCIAL 

32 



l 181.01 

ltri;idrnli;tl U;1,1i111c1 .IJdUA .ll•fll1\ J5 JIJA 
Ni&huim~' JO lO JO 

("ntittll('ld!\1 0."t)llm~1 Sl 6U 60 
Nit1111lmc' 50 lO lO 

lml11s1ri:t l U.1ylitnc' ll 60 70 
Nil!l1Uirnc1 50 so 60 

: O:i.ytime slt:ill be ton~idcmJ 1J the hours between 7:00 AM and 10:00 f>M. 
Ni~lmltucshall be coru idmd IS 1hc hnurs bct\\Cco IO:OQ 1'"1and7:00AM. 

C. Exemptions 
111e following noise levels shall be exempl from !he noise provisions during !he daytime only: 
I . Fire;-irms on aulhorizcd ranges. 
2. Legal blasling. 
3. Temporary eonsiruelion netivily and equipment. 
4. Installation of utilities. 
5. Lawn mowers, chain saws and garden equipmenl. 
The following noise sources shall be exempl from !he noise provisions al all lime" 
I. /\ircraft. 
2. Rai I roads. 
3. Emergency vehicles and equipment. 
4. Warning devices operating continuously for not more than five (5) miuules. 
5. Bells. chimes or carillons operating conlinuously for no! more lhan fi ve (5) minulcs per hour. 
6. TI1c repair of esscnlial ulilily services. 
7. Officially sanclioned parades or olher cvenls. 

D. Vibrotions 
Every use shall be so operated that ground vibration inherently and rcc11rrcn1ly gencrnled is nu! 
pcrcepliblc, wilhoul inslrumenls, al any point oulside tJ1e properly li11e of lhe properly 011 which the use 
is localed. 

F,. Gin re 
Any process producing in1ense lighl or heal, which mny cause physicnl harm, including high lcmperaturc 
processes such as combustion or welding, shall no! be visible beyond any lo! line bounding the property 
wherein the use is conducted. 
All exterior ligh1ing on private property shall be posilioned ns lo exlcml glare awlly from adjacenl 
properties or rights-of-way. Furthennore, no activity on privalc property shall gcnerale lighl thal crcales 
a nuisance to surrounding properlies, ns delenn incd by the Zoning Inspector. 

F. Air nnd Water Pollutnnls 
The emission of air and waler pollutnnts shall not violate the slandnrds nnd regulations or any local. slnlc 
or federa l ngency h:wing jurist.l iclion in th is matter. 

G. llnznrdous Mntcrinls 
The storage, utilization and manufacture of solid, liquid and gaseot1s chemicals 11mJ other materia l ~ slmll 
be pcrmillerl subject lo the ~tnndards and regulntions of any local. s lntc or federal :igc11cy lmvin l! 
jurisdiction in this matter. 

11. Elcctrical Dislurbance< 
No ac1ivi1y will be pennillcd which emils clecirical disturbances adversely affccling 1he opcraliun nl any 
poinl of any equipmcnl olher than lhal of !he crealor of such dislurbancc nnd. shall cnmply with all 
appl icable FCC regular ions and slandanls. 

1. Pirc Hazards 
/\ny acliviLy involving !he use orsloragcornammableorexplosivc mnlerial shall he prolectcd hy mlcquale 
flr~- fighling and fire suppression equipment and by safely devices. Such polenlinlly hanrdous ac1ivi1ics 
shal l be kepi from adjaeenl aclivilies at a dislance determined by 1he Na1io1rnl Fire l' ro leclion Coclc. 

,J. E rosion " 
No erosion, by eilher wind or waler or 01hcr liquid shall be permilled which will carry suhsianccs 01110 
neighboring properlics orrights·of·way. Erosion control mclhods shnll be implemented on a ll silos where 
!he ex isling ground surface is nllered or dislurbed. /\II such work shall comply with all locnl, s1a1e nnd 
federal erosion conlrol regulations or slandards. 

C HAPTER 11 81 
OFF~'iTREET PARKING AND LOADING 

OFF-STREET PARKING G ~:NERAL REQUIREMENTS 
/\ny building, slruclure or use ofland, when creeled or enlarged, shall provide for off-slrecl pnrkin~. spaces !Or 
molor vehicles in accordance wi1h the provisions ofl11is Chapler. /\parking plan shall be rcq11i rcd for all use< 
except single family delached dwellings and two family dwellings. The parking plan shall be submiued lo 1he Cily 
as pan o f 1he applicalion for !he Zoning Certificate. The plan shall show the boundaries of U1e properly. pnrkin11 

33 



I 18 1.02 

1181.0J 

sp;1ccs, access driveways, circulalion pallcrns, drainage and const1uclio11 pla11s, lxiurnbry walls, li:11ccs and a 
screening plan. as appropriate. 
Whenever a building or use cnnslrucled or cslablished afler the effcclive dale of !his Orclinance is changed or 
enlarged in noor area, number of dwelling units, seating capacity, or otherwise, 10 crctilc a need fur 1111 increase 
of lcn ( 10) percent or more in lhc number of existing parking spaces, such spaces sliall he provided on the hnsis 
of the cnlnrgc111cnt or change. Whenever a building or use exis1ing prior lo the cffccl ivc d<ltc of thi:) 01di11~ncc 
i ~ enlarged lo lhc extent of fitly (50) percent {Ir more in floor nrcn or in the arcn used, ~m:h building or use shall 
then compl)' wilh the pnrking requirements set forth herein. 

O FF-STIU:t::T PAHKING ANll IJl~IGN STANDAltDS 
/\ II off-street parking facilities including e11tranccs, exils. circulation areas nnd parking spaces shall l•e i11 
accorclm1cc with the following standards and specific.itions: 
/\. Parking space dimension.•. Each off-street parking space shall be no less than nine {'I) feel in widrh ancl 

shall have an area of not less lhan 180 square feel exclusive of access drives or aisle~ a1KI shall he of 
useablc shape and condit ion. 

IJ. Access. There shall be adequale provisions for ingress imd egress to all parking spaces. Where the lot 
or pilrking spaces do not provide di reel access to a public slrcct or nllcy, tin ncccss ctrivcshall be prnvide<I. 
with a dedicated easement of access as fo llows: 
I. For single family dctacheddwelli11gs or two fim1ily dwellings. the ncc°'s drive shall be a mini 11111m 

of eight (8) feet in width. 
2. For nil other uses, the access drive shall be a minimum of sixteen ( 16) feet in width. 
) . /\II parking spaces, except !hose required for single family dclached dwellings and two and three 

fomily dwell ings, shall have access to a public street or alley in such a manner thal any vehicle 
leaving or enlering rhc parking area from or into a public street or alle)' shall be traveling in ;i 
fonvard direclion. 

•I. Parking arc.is shall be considered extensions of the principal use with which they ;ire associalcd. 
Only parking associated wilh uses pennitted in the residential dislrict arc allowed in 1ha1 rcsidr.nli"I 
dislricl. In ndclilion1 rcs idcnlinl district property shall not be U!'ed a~ an access for a 11m1residc11lial 
parking use. 

5. Where possible, shared drh•es shall be util ized by businesses to nccess properties and limit c111b 
cuts on lhoroughforcs. 

C. Screening. Jn addition to the ~elback requirements ~pcci fied in this Chapter for o ff- street prnking for 
more than five (S) vehicles, screening shnll be provided on each side of lhc parking area tlrnl nhul~ :lll)' 

rcsidcntinl district, R~O Di~lricl1 or S· I District. Screening plans sh;iJI be approved hy the Zouing 
Inspector. 

D. Paving. /\ny off-street pMking area for more than five (5) vehicles, and ils drivcwa)', slrnll have a 
durable, dustless surface. 

F:. Drainage. Any off-street parking area for more than five (5) vehicles shall be graded aml dmined so as 
lo dispose of surface waler which might accumulate within or upon such urea, and shall be designed I<> 
prevent lhc tlrainage of surface waler onto adjacent properties, walkways or 01110 publ ic 'tree!<. A 
drainage plan shall be submille<l for approval by the Ci1y. 

F. Unrricrs. \Vherever a parking lot cxlcm.Js lo a property line, fenc ing. wheel slops, curbs or 01her suit:lhlr. 
barriers shall be provided in order to prevent any part of a parked vehicle from extending beyond the 
1>ropcrty line or from destroying the screening materials. 

G. V\.si l.Jlliry. Access of driveways ror parki11gareas ~liall be locci tc:cl in ~l•Ch" '""Y that nny \•chick· e 11lcri11g 
or leaving such parking area shall be clearly \'isible by any pcdcs1rian or 111olorisl approachin~ the access 
or driveway from a public street, private street or alley. 

If. l\•hrking. All parking areas for more than live (5) vehicles shall be marked with point lines. ettrl1'101ics 
or in some other manner approved by lhe City and shnll be mnintnined inn clearly visible wndilion. 

I. Signnge. Where necessary, due lo multiple curb culs, the entrance, exits and the intended circulation 
pattern shall be clearly mmkcd in the parking area. Signage shall consi:c>l or p01vcmcnt markings nr 
freestanding directional .<igns in accordance with Chapler 1185 of this Ordinance. 

J. Li~hling . Any lighls used to illuminate a parking area shall be so arranged as to direct.the li&hl away from 
the n<l,iaccnt properties and street righ1s-of-way. 

DETERMINATION OF REQUIRED SPACES 
In computing the number of pal'king spaces required by this Ordinance, the following shall apply: 
A. Where floor area is designnted as the standard fordctcnnining parking space requirements. the floor aica 

shall he the sum of the gross lcasablc horizontal area of all floors of a non~rcsidcntial building. 
II. Where sealing capacity is designated as the stnndar<l for determining pal'king space rcq11i rc111cn1s. lhe 

capacit)' shall mean the number of seating units installed or. indicated for each twenty (20) lineal i11che" 
of hench type seating fo cil itics. 

C. Fractional numbers shall be increased 10 the next highest whole 1111mbcr. 
I>. Purking spm.:c requirements for a use not spccit1cally mentioned in this Orclin:mcc slrn11 be dclc1mincd l>y 

using the most similar o.nd restrictive pnrking space requirement as speci ricd by the Plmming l'o111missio11. 
f... \Vhen the building floor area isdcsignntcd as the ~tandnrd fordetcrmi11ing parking space rcquircmcnlr. m1cJ 

that number is less than the minimum standard, at least one p01rking spncc shall be provided on lhc 
premises. 

)4 



1181.04 

fi. If Jwo or more uses occuron one property. off·slrcct parking requirements for all uses shall be con1pu1cd 
mul added together lo obtain the total required spaces for the property. 

!'ARKING SPACE REQU!Rl~MENTS 
Wi1h lhc cxccplion oflhc B-2 Districl, the number of off-street parking spaces 10 be provided shall nol he less 
Ihm> lhc following: 
A. Airport 

B. 
c. 

I>. 

l,; 

F. 

(;. 

II. 
I. 
.I. 
I<. 

L. 
M. 

N. 

(). 

I'. 
Q. 
ll. 

s. 
T. 
u. 

v. 

w. 
x. 

v. 
z. 

AA. 

uu. 

cc. 
nu. 

EE. 
l'F. 

GG. 
IHI. 
·u. 
.JJ . 

l{K. 

Au imal fl ospital and Clinic 
Au tomolh'c Filling SJations 

Aulo111olil'e Sel'l'ices 

Automotive S ales 

lkd mad Urc'1kfost 

Building :and Related Trodes 

Cemetery 
Clinics 
Clu ll 
Commercial Enterf::tinmcnt 

Day Ca re Facility 
Educnlional Jnstitution 

Fann and llea,·y Equipment 
Sales nnd Sel'l'ice 

Financial Institution 

Food Processing 
~·uncral Home 
Grnin EJc,•ators and Feed Mills 

Gr·oup Home 
Hospitals 
lloicl/Motcls 

Lock nnd Store Warehousing 

Manufacturing 
Mixed Uses 

Nursing Home 
Office 

Personal Scrvic<!s 

Public Sen•ice f acility 

Hccrcational, Non .. Con1111ercinl 
Hecreationnl, Commerci:il 

Religious Plncos of Worship 
Resi;lenlial, Mobile Home 

Residential, Multi-F•mily 
Residential, Single Family 
Residential, Two F:unily 
Scientific Research Facilities 
and Labor:1tories 
Rcstaurnnts 

One spcice per four aircraft tic clowns plus one spncc per four 
aircraft storage areas. 
Four spaces for each cxnm ination room. 
One space per fuel pump. Plus two spaces for each service hay. 
Plus one space for each JOO square feet of cnnvenicncc lypc rel nil. 
Two spaces for each service !Jay. Drive through ~n1!011101ive 

services such as car washes and t1uick lubes slwll provide su rlicicn( 
slacking spaces for three vehicles per bay. 
Three spaces minimum, or one space for c11ch 5,000 :::tj llill"C reel or 

lot snles area. whichever is grca1cr. 
One space for each guest room plus two sp:ices fur the pcrnm11cn1 
residence. 
One space per each 500 square feet of fl oor area, plus one spncc 
for each 1,000 square feet of warehouse space. 
One space per each employee. 
One space for each l 00 square feel of Ooor area. 
One space for each l 00 square feel of Ooor nrca. 
One space per five scats or one space for c:ich l OU square feet of 
floor area. 
One space for each three children per licensed design capacity. 
Two spaces for each classroom, plus one space for each four seals 
in the places of assembly. High schools, rnlleges. amt voc;alioual 
schools shall also include one space for each fi ve sludcnts al <lcsi~n 
capacity. 
One space fo r each se r vice bay, pl u s 
one space for each 4,000 square feet of lol area used for pruducl 
display. 
One space for each 200 square feet of noor area. plus sufficient 
stacking space to accommodate the mun her of nutomohilcs cqu<tl 
to Jive times the number of drive-up teller wiudows or drive-up 
A TM machines. 
One space for each l ,000 square feet o fnoor area . 
Oue space for each SO square feet of noor area. 
One space for each 400 square feel of Ooor area plus a minimtim 
of200 feet of stacking space for each loading aud unloading bay. 
One space for each four beds. 
One space for each bed.· 
One space for each sleeping room, plus one space for each 100 
square feet of public meeting area nnd/or rcstmmmt space. 

One space for each 1,000 square feel of net 
leasablc floor area. 
One space for each 1,000 square feet of floor area. 
Spaces shall be determined by the application of all use 
requirements. 
One space for each three beds. 
One space for each I SO square feel o l'floor area with a minimum 
of four (4) spaces required. 
One space for each l SO square feet of floor area with a minimum 
of four (4) spaces required . 
One space for each 150 square feet of floor area wj(h a minimum 
of fou r (4) spaces required. 
One space for each participant at maximum ulil iz .. 1tio 11. 
One space for each three seals. one space for each I 00 square lcct 
of noor area, or one per each partidpnnt ;H maximum ulili7.ntion, 
whichever is greater. 
One space for each four seats in the place of assembly. 
Two spaces for each unil, plus one space for each five unils for 
guest parking. 
Two spaces for each dwelling unit. 
Two spaces for each dwelling unit. 
Two spaces for each dwelling uni t. 

One space for each 200 square 
feet of floor area. 
One space for each 100 square rcct of floor area with a 111 i11i1m1m 
of six (6) spaces required. 

35 



1181.05 

1181.06 

1181.07 

1181.08 

I 181.09 

l 181.10 

1181.ll 

LL. Rcslauranls, FRsl Food 

MM. Hctail IJ1ui11css 

NN. Shopping Ccnlcr 
0 0. Slockyanb 
PP. T:wtrns 

QQ. Transport Trucking Tcnninal5 
HH. Warehousing 
SS. Wholesale llusinc" 

JOINT USE 

One space for each I 00 square feel of noor area. plus snflicienl 
stacking space for five vehicles al each d1 ivc through window with 
n minimum of four (4) spaces required. 
One space for each 150 squarr feel of noor:irca wi1h" minimum 
of four (4) spaces required. 
Five spaces for each 1,000 square feel of floor area. 
One space for each l ,000 square fee t of noor area. 
One space for each I 00 squllrc feet or floor arc:. with a mini111u111 
of six (6) spaces re-quired. 
One space for each 1,000 square feet of Ooor area. 
One space for each 2.000 square !eel or lloor area. 
One space for each 250 square feel of lloor area. 

Two or more nonresidential uses may jointly provide and use parking spaces whcn lhcir hours of operation do 
not normally overlap, provided Iha! a wri!lcn agreement, approved by the Law Dircclnr and ncccpied by the 
Planning Commission sholl be filed wilh the application fbr o Zoning Certincatc. 

OTHER LOCATIONS 
Parking spaces may be localed on n lo! olhcr lhan that containing !he principal use wilh the approval l)f the 
Planning Commission, provided a written ogrcemcnl, approved by the I.aw Director and nccc111e1I by the Planning 
Commission. shall he fllcd wilh the applicalion fo r a Zoning Certi!icalc. 

llANDICAl' l'IW l'ARI<ING REQUIREMENTS 
Parking spaces for !he physically lmndicapped shall be as provided in and marked as pert he Ohio Dn.<ic lluilding 
Code. 

OFF~<;TREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS 
In any districl, in connection wilh every building. or part !hereof, hereafter creeled and having a gross noor area 
of 10.000 square feet or more. which is lo be occupied by s1oragc1 warehouse. rctnil store. wholc!!<nlc: ~tore. hotel. 
hospilal, funeral Imme, or other uses similarly requiring the receipt or distribution by •·chicle of malcrial nr 
merchandise, there shall be provided ond maintained on the same lot with such building. at leas! one off-street 
loading space, plus one additional such loading space for each additional I 0.000 square feel. 

OFF-STREKr LOADING DESIGN STANDARJJS 
All off-street loading spaces shall be in accordance wilh !he following slandards and 'pccilications: 
A. Dimcn•ions - Each loading space shall have a minimum dimension not less than 12 feet in width. 28 feet 

in lcnglh and a vert ical clearance of not less thnn 14 feel in height. 
IJ. Scthncks. Nolwilhslanding olhcr provisions oflhis regulalion and olhcr setback requiremcnls. off·slrccl 

landing spaces may be located in lhe required rear or side yard of any ll· I or M Dislricl provided thal n(ll 
m<•re lhnn 80% of !he required rear yard or side yard is occupied, and no par! of any loading space shall 
be pmnittcd closer llrnn SO feel from any right-of-way or residential district unless wholly wilhin a 
completely enclosed building. 

C. Screening · f 11 nddition to the sctbnck requirements specified above, screcnins !'h~ll be provided <' ll cnch 
side of an off-street loading space thal abuts any residential dislriel. Screening plans shall be appro\'cd 
by the Zoning Inspector. 

D. Access - All required off-slreet loading spaces shall have access from a public street or alley in such a 
manner Iha! any vehicle leaving the premises shall be traveling in a forward direction. 

I" ra,·ing - Any required off-slrccl loading spaces. together with its driveways, aisles and other circulation 
arras, shall be surfaced with a pavement having an asphalt or concrete binder of suflicicnt strength to 
support vehicular loads imposed on it while providing a durable, dustless surface. 

F. Drninagc - All loading s_pnccs, togelherwith driveways, aisles and othcr circulalion nrens shall be graded 
and drnincd so as to dispose of surface waler which might nccumulitlc within or upon such nrcn. anti shall 
be designed to prevent lhe excess drainage of surface waler onto adjacent properties. \\'1tlkwi1ys or 011h.1 
public slrccts. /\ drninage plan shall be submitted for approval by the City. 

G. Lighting. Any lights used tu illu111inale a loading area shall be ;1na11gctl so as tu reflect the light awa}' 
from any adjacent properties or rights-of-way. 

SUDMISSION TO PLANNING COMMISSION 
Uetailed drnwings as indicated in Chapter 1146, Sile Plan Guideline Standards, inclicnling necessary parking and 
ofl'streel loading facilities shall be submilted to the Planning Commission with the exception of single ramily 
delachctl dwellings and duplexes, fur approval prior lo lhc granting of any ccrtilicale. Such clrnwing shall show 
!he number of spnces and locations, dimensions and descriptions of all features enumerated in this Section or"' 
required elsewhere in this Zoning Code. The Planning Commission mny require, in addition to tlm:iccnumcrnkd. 
furlher struc1ural or landscaping fcnturcs such as bumper guards1 curbs, wnlls, fence~, shmh~, trees, ground cover 

·or hedges to further the intent nncl purposes of this Zoning Cu<lc. The Plnnning Commissio11, in nddition. nrny 
rccommcn<l such changes in l oc~t ion, width and number of driveways as it shall determine nrc 11 ccc~~:11 )' to 
eliminate m1y potential tramc l1<1111rds. 

MOmFICA TIO NS 

36 



The Pl:u111ing Commission may au1hu1 izc a modificalion. rcduct io11, or w;_i i\·cr of lhc fo1cgoing1cquircmc111:-: if il 
should lin<l 1hal the pcculinr nalurc of lhc rcsidcnlial, business, lrnde, induslrial, olhcr use, cxccplional si111al io11 
or comlilion would juslify s11cl1 aclion. 

CHAPTE R ll83 
ADOITI ONAL PIWVISIONS FOR INTEGHATED APAl!TMENT, OFFICE, HESEA l{CJI AN ll INl)llSTHIAI. 

1183.01 

USES 

INT EGltATEU APART MENT, O FFICE, ANU JNJlUSTRIAL CENTERS 
The dcvelopmcul of groups of properlies for apartmenl, office, research and induslrial ccnlcrs in "R·O" 00111 .. ~ 1· 
Dislricls shall be subjecl lo lhe following requiremenls: 
A preliminary review process shall be followed lo ensure compliance with local ion. si1e, and chamclcr u-.pccl• 
ortl1c proposed developmenl, and . 
/\final dcvcloprnenl plan review process shall be followed lo ensure compliance lo design rcquircmcnl< o l' lhc 
development 
A. Prelimina ry Hcview 

I. ·111c owner of a lracl localed in any "R-0" or "M" Dislricl, and conlaining 1101 lcss lhan four ancs. 
shall submit to the Planning Commission for its review a preliminnry plan shnwi11g the use ;mcl 
devclopmcnl of such Intel of land for an apartment. office, research or industri:tl ccntC' r. The 
proposed uses may be mixed, bul shall be consislc111 wilh lhoseallowc<l in l11c <l islricl wi1hi11 "hid1 
lhe lrncl of land is locale<l. If lhe proposed uses arc nol consislcnl wilh lhnsc in lhc c\isling 
zoning district, the owner can proceed with a concurrent request to change lhc zoning 
classifica1io11 lo lhe approprialc classification. 

2. lnacccpling such plans forreview, lhc Planning Commission must besalisficd lhal lhc prnpunrnls 
of lhe aparlmcnl, office, resenrch or induslrial cenler arc capable lo umlerlakc nnd cornplclc lhc 
proposed dcvclopmc1\t, boll1 financi3lly and operationally. /\ rcil sonable ti11lelnblc of clcvel<1prnc11( 
must be committed to by the proponents of the center ilnd approved by thC' Planning Commission. 

R. Preliminnry Plan Requirements 
I. The Preliminary l'lan shall show a<levelopmenl eonsisling of one or more groups of eslabl.ishmcnls 

in buildings or an inlegrntcd and hanuoniousdcsign, together with adequate ttllll properly ;.rrangcd 
ulililies, lraffic and parking facililies and landscaping, which will co111plcmc1111hc gcncrnl ch:irac1c1· 
oflhe adjoining development and surrounding area. 

2. The applieanl slrnll submil n traffic circulalion plan which should prescnl: 
a. the location of lhe proposed development in relal ion lo lhc Cily ·111oroughforc l'lan; 
b. lhc nnlicipale<l levels of vehicular and pedeslrian lrnllic lo be gencralcd hy lhe 

de\•elopmcnt; 
c. lhe arrnngcrnent of on-site traffic circulation am.I p:1rking facilities anJ l:nu.lstnping 

elements; 
d. any physical and/or olhcr lraflic improvemenls required, requcsled, or proposed lo 

nllcviale nnlicipalcd congeslion being crealed by lhc proposed dcvclopmcnl; aml 
c. such other infomrntion as the Planning Commission shall require. 

J . The npplicnnl shall suhmil ulil ily and dra inage plans for lhe proposed dcvelopmcnl which shall 
show lhe followi ng: 
a. The con11cc1ion poinls lo lhc Cily's waler and waslcwalcr ulil il ics; 
b. The conncclion poinls nnd local ions oflhc cleclric; lclcphonc, g11s. 1elcco111mu11icali(lnS. and 

;111y ol11cr utility services; 
c. The size, dcplh and localion of required water and waslcwaler ulili ly faci li1ics; 
cl. Wntcr detenticm plnn and calculations bused on two a11d ten y<."nr events. emergency slorrn 

waler plan for hundred year evenls; and 
e. The local ion of slonn sewer lines and relaled faci lilics. 

C. !Jesign Regulations 
The follnwing addilional rcgulalions shall apply to nparllnenl, office, research and induslrial ccnlers: 
I. Yards. No building shall be less 1han lhirty feel dislanl from any wning <lislricl boundary. 

Loading and slorage shall be pctmanenlly screened from all adjoining propcrlic< local~d in nn "R" 
Dislricl by building walls, or a free slanding wall. fence or hedge al leasl six Jccl in heigh!. All 
inlcrvening spaces between lhe slreel pavemenl and lhe righl·ol~way line an<l inlcrvcning spaccs 
bclwcen buildings, drives, parking areas and improved areas shall he landscaped wilh lrccs and 
planlings and properly mainlaincd al all times. 

2. Traci Coverage. Where pnrkingspaces are provided wilhin lhc main building<oflhctlcvclopmcnl. 
lhe ground area occupied by all buildings may be expanded uy I O"/o beyond lhe slalcd maxinnnu 
Joi coverages I isled for lhc zoning dislrict. 

J. Access Drives. Access drives shall be located nt a minimum inlcrval of 300 feel. 
4. Loading Space. There shall be provided one off-slreel loa<ling or unloading space for cnch 20.000 

square lcel, or fmc lion lhcreof, o f aggregale noor space of all buildings in !he cenlcr. /\1 leas! 
one·third of the spaces required shall be sufficient in area and vertical clcamncc to nccn1111noda1c 
lrncks of lhe lmclor lrailcr lype. 

5. Signs. Signs foraparlmcnl, office, researchor in<luslrial ccnlcrs shall be limilcd lo wall-lypc signs 
on the principal building, except that o. free standing idcntilication and dircctio11ol sign not lnrgn 
lhan 15 square feel in area may be creeled at enlrances lo lhc cenlcr. llhnninalcd si~n.< shall 11111 

have lhe lighl source visible from off-sile. 
IJ. Suhmission nnd Approval of Final Development Plan 

Upon approval of !he preliminary plan by lhe Planning Commission, lhc following procedure <hall he 
followed 10 achieve final approval of an apartment, office, research or industrial ce11tcr. 

37 



1184 .01 

1 IR4.02 

I. ·1 he prnpn11 c11!:-; slmll prcp:uc and suh111it a fiual dcvclup111 c11I plan whid1 will t:ompl) \\llh the 
design rcquircmcnls, mid will i11corporatc all changes or modi lic:ilions required b)' the l'l;inning 
Commission in the preliminary review st:lge. 

2. If lhc linal development plan complies with lhc rcquircmenls sci forth in this Cha pier, and other 
pc11i11cnt sections of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commis~ion slm11 suhmit the pl:m with 
its report and recommendations to City Council for its review. Council slrnll set a public lic:<1ri11g. 
following lhc required 30 dny public notification process, (O review the plan. Ir a 1.oning 
classilicntion clrnngc is being sought concurrently, this puhlic henring <.:uuld incorporntc both 
issues. 

3. Following the public hearing, Council may modify the plan, prt1"idcd such modiftralion is 
consistent with the intent and mc~ning of the Zoning Ordinance. Any plan rspprov;,J, in ~i1 1 1:1tion s 
where a zoning classification change is required, wil l not he cffCct ivc unlil such 1_011ing 
classification change occurs. 

4. Aller the final development plan is npprovcd by Council. nny minor clrnngcs in carrying lHll lhi::; 
plan, such as adjustments t<i orrcnrrnngcmcnls of buildings, parking mc:is, drive cntrnncc~. h<' il!ht~ 
or yards. musl be approved by the Planning Commission. These ch:111gcs must conlim11 to the 
slandardsest~blishcd by the final development plan and the Zoning Ordinance. l\nyolhrr changcs 
must follow the fina l dcvcJOpmcnt phm procedure and receive a111horiwtion by Council. 

CHAPTER 1184 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS Fon ADULT ENTERTAINMENT l'ACILITIES 

IJEFINJTIONS 
A. l\clult Entertainment Facility: A commercial cntctlainment facility having a sig11iftcm1t portion nfits 

funct ion as adult cnlcrtninment which includes 0 /\dult book/video s(orc", ''Adult cnlcrtain111c11t 1heafcr". 
or "Adult cnlcrtainmenl business". 

B. Adult Book/Video Store: A facility, in which at least ten ( l0%) percent of the puhlicly C\Cccssihlc ~ton: 
arcn deals in books. magazines, or other periodical. or video materials that display :ind arc distingui ~he<I 
or characterized by on emphasis on depiction of items listed under "Specified Sexual /\clivitics" or 
"Specified J\natomical Areas". I\ facility meeting this definition shall meet the rcq11ircme111s of" 
commercial enlertairunenl fadlily. 

C. Adult Entertainment Theater: A commercial entertainment fa cil ity which devotes at leas! I O'Vi1 {1f"its 
presentation time to the display of'materiod dist inguished or charnclcrizc cl by all items li sted in "Sl'crilic<l 
Sexual Activities" or "Specified Anatomical Areas." 

J). Adult E ntertainment Business: Any commercial entertainment lilcili ty involved in rhc sale or services 
of products characterized by salacious conduct appealing to prurient incercst for 1he ob:-crvnlion or 
p:irtic ipation in, by the patrons. llie exposure or presentation of specified nna10111icnl ;ucas or physic:il 
contact of live males or fcmnlcs. These Hclivil ies Are charnclerized hy, hut nnl liinilcd to. phologr;1phy. 
clrmcing, strippitlg, reading, massage, male or female impersonation, and simililr functions which u1 ili1.e 
activities as slated in "Specified Sexual Activities". 

f,. Specified Sexual Activities: Activities such as: 
I. Human genitals in a state o f sexual stimulation or arousal; 

2. Acts, real or simulated, of human masturbation. sexual i11tcn.::oursc, sodomy, cunniling.us. or 
fellatio; · 

3. Fondling or other erotic touchlng of human genitals, pubic region, buttocks or female breasts. 
F. Specified Anatomicnl nrens: Arens oflhe human body us follows: 

I. Jlmnan gcnitnls, pubic region. buttocks, nnd the areola. area of the fem:ilc breasts \vhich !lre !es;. 
than completely O( opaquely covered; 

2. Hunrnn male genitals in a discernible turgid state, even if completely or opariucly covered. 

LOCATION STANDARDS 
Adult commercial entertainment facil ities, as defined in Section 1184.0 I, are subject lo the following standards 
rcguletling their location. 
!\. No adult entertainment facility shall be established within one thousand ( 1,000') feel of any R- 1. R-2. R-1. 

and R-0 district. 
B. No adult entertainment faci lity shall be established within a radius of one thousand (IOUO') feel or any 

school, library, or teaching facility that is allended by persons under lhe age of eighteen ( 18) years nf age. 
No adult entertainment facility shall be established within n radius of one thou.and ( I 000') feel of any park 
or recreational facili ty allended by persons under eighteen ( 18) years of age. 

C. No adult enlerlainment facility shall be established within a radius or one thousand ( t 000') kel or any 
pennanently established place of religious services. 

IJ, No adult entertainment facility shall be established within arodius ofune thousand (I 000') feel ornny day 
care center or type I\ or B fomily day core home as established by the Ohio Revised Code. 

E. No adult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius of one thousand ( I 000') kct of any 
other adult entertainment facility. 

F. No adult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius of one thousand (I 000') feel of :111 y two 
of the following: 
I. Cabarets, clubs, or other establishments which feature adult type of entertainment. 
2. Establishments for the sale of beer or intoxicating liquor for consumption on lhe prcmi~cs. 
3. Pool or billiard halls. 
4. Pinball P"laccs or halls. 
5. Dance halls or discotheques. 
6. Massage parlors. 

38 



I IR4.0.l 

11114.04 

1185.01 

1185.02 

'/. Video mcaclcs,orcs!Uhlish111c111sk110wn hy 01hcrdcscrip1io11s. which 1>rnvidc v11k o g:i111c., ;1111l/1•r 

olhcr games forcntcrlainmc11I allemlcd or paiticipatcd in by persons under eighteen (I SJ years <>f 
age. 

MEASUREJ\IENT STANDARDS 
Dislanccs shall be measured from the property lines of ony lot or parcel of lanJ on which an :lllnll entertainment 
foci lily is locolcd and the location from which a dislancc of separation is specified in Section 11 R'l .02. 

ADYERTJSEJ\lENT DISl'LAV STANDARDS 
No odvc11iscmcnts, displays. or other promotional materials shnll be shown orcxhihiiecl so as tn he 1•isihlc In the 
public rmm pcdeMrian sitlcwalks or walk\"1ly$i, or frmn other public a rem~. sc111i·pt1blic. areas. '>r <1t1;1si-1u1l>I ic :-irra~. 
All building openings, entries, wine.lows, etc. for adult use shall be locnlcd. covered. (lr serviced in such a 111m111cr 
a~ to _rrcvrnt a view into the interior from :my si<lewalk. or any street For new conc;trudion. the h11ildi11!! sh:1 ll 
be oriented so as lo mini111ize nny possibility of vicwjng the interior from :my puhlic. ~c111i .puhlic . nr<111asi-puhli1..· 
areas. 
No screens, speakers, or soun<l equipment shall be used for adult motion picture 1hca1cr. or other :idull 
cnterlainmcnl facility, that can be seen or disccmcd by the public from any public. sc1ni-public, or quasi-puhlic 
areas. 

PURPOSE 

CHAPTER 1185 
SIGNS 

It is the purpose of1hesc sign rcgulnlions lo promole the public henlth, safely, aml gcncrnl wclforc by pcn11i11i11g 
the use of signs as a means of co1111nu11ication in lhe City of Celina: 
A. To maintain ond enhance Che City's natural and manmadc environment 
IJ. To implement community design standurds lo encourage an auractive and healthy economic cnviro11111cn1: 
C. To reduce possible safety hazards to vehicle and pedestrian traffic !hrough good sig1mgc: 
I>. To minimize lhc possible adverse effects of signs on nearby public and privritc property~ :11u.I 
E.. To enable the fair etncl consistent enforcement of these sign rcgul:itions. 
The purpose. as staled above, is based on the fo llowing findings or conditions concerning signs: 
A. Thal excessive signs create dangerous tramc conditions, intrude on motorist and peclc•trinn enjoyment of 

1l1e Oillurnl :tnd manmodc beauty of the City, and as such arc detrimc1tlal lo tl1c public l•eillll1. si'\fc:ly. aml 
@enernl welfare of the City; nod 

B. That business enterprises and other insti tutions located along public and private slreets have a need to 
identify themselves and their activities to motorists and pedestrians by means or signs. 

DEFINITIONS 
The following terms ore defined for use under 1his section. 
A. Abandoned Sign: Any sign rerm1iniug in place which no longcradvcrliscsor identifies au ongoing or :tcli \·c 

business. product, or service available; or a sign which is no longer mninlained inn serviceable condition. 
The serviceability ofu sign cc:ises when deterioration becomes :ls visibly rccogni1 .. 1blc as lhc i111ngc oflhc 
subject o f the si~n. 

B. Address Marker: A numeric reference of a s1ruc1Ure or sile 11 01 included ns part of a wall or llHn111111c 111 
sign. 'l11csc nre not normally considered a sign under this section. 

C. A-Fr:unc Ca I'd Sign: A free standing sign usually hinged nt the lop. Such signs nrc considered purlahlc 
and temporary. 

D. Animntccl or Moving Sir,11: Any sign, other than a time and tcmpernturc lfo;plny. which w;c.~ 111oliu11. 
Ji gh1i11g, or special materhils to depict action or create a special effect or scene. 

fi:. Awning, C"nopy, or Marquee Sign: A non-electric sign 1hat is printccl on, painlccl 011. a11;1ched to "'' 
awning, canopy, or marquee and is only permitted on the vertical surf.ice. 

F. Danner, Fla~, Pennant or Dalloon: Any cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, l>r .<imilnr malcrial, used for 
advertising purposes attached to, pinned on, or from any structure, staff, pole, line. framing. or vehicle. 
including captive balloons and inOalablc signs, but not including official nngs of local. st:ue. national or 
foreign governmc11lal orgauizations. 

G. Billboard or Off-Site Sign: A sign, including supporting slructure, advertising an establishment. 
merchandise, service, or cnler1ainment 1 which is nol sold, produced. manulitctmed. or furnished al thl' 
property 011 which the sign is located. 

II. Ouild in~ Face: 111e length of the single front building elevation in which the prinrnry c11tra11cc co lite 
business is located. Where more 1han one business occupies a building. the frontngc for si1-.tn purposes for 
each business is determined by multiplying the building front elevation width by thcpcrce111age<Jftot;1I lloor 
space occupied by each uusiucss or po1en1inl business space. 

I. Clrnngeahlc Copy Sign: A sign designed lo allow the changing of copy through manual, mechanical. or 
electrical means. Time and tcmpcrnlure displays are not considered ng.ainsl the nllownblc advcrti1. ing ~ign 
foolage ns long os no business identification or adver1ising is presented as part of the di.<play . 

. J. Civic E.-cnl Sign: A temporary sign posted to adverli.<c a civic cven1 sponsored by a public ogcnc)' .. <chuul. 
church, civic/frnternnl organi7.ation, or similar non-profit organiwtion. 

K. Construction Stgn: A·tcmporary sign crccccd on the parcel ('Ill which con~tru c l i{l11 is t~k i11 g. pl:1cc. The 
sign mny lisl 1he project 11t1rnc, owners, clevclopcrs1 professional services r111d co11twc1ors i11V\1lvcd 11110 ;my 
other mnj01' sponsor~ of the development. 

L. l>e\•elopmcnt orSubd i\•ision Sign: A temporary sign promoting a new dcvclop111c11t or~ubdivis io11 wh icl1 
has received Cily Planning Commission review. 

M. lJircctional Sign" Signs limilcd In directional messages. principally fur pcde•trian or vehicularlrnrlic. such 
as "one wi'y'\ "entry" or "ex.it''. These signs giving direction me not considered part of lhc advertising 

39 



1185.03 

s1g11;1gc rmd do llllt l\.'tJUirc j lCI 111illi11g. I raddilion::il ;nlvcrl i?. illg displ:1y j ~ po:;lrd nn Ilic diH·d i11nal ~i!!11:-: fh,· 
Zoning lnspcelor may consider them as 1wl oflhc square footage restrictions. 

N. llouhlc-li'nccd Si~n: A posl, pecleslal, or monument display where the siµn's faces arc hack lo hack ;11111 

the sign copy is similaron both sides. The area of double-faced signs is considered based on •limcnsinnsof 
one side. 

O. Gnrage or Yard Sale Sign: A temporary sign advenizing the sale of personal items al a rc~idcnlial 
properly. 

I'. Incidental Signs: Incidental signs ar<:signs no larger than) square feet in si7e that display m1lices rc4uircd 
by law, or show affiliations or services provided. Items displayed may be cmlil cards :1ccq>1cd. trade 
affi liations, business hour.;, or other similar information necessary lo idenlily limits of or qualifications n [ 
service or product. 

Q. lmlih1tionnl Sign: A pcmrnncnt sign identifying the premises of a church, schm1I. ~ovcrn111en1a l orticc. 
or non-profit institutional facility. 

H. Kiosk: A three dimensional structure designed and constructed with the explicit I" " pose of' displayin~ 
111forrn111io11 and advertising. This structure must supply a public ::;crvicc m1ct cnn only receive a permit 
following review :ind approvn1 of the Planning Commission. 

S. Lo~o Sign: A sign consisting of a symbol or mnrk a<Socialccl with n husincss. scrvict' ur pro• lucl c11ti1y. 
T. Monnmrnt Sign: A sign displayed on a pedestal or base that lms a foolprinl 50%, or more lhan lhc ~igns 

horizontal cl imcnsion~. 

U. Nonconforrning Sign: A legally established sign existing prior to the cstablisluncnt of I his Ordinance whicl1 
foils to confonn to the regulations of this Ordinance. 

V. Politicnl Sign: A ternpornry sign directly associated with u local, stale, or national p(ll ilic:il election or 
issue. 

W. Portnhle Sign: A sign designed and constmcted to be easily set up and removed or rcloeatcd. 
X. Promotional Sign: A temporary commercial sign posted to prumole the s:ilc of new pr(lducts. new 

man3gcmc111. new hours, new service or to promote a special sale. 
Y. Projecting Sign: Any sign which is allochcd lo the face ofa huilding and projects more than eighteen ( 18) 

inches from the face. 
'/,. Rcol Estate Sign: An on·sile temporary sign pertaining to thesale, lease or rental of n huildingor premises. 

'I hcse signi- include Open House signs whic;;h indicate when salcs1>erson~ are av:ti lnhlc to rcprcSl'lll lhc 
property subject to sale, lease or rent. 

AA. Roof Sign: A sign erected, constructed, or placed upon or over a roof of a building. including a mans:ir<I 
roof, ond which is wholly or por11y supported by the building. 

DD. Sign: Any display that shows any product, service, business, name, or other enterprise in :i protnolional 
manner. /\ sign mny consist of wording, logos or images. 

CC. Sign Program: A coordinated program of signs as allowed under the "Conunercial Shopping Center" aml 
"Apnr1me111, Orfice, Research, and Industrial Center" developments. 

()I). T•mporary Sign: Any sign that is approved to be displayed for n limited time rcriod ns sci forth in ll1i' 
Ordinance or by the Planning Commission. 

EE. Wnll Sign: A sign painted on, printed on, or allached to a wall which has its face s11bstm1tially 
perpendicular to lhc building foce. 

li'F. Window Sign: Any sign that is applied, painted, or allached lo a wall which is 1101 n projecting sign. 

ADMINISTRATION . 
These sign regulat ions shall be administered as stated under the conditions as lis ted in Chnpler 114) or this 
Ordinance. 
A. Permit Rcquir«I 

No r:: ign, unless cxc1nptc<l by this Ch<tplr.r, ~hnll he constmctc<l. displnycd. or nltcrc<.I wilhnut an npproved 
permit. The permits shall be issued by the Zoning lnspcctor when the concl itioos of this Orclhrnncc me mcl. 
Ench permit application shall be accompanied by the fo llowing: 
I. A drawing showing lhe design proposed. 
2. Dimensioned site plan showing the sign location in relation lo property lines. huilding•. walks. and 

drives. 
3. Dimensioned elevation drawing showing thesize,sign typc, height, illrnnimlio11 method. s11ppo1 l or 

mounting method. and construction materials. 
/\sign for which a pem1it has been issued shall not be modified, relocated. altered or replaced unless a new 
permit or an amended permit is issued by the Zoning Inspector. 

13. SigM Requiring n Permit ·· 
Any sign erected, p:1inted, posted or placed in any district within the City shall require an npp1ovcd permit 
from !he Zoning Inspector in confonnance wilh Sections 1144.02· 1 I 44.05, except those signs idcntilicd as 
exempt from such permit. Sign struclur<:, size, height, setback, local ion and number shall he determined by 
the requirements set fonh in this Chapter. 
Changes or relocation of nonconforming signs require permits and any nllcrotions must also meet the 
requirements set fo rth in this Chapter. Sec Section 1185.04 0 . for nonconformin!l signs. 

C. Si~11S Nol Requiring a Permit 
The fo llowing signs ar~ exempt and do not require a pennit fr(lm the Zoning lmpector. To 111nintain an 
excmpl slntus these signs must comply with restrictions as established in this Chapter. 
I . Political signs, Ren! nstote signs, and Civic E.vcnt signs when conformi11g to the requirements 

citablishcd under this Ordinance. 
2. Temporary signs painted on the outside of the windows for display on holid:1y or special occasinns. 
3. Signs located inside n building or behind a window and not exceeding !he prohibit ions sci li•rth in 

Section 11 85.03 D.8., do not require a permit. 
4. Memorial signs and plaques installed by recognized civic organi1;1tions. 
5. Official and legal notices and signs issued by governmental agcncie<. 

40 



11 85.04 

II. 

E. 

F. 

{). lJllici; 1l llags or n11 govcr11111c11tal ;ind tiviclfralcrnal orga11i:.ralit111s. 

7. Conslruclion signs wl1en conforming to lhc conditions set forlh under Section 1185.04 I' .2. 
8. lnciJ('ntul signs for businesses like automobile services, gnsoli11e service slalin11s. aul(lmohilc <ica1crs 

with service repairs, motels and hotels provided that all of the following coi1ditin11!< exist: the si~11s 
nrc attached to a structure or building; the sig11s number 110 more llrnn rour (4) per sln::cl frontngc. 
um.I no sign shall exceed an area per face of three (3) squnrc feet. Copy ~pplied to fllcl pumps tir 
dispensers such ns fuel identification, station logo, and other signs rcqt1irt'd by lawnrc pcrmit1cd ;m<l 
not counted against the number allowed. 

9. Direc tional signs provided that such signs nre localed on-site, have a maximum area which docs not 
exceed three (3) square feet per sign, have a maximum overall height of four (4) fret nho"c grade. 
and arc mounted on n monument or pole. Such ::;igns may be localed in a required sc1b:11.:k provitlrd 
that a minimum distance of fi ve (5) leet from arry property line is 111nintai11cd. 

10. Garnge and yard sale signs provided they conform to the rcguk11ions set forth i11 this Ordi11a11cc. 
l'ruhihitcd Signs 
The fo llowing signs are inconsi!>lCnt with the sign standards established in this Ch;1plcr mtd arc thc1cfi,rc 
prohibited. Permits cannot be issued for: 
I. Abarrdoncd signs a!lcr 90 days of meeting the ab,111do11cd sign dcfi11ition. The property owner will 

be responsible for removal. 
2. Arri mated, moving, flashing, blinking, reflecting. revolving orothcrsi111ilar signs. with the exception 

or pennnncntly mounted Changeable Copy Signs aml time and tc111pernture <lispl(lyS as allO\VC<l in 
this Chapter. 

J. Portable or A-Frame signs. For exceptions see Section 1185.04 F.7. 
4. Roof signs 
5. Signs placed in, or overhanging, lhe public right-of-way. Signs with CXC'eption are: govcnunc111nl 

signs and infonnational signs authorized by thePlmu1ing Commission and in conronmmcc with slnle 
or federal regulations. Such informational signs shall not exceed two a11d a half (2\t,) sqrrnrc feet in 
area and shall not be illuminated. 

G. Signs designed or constructed to resemble or imitate highway or traffic corrlrol signs or sigrrnls. 
7. Temporary signs, found not in conformance to the regulations set forth i11 this Ordinance. These 

signs may be confiscated by the Zoning Inspector, or his representatives, in ndcli1io11 to hcing suhjccl 
to the conditions of Chapter 1199. 

8. Windows signs when they arc loc.1tcd in a residentially zoned district arc larger than the allowable 
signngc for that district or arc illuminated. 

Measurcmrnt Stand•rds 
The area ofthc sign is determined by the dimensions of the background structure, unifying background arct\ , 
or by the maxi111urn dimensions of the display area ifposled on a common bHckground. The following 
slandnrds slmll be used to determine lhc mca and height measurements for all signs creeled or posted within 
the Citv: 
I. ·The area of a sign shall be computed by means of the smallest square, circle, rectangle, triangle, or 

combination thereofthnl will e11compass ll re exterior display limits of a sign, but not induding the 
suppmling frame or bracing. 

2. The area ofa sign with more than one face shall be co111p11tccl by ndding together the area of all sign 
faces visible from any one point. 

3. In the C(tSC of irregularly shaped three dimensional signs, the area of lhe display surface :i-h;:dl he 
measured on the plnne of the largest vertical cross section. 

4. The height of n sign shall be determined by measuring the vertical distance between the highest point 
of the sign to the ground elevation at the base of the sign. If mounding was used at the sign hn,c. 
the ground elevation shall be determined as the average ground elevation of the developed site a t 
lhc sign hase prior to mounding. 

5. The setback of a sign shall be measured from lhc vertical prnjection ol" the properly line or street 
right-of-way line to the closest part of the sign. 

6. Lots in R or M zones having frontage on more than oncslrcet shall frnve n 111aximum 11 llnwable sign 
n.rc" equal to lwice that of its shortest fronlageT nol Co exceed twice the maximum ntnnber of squnre 
feet otherwise allowed in the zone. These lots shall also be permitted twice the n111nber of signs 
otherwise allowed in their zone; however, there shall be 110 incrcnsc in the number of li·cc-!·Hnmting 
signs allowed. 

Fees 
A schedule of fees for permits shall be established a11d amended from time to time by City Council. 

GENERAL REGULATIONS 
A. Cl'Oss-corner Sight Restrictions: 

No sign, or pa11 of a sign structure wider than one (I) foot, shall be erected in the cross~eomcr li11c of sight 
between the heights of three (3) feet and eight (8) feet, as measured from the ce11tcr lines o r rhc relevant 
pavements, in the following locatio11s: 
I. At street intersections, within a triangle, two sides of which arc measured from the poh11 ci l' 

in1crsection of the street rights-of-way, a distance of 40' parnllcl tu the lhroug.h strt>c l and n dlstarn.:c 
of 15 feet parallel to the stop street. At 4-wny stops the distance shal l be 40 foci parallel to each 
slrect. 

2. At drives ~ within a triangle, two sides of which arc measured from the poinl of intersection of the 
street right-of-way and the centerline ofthc drive, a distance or 50 feel parallel to the Slrect. and a 
distance of 15 feel parallel to the centerline of the drive. 

ll. Distracting Signs: 

41 



!'iig n~ \\hid1 ha\c niuYing p:11ts.1"·placc;1l>lc lclte1s, or changing ill11111i11itlic111 sliall cvn l11111110the1.:u11el11it1w; 

!~sled will1i11 !his Ordinance. Sec Seel ion I I 85.03J)for1cslriclions 011 signs which use a11ima1io11. llashi11g 
hghls. shares reserved for rramc co11trol, a11d motion. 

( '. Sign ll lun1inot ion: 
All si~1i.< and odverlising slructures, except os hcreinaOer modified, may be illuminated internally nr hy 
rcOc~L~d hghl; provided lhc S?urcc of light is not directly visible a11d is mrangcd to rcncct awoy fro111 the 
adjo111111g pren11ses; nnd provufcd that such illumination shall not lead to conftrniun, or crcal<-' a lrn7.anl to 
tmffic. orconnitt with tr;iffic control signs or Jigh1s. J\n exception to tl1c c1bovc is I hat ~ign~ ill11111inatctl wilh 
11co11 lighting are also allowed even !hough lhc light source is visible. Sec Seel ion 1185.05 for dislricis 
where sign i11U1ni11ation is prohibited. 

0. Non-tonforming Signs: 
All signs which are in existence on the effective dotcoflhis Ordinance shall be considered nonconfor111ing 
uses and shall be subjec1 10 lhc following provisions: 
I. No nonconfonning sign shall have any changes made in the words. symhols or mcssn[!C clisplnycd 

011 lhc sign unless the sign is spccilically designed for periodic change of message. 
2. No nonronfonning !liig11 shall he :oilructurnlly altered sons to change 1hc ~l1:11lC. si7c, type or clci::i(!l1 

of the sign, uor shall any 11onconfom1ing sign be rclocnlctl until ii meet~ the rcquirc111c111s of thi~ 
Chapter and receives a permit. 

E. Development or Subdi,.lslon Entry Signs: 
The co11ditions for the placement of pcnnanent signs identifying a dcvelopmcnl or subdivision shall he sci 
by review by Ilic.City Planning Commission. These conditions are 10 be forwarded 10 1hc Zoning Inspector 
by the Planning Commission for issuance of a permit. 

I'. Tempurnry Signs: 
Temporary signs require a permit unless they arc identified as nol requiring a pcnnit under Seel ion 11 85.03 
C. All lcmpomry signs, unless specifically identified under 1185.02, Dcli11ilions. shall he consideml 
temporary commercial signs. ·n.c following regulations shall apply to lcmporary signs: 

I. Civic Event Si~ns: 

These signs shall be registered with lhe Zoning lnspeclor listing the orga11i1,11ion rcspoi1sihlc. a 
contact person, dales of posting, sign si1.c, and location of sign. All posling periods and placc111cnts 
must receive approval of lhe Zoning Inspector. Any signs not receiving thi~ approval ::;lrnll he 
considered in violation of this Ordinance. 

2. Construclion Signs: 
These signs shall be shown as part of the development's site plan. The 11umbcr uf signs, 1heir 
location and sizes, shall be approved by the Zoning Inspector before installalion., If condi1io115 
warrnnl, lhc Zoning Inspector may allow placement of I he cons1111ction sign off-site. The posting 
of the sign(s) shall be limited to the construction period which begins one week before the actual 
work begins or with the ground hrcaking, which ever is first, lo the condi lional final acccp1anrc hy 
the owner. 

3. Development or Subdivision Signs: 
ll1e conditions for the placcmcrll or these signs at a development or subdivision shall be SC( fly 
review by the City Planning Commission. These conditions nre Lo be forwarded 10 the Zoning 
lnspec1or by the Planning Commission for issuance of a permit. 

4. Real Estate Signs: 
Real cslate signs are not allowed in public right·of.way Meas. They me allowed a 11rnxin111111 mca 
of 6 square feet in residential districts and 32 square feet in all other district,. One sales sign is 
allowed per property frontage. In addition, an open house sign is ollowcd fi>r a week period prior 
to lhe open house date. Sales signs shall be removed fru111 a prnpc1 ly wilhin ollc week of closing. 

5. Garage and Yard Sa le Signs: 
These signs arc to be posted only on private property. The signs shall nol exceed 6 square feel in 
area. ·n1cy shall be posted only the day of the sales. No signs shall be posted on any public utilily 
or light pc1les. 

6. Tempornry Con>merelnl Signs: 
The Zoning Inspector, in accordance with the provisions herein, is a111hori1.ctl Lo issue pcrmils for 
the creel ion and maintenance of temporary commercial sign~. Such pcr111i1 slmll he i ~sucd for :1 

period not lo exceed fourteen ( 14) days, not more frequcnlly than once in each lhrcc month period 
for 1he same premises. Temporary commercial signs shall not be illuminated. No lcmpoinry signs 
containing commercial message.• shall be permilled in residential districts. No permit shall he issued 
for aerial signs, or signs designed to be moved on tra iler wheels, skids, or on other similnr device,. 
The area, height and number of temporary commercial signs shall bcdc1crn1inc<l by the rcq11ircn1enls 
established in the regulat ions for each zoning district. 

7. In the tt-2 district, if a property has a 12 feel or wider sidewalk, e•ch business may havC<•ue ( I) 
A-frame sign, or similar typc por1able sign, pro,.ided all the following conditions are met: 
a. The sign shall only be on display during business hours of 1hc 

business if advertises. 
b. The sign shall not exceed JO inches in widlh mid 48 inches in height. 
c. The sign shall be placed 0 11 Lhe sidewalk only with lhc approval of the 

owner of the front property, on<I 
d. Its nearest edge must he placed cilher a maximum of one (I) foot 

from the right-of-way line or between one ( I) and one nnd a hnlf ( 1. 5) 
feel from the curb. 

e. Signs should he of a design that· resists being moved or blown over by 
1he wind. However, they shall not he allached to publicly ow11cd sign 

42 



l 185.05 

posts, hyd1;111ls, ltccs. etc. in the light-of- way. 

DISTIUCT IU!:GULAT!ONS 
The fullowint: regulations shall apply lo all signs. permilled and otherwise, according to c:tch Zoning Districl. 
A. H...ll.:1...&1 • ..ll:.L•nd n-o DISTRICTS: 

I. Lots used for dwellings of IO or fewer units and I heir ncccssory uses: 
a. The maximum Iota.I sign area shall 110 1 exceed six (6) square feet. 
b. The minimum sign setlxi<:ks shall be a.< follows: 

0 reel from nil street right-or-way lines, 
I U feet from all side property lines, and 
I 0 reel from all rear property lines. 

c. The maximum height of nny freestanding sign shall he four ( 4) reel. 
d. The maximum number or signs allowed shall he two (2), <111 ly OllC or whid1 111'1)' 10<· a 

freestanding sign. 
c. Signs shall nol be illuminated. 

2. Lots having a primary use that is nonresidenlial and apartment complexes with more lhan IO unit.: 
a. The maxim nm total area of all permitled signs slrnll be c<11ml to one ( I') square li>ol ol' sign 

orca for each four (4) reet of lot width, not to exceed a maximum of 50 square feel. 
b. The minimum setbacks' for all frees tanding signs shall be as follows: 

0 feet from all street right-of-way lines, 
25 feet from all side property lines, and 
25 feet from all rear property lines. 

e. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be eight (8) feet. 
d. The maximum numbcrof signs allowed, regardless of the numhcr or lenm1ts. shall lie two 

(2), only one of which may be a freestanding sign. 
3. Signs idenlifying or marking subdivision developments shall he reviewed nnd approved IJy the 

Planning Commission as part of the subdivision review process. The l'lanning Commission shall set 
the number, size and location of these non·lcmporary development or suhdivision signs. 

ll. ll-1 GENERAi, DUSINESS DISTRICT: 
I . Lots used for dwellings of I 0 or fewer units and their accessory uses: 

a. The maximum total sign area shall be equal to 20 square feet. 

b. The minimum sign selbncks shall be as follows: 
0 feet from all street right-of-way lines, 
I 0 feet fro111 all side property lines, and 
I 0 feet from nil rear property lines. 

c. The maximum height of any freeslanding sign shall be 6 feet. 
d. The 111aximu111 number of signs, which require a permit, shall be two (2), only one of which 

may be a freestanding sign. 
2. Lots having a primary use Lim! is nonresidential and apartment complexes with 111ore lhan I 0 1111i1s: 

a. The maximum total area of all permitted signs sh?ll be equal 10 4 square reel or sign area for 
each one (I') foot of lot width, not lo exceed a maximum of 200 square feet. 

b. The 111inim11111 setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be ns follows: 
0 feet from nil street right·or-way lines, 
I 0 feet from oil side property lines, and 
I 0 feet fro1i1 all rear property lines. 

c. l11e maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 25 feet. 
d. The maximum number of signs, which require a permit, regardless 

of the number of tenants, shall be four (4), with only one frecslanding sign allowed per 
abntling street. 

C. D-2 et:NTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
I. Lots used for dwellings of IO or rewcr units and their accessory uses: 

a. l11e maximum total sign area shall not exceed 20 square ICet. 
b. ·n1e minimum sign setbacks shall be as follows: 

0 foet from all street right-of-way lines, 
I 0 feet from all side property lines, and 
I 0 feet from all rear property lines, except as provided in Section 11 85.0J D. 5. 

c. The maximum height of any freestand ing sign shall be six (6) fret. 
d. The maximum numbcrofsigns, which require a pennit. shall he two (2), only 1•11e of 

which may be a freestanding sign. 
2. Lots having a primary use that is nonrcsidcnlial and apartment com11lcxes with more lhan I 0 units: 

n. The maximum total area of all permitted signs shall be equal to 4 square feet or sign nrca ror 
each one (I') foot of lot width, not to exceed n mnximum of I 00 squnre ICct. 

b. The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as follows: 
0 feet Crom nil street right·of-way lines, 
10 feet from all side property lines, and 
10 feet from all rear property lines. 

c. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 25 feet. 

43 



I 199.01 

11.99.02 

1199.03 

d. ·111c 111a.~i11nm111u111bcrof signs, wl1icl1 require a pcn11it, regardless oJ 1l1c 1111111hcroftc11:111 t!' . 

shall be fom (4), with only one freestanding sign allowed per abutling street. 

0. Il-3 COMMUNITY SHOl'PING DISTRICT 
I. Integrated Commercial Cerllers 

a. Tire maximum total area of all wall signs for any one business shall be equal lo two (2) 
square feet of sign area for each one (I') foot of building width, not I<• exceed a maximum 
of200 square feel. 

b. The total area of any frccslandiog sign shall be 2UO square feel. 
c. Tire minimum frec"tanding sign setbacks shall be as follows: 

0 feel from all street right-of-way lines, 
SO feel from all siclc properly lines, and 
50 feet from all rear property I incs. 

d. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 35 feel. 
e. The maximum number of wall signs for any one business shall be 

1Wo(2). 
f. The maximum numhcrof frccsta.nding signs shall not exceed the number of abnlling s treet~. 

2. Other lots in the 0-J district, including outlots of integralcd commcrci~I centers having (!;cir own 
slrcet frontage and separate ownership: 
n. The maxinrnm total nrea of all signs shall be equal to four (4) square feel of sign area for 

each one (I') foot of lot width not to exceed a maximum of 200 .squnrc feet. 
b. The minimum setbacks for nil freestanding signs shnll be as follow" 

0 feel from nil street righl·of-way lines, 
I 0 feet from all side property lines, and 
I 0 feet from all rear properly lines. 

c. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 25 feel. 
d. The maximum number of signs allowed, regardless of the number of tenants, shall be fnur 

(4), with only one freestanding sign. 

I':. M MANUFACTURING DISTRICT 
I. The maximum total area of all signs shall be equal to two (2) square feet of sign area for each one 

(I') fool oflot width, not to exceed a maximum of 200 square feel. 
2. The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs slrnll he as follows: 

0 ICcl frorn all street right-of-way lines. 
20 feet from all side properly lines, and 
20 feet from all rear property lines. 

3. Tire maximum height of any freestanding sign shall he 15 feel. 
4. The maximum number of signs, which require a pennit, regardless oflhe number of tenants. shill I 

be four (4), with only one freestanding sign allowed per abutting street. 

CHAPTER 1199 
VIOLATION, REIVll':Dll':S ANI) Fl':ES 

VIOLATION 
\Vhcncver n violation of this Zoning Ordinance occurs, or is aJleged to have occurred, any person m ay file " 
written co1n1>laint to 1he Z oning Inspector. Such complaint shall state the cause or basis of lhe \liolalion. The 

Zoning Inspector shall record the corrrplaint, promptly investigate it and take the nccc." "'l' action to resolve tire 
complaint. 
In addition, any person can pursue the other remedies by law to initiate appropriate action or proccc<l ings lo 

prevent, restrain, correct or abate such violation. 

NOTlCE OF VIOLATION 
The notice of any violation of tire Zoning Ordinance shall be as fol lows: 
/I.. Whenever the Zoning Inspector dctennines that there is a violation of any provision of this Zoning 

Ordinance. a notice of such violntion shall be issued. Such notice she1ll: 
l. De in writing; 
2. Identi fy the violation; 
3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why it is being issued and refer to tire section o f this 

Zoning Ordinance being violated; and 
4. State the time by which the violation shall be corrected . 

B. Service of notice of the violation shall be as follows: 
I. By personal delivery to the person or persons responsible. or by leaving the notice al tire usual 

place of residence of the owner with a person aged sixteen ( 16) years or older; or 
2. By Certified Mail, addressed to the property owner of record on tire County Auditor's records. 

Service shall be deemed complete when the fact of the mailing is recorilcd. 
3. By posting a copy of the notice form inn conspicuou~ place on the premises found in violation. 

REMF:lllES 
The followirrg remedies shall apply to violations of the Zoning Ordinance: 

44 



11 99.04 

A. l' rohillilions 
I. No person shall fai l or refuse lo comply wilh an order issued by the Zoning Inspector. , /\ 

separnle offense shall be deemed committed each day upun which a vihlalion occurs or 
continues. 

2. No person shall conslrucl, modify, aller, use or occupy ;111y shuclurc or properly in violation of 
the Celina Zoning Ordinance. A scp3rnlc offense shall be deemed co111mi11cd each dny upon 
which ri violntion occurs or co111i1111cs. 

B. l' rn:ill irs 
I. Whosoever violales lhis scclion is guilly of n minor misdemeanor fo r each offense. 
2. If, wilhin one year of lhe dale of lhc offcnsc, lhc offender has been conviclcd of or pleads guilly 

to anolher violalion of Section I 199.03(/\) the offender is guilly of a misdemeanor of lhc third 
degree. 

C. Civil Remed ies For Violations 

FEES 

In case any building is localed or is proposed lo be located, erected, conslrucled, rcconslructcd, 
enlarged, changed, mainlained or used, or nny land is used or is proposed lo be used in viola1ion of1 he 
i'.oning Ordinnncc or any 3mcndmcnt or supplement therclo, the Zoning Inspector, shall institulc or any 
adjacent or neighboring property owner who would be specially damaged by such violalion, in addit ion 
to other remedies provided by lnw, mny institute irtjunction, mand .. mus, abatement or any other 
nppropriate action, rictions, proceeding or proceedings to prevcnl, enjoin, abate or remove such unlawful 
location, erection, constrnction, reconstruction, cnlnrgemcnt, change, maintenance or use. 

111c fees for all applicant costs incurred in !his Chapter shall be established by City Council. Furthermore. no 
plan shall be acccplcd for fi ling and processing, ns provided in !his Chapter, unless mid unlil a filing fee is paid to 
!he Ci1y. 
The applicant shall be responsible for the expenses incurred by lhe Ci1y in reviewing lhe plan or any 
moc.Jifications to the plan. Such expenses ma)' include items such as the cost of professional services~ including 
expense~ ancl legal fees in connection with reviewing the plan. pre pored reports, the publication and mailing of 
public no1ice in connection lherewilh, and any other reasonable expenses direclly allribulable thereon. 

S'ECTJON TWO 

THI\ T, any cily legislalion such as. Ordinance 26-74·0, and all the amendmenls lo it and its map, which are 
inconsistent wilh this Ordinance be hereby repealed. 

SECTION THREE 

THI\ T, this ordinance shall become effective from and after the date of ils approval nnd odoplion, as provided 

:~~~'~'~~,~·"_"~~~~~-
Kevin M cKirnan 
City Law Director 

\ 1llinm T. Sell, Council Prcsidenl 

45 




